ROAD TO
COMPLETION
With developments moving at optimum speed,
the light at the end of the tunnel is fast approaching.
High expectations set the standards while more
people are encouraged to explore their opportunities
in Iskandar Malaysia. IRDA is confident of delivering
a modern and sustainable metropolis.

Aerial View of Educity

POWER OF
GROWTH
In an ever-changing environment, the key to Iskandar
Malaysia’s rapid growth is in managing changes in
stages. Standing out as one of the most innovative
and self-sustainable developments in Malaysia, our
long-term vision also allows us to share the experience
as we continue to explore new opportunities.

The Aerial View
of Puteri Harbour

SURGING
TOWARDS
SUSTAINABILITY
Envisioning short-term and long-term goals while
delivering an economically stable community continues
to be a work in progress. With population on the rise, the
surrounding environment provides more opportunities to
explore an evolving community, subsequently creating
a sustainable metropolis of international standing.

The Second Link Bridge
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50%

Iskandar Malaysia aims to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions by 50% by 2025.

800,000

An estimated 800,000 jobs will be created by 2025.

RM383

BILLION

Iskandar Malaysia total investment
target for 20 years is to achieve
RM383 billion in 2025.

USD31,1
Iskandar Malaysia’s per capita GDP
is projected at USD31,100 in 2025.

ISKANDAR MALAYSIA
Over the years, Malaysia has experienced tremendous economic and
development transformation, rising up to be one of the fastest growing
economies in the region. Iskandar Malaysia was conceived to secure
the country’s competitiveness in a rapidly changing global economy.
Located in the south of Peninsular
Malaysia, Iskandar Malaysia was built
upon the solid foundation of Johor’s
past successes, while striving to
unlock the state’s future potential.
Iskandar Malaysia is rapidly transforming
the socio-economic landscape of Johor,
elevating it to more than just a vibrant
metropolis.
At three times the size of Singapore, the
2,217 square kilometre main southern
development corridor is the single largest
development project initiated by the
Federal and State governments to be
undertaken in the region.
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Thriving Metropolis
Iskandar Malaysia is envisaged to be
a metropolis burgeoning ahead of its
time, where living, entertainment and
business would seamlessly converge in
a vibrant and sustainable environment
of international standing. Meticulous
planning has been invested into ensuring
the development is sustainable, while
protecting the direct and indirect
needs of its respective stakeholders.
As part of the Indonesia-MalaysiaSingapore Growth Triangle, Iskandar
Malaysia’s strategic location and proximity
to some of the world’s most dynamic
economies is a key differentiating factor
in its advancement. Located at the
confluence of important East-West trade

routes, it is rooted between the region’s
two economic powerhouses, China and
Japan.
As it is easily accessible by air, land and
sea, Iskandar Malaysia enjoys a standard
of living comparable to some of the
region’s more developed economies,
but at a much lower expense.
Besides being rich in natural resources,
Iskandar Malaysia boasts an educated,
highly skilled and multi-lingual workforce
enhanced by friendly policies and a
conducive business environment. This
underlines the Malaysian Government’s
continuous commitment towards creating
a vibrant and dynamic city, perfect for
business as well as leisure.
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DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IRDA)
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FLAGSHIP B :
NUSAJAYA

FLAGSHIP A :
JB CITY CENTRE
• Financial Advisory &
Consulting
• Cultural & Urban Tourism

•
•
•
•
•

Education & Medical Tourism
Entertainment & Recreation
State Administration
Financial Advisory & Consulting
Biotechnology

Iskandar Malaysia is divided
into five flagship zones:

FLAGSHIP E :
SENAI – SKUDAI

• Tourism (Luxury Shopping Destination)
• Manufacturing (Esp. High-tech and
Aerospace-related)
• Logistics
• Cybercity

2013

FLAGSHIP C :
WESTERN GATE
DEVELOPMENT
• Logistics
• Regional Distribution,
International Procurement
• Oil Storage Terminals

FLAGSHIP D :
EASTERN GATE
DEVELOPMENT
• Manufacturing (Electronics,
Petrochemicals, Oleochemicals etc)
• Oil Storage Terminals
• Education

100

KUALA
LUMPUR

JOHOR
SINGAPORE
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ISKANDAR REGIONAL
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IRDA)
Iskandar Regional Development Authority (IRDA) was established
by an Act of Parliament – the Iskandar Regional Development
Authority Act, 2007. Under Section 4 of the Act, the objective of
IRDA is to develop Iskandar Malaysia into a strong and sustainable
metropolis of international standing.
IRDA Office

IRDA was set up in February 2007. As a statutory body under
the Federal Government, IRDA plays a pivotal role in the
development of Iskandar Malaysia.

Promotion

The IRDA Act 2007 highlights its functions and responsibilities
in relation to establishing national policies, directions and
strategies for the development of the corridor.

• Promotion of Iskandar Malaysia to the general public
and potential investors in both local as well as
international markets.

The core functions and primary roles of IRDA can be
summarised as follows:

• Monitoring and aligning sector developments and
required enablers in line with the Iskandar Malaysia vision.

Planning

Facilitation

• Integrating and recommending planning policies of
key partners, Federal and State governments, and
other agencies to advance and realise the vision
of Iskandar Malaysia.

• Providing consultancy and information on investment
support in Iskandar Malaysia.

• Identifying and developing strategies to enhance
infrastructure, skills, science and technology research
for the development of Iskandar Malaysia.
10

• Serving as the brand guardian of Iskandar Malaysia.

• Acting as the principal coordinating agent on behalf
of relevant government agencies for the processing
and expediting of requisite approvals for investors.
• Assisting existing investors in the resolution of issues
affecting their business environment.
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NURTURING
A THRIVING
METROPOLIS
Vision

To create Iskandar Malaysia as the first
choice to invest, work, live and play.

Mission

To develop Iskandar Malaysia into a
strong and sustainable metropolis of
international standing.

Shared
Values

/ Integrity

/ Envision

/ Enable

We must always do the
right thing ethically and
professionally, regardless
of job security or
popularity and without
fear of scrutiny.

We must have the foresight
to drive the Iskandar
Malaysia vision through
exemplary leadership,
innovativeness and
pro-activeness whilst being
relevant and sensitive
towards our environment
and stakeholders.

We must strive to partner
and collaborate with
all our stakeholders,
especially our investors
to facilitate the
acceleration and
achievement of desired
results and outcomes.

/ Engage

/ International Standing

We must be committed
in engaging all our
stakeholders with humility,
assertiveness and
intelligence to achieve
effective and continuous
communication at all times.

We must benchmark against other sustainable
international standing organizations in terms
of the Iskandar Malaysia vision, our mindset,
our display of the right behaviours and the
deployment of international standards best
practice.
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CO-CHAIRMEN’S
STATEMENTS

Y.A.B. Dato’ Sri Mohd Najib
Tun Abdul Razak
Co-Chairman of IRDA
Prime Minister of Malaysia

“Driving
economic
growth through
sustainable
development”

At the end of 2013, Iskandar Malaysia recorded RM131.64 billion in
cumulative committed investments, with 43% of it realised on the
ground as projects.
This achievement is truly commendable and all sectors – the
government, private and non-governmental organisations, as well
as the community – are to be congratulated for achieving this
milestone.
What is more laudable is how Iskandar Regional Development
Authority (IRDA) is working towards ensuring that all development
in Iskandar Malaysia has to be sustainable. In November 2013,
IRDA launched 10 priority programmes identified in the Iskandar
Malaysia Low Carbon Society Blueprint. These ten programmes
are in the first implementation stage after the blueprint was
launched at the United Nations’ Conference on Climate
Change in Doha, Qatar in November 2012.
Ultimately, the strategies outlined in the blueprint target to reduce
Iskandar Malaysia’s carbon intensity emissions by 50% once it
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The Berthing Area of Puteri Harbour

reaches maturity in 2025. With the reduction in carbon intensity
emissions, the community can expect better health, a more
sustainable economic environment as well as higher quality
of living.
Sustainable development, as defined by the Brundtland Report
released by the United Nations in 1987, is “development that
meets the needs of the present without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs”.
This definition is the very essence and fundamental element
of Iskandar Malaysia’s development plan as the region’s
development is not only about creating opportunities and
creating a better lifestyle for the current population, but also
ensuring our natural resources and environment are preserved
to be enjoyed by the future generation.
Iskandar Malaysia’s development is very much in line with the
national agenda on sustainability, especially under the fourth
thrust of the 10th Malaysia Plan, which is ‘Improving the Standard
and Sustainability of Quality of Life’.

Iskandar Malaysia Studios (PIMS). The first batch of 146 trainees
graduated in May 2013.
As the Prime Minister of Malaysia, and more so the co-chairman of
IRDA, I am proud of how far Iskandar Malaysia has evolved since it
was launched in 2006. The vast potential of this economic corridor
has not gone unnoticed and its value proposition continues to
escalate in the eyes of global investors.
As Iskandar Malaysia continues to brighten up, we must continue
to meet challenges and deliver results which would achieve vision
of Iskandar Malaysia and crystallise it for the world to behold and
model against.
Once again, congratulations to IRDA and all the partners of
Iskandar Malaysia.
May we achieve in next year, an even better performance than
what we have attained today.

Through this agenda, we hope to improve the lives of Malaysians
through better access to healthcare, public transportation,
electricity and water. Measures are also taken to create a caring
society and promote community well-being.
IRDA also looks into sustainability from the social point of view
and that is evident in the roll-out of various talent development
programmes such as the Iskandar Malaysia Creative Industry
Talent Development Programmes to train 900 local film crews to
work with large-scale international film production in Pinewood
13

CO-CHAIRMEN’S
STATEMENTS

Y.A.B. Dato’ Mohamed
Khaled bin Nordin
Co-Chairman of IRDA
Chief Minister of Johor

While Iskandar Malaysia continues to soar and make headlines
with its economic achievements, there is an enormous, and
perhaps even more important element which is seldom
highlighted – the social goals of Iskandar Malaysia.

“Prospering
the people
through
continued
social
development”
14

The economic development of Iskandar Malaysia is intended
to benefit the many and while construction projects mushroom
across the landscape, numerous social development programmes
are also quietly making headway in villages, housing estates,
schools, and training centres.
By coordinating the efforts of various Government agencies,
Iskandar Regional Development Authority (IRDA) is helping
local communities share the benefits of economic growth. This
socio-economic transformation may not be as obvious as the
transformation of the region’s infrastructure or city skyline,
but it is a key strategic pillar of Iskandar Malaysia.
The five social goals of Iskandar Malaysia are to achieve socioeconomic mobility, equitable distribution of wealth, nurture
and cultivate a caring society, promote racial integration and
harmony as well as increasing the quality of life through better job
opportunities and moving up the value chain.
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Pulau Kukup

As the Chief Minister of Johor and IRDA Co-Chairman, I believe
Iskandar Malaysia is on the right track to achieve these goals.
While others focus on hard infrastructure, IRDA focuses on the
soft infrastructure. Ultimately, it is our society which is going to
sustain Iskandar Malaysia and therefore every Johorean should
benefit from the city we are building.
I am pleased to note that in 2013, IRDA, supported by the relevant
Government agencies, have successfully implemented various
social programmes, most notably, the launch of the Kawan
Iskandar Malaysia (KIM) programme, which is a community
empowerment programme to assist the targeted group to move
up the economic value chain through social enterprises. Through
this programme, a total of 14 mukims involving thousands of
families will be touched and trained.
Throughout 2013, many other programmes were carried out which
involved reaching out to the community to help them participate
actively and gain direct and indirect benefits from Iskandar
Malaysia’s development.
The community, both young and old were also engaged through
various platforms such as the Iskandar Learning Festival, Iskandar
Malaysia Chinese Conference, affordable housing exhibitions and
career fairs.

A total of 1,763 Auxiliary Police (AP) have been recruited
throughout Iskandar Malaysia. Meanwhile, 250 new closed circuit
TV (CCTV) cameras have been installed in Nusajaya and North
Johor Bahru Police Districts, and 165 more within Kulai Police
District. About 180,000 closed circuit TV (CCTV) cameras have
been installed in Iskandar Malaysia by the Government, private
parties or individuals.
All initiatives carried out by IRDA are in line with the Johor State
Government’s social agenda in addressing the five key areas
following a study called ‘Suara Hati Johor’. The study revealed
that Johoreans’ main focuses were housing, security, religion,
infrastructure and economy.
I hope and urge IRDA to sustain, if not accelerate, the momentum
of these activities to ensure everyone gets touched and have
their lives changed by these programmes. Ultimately, we aim to
contribute to the overall social development model across the
country.
As we look into 2014 for new initiatives which would touch the lives
of the Rakyat, I would like to convey my heartiest congratulations
to IRDA and all relevant agencies for a job well done in 2013.

Besides that, there are also efforts to ensure the people feel
safe, through the roll-out of programmes identified in the Safety
and Security Blueprint for Iskandar Malaysia. Safety and security
measures and initiatives in Iskandar Malaysia are progressing well
with a total of 18 Community Police Posts completed in Johor
Bahru city, Kulaijaya, Seri Alam and Nusajaya.
15

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
STATEMENT

Y.Bhg. Datuk Ismail bin
Ibrahim
Chief Executive of IRDA

Firstly, I would like to thank both the Federal and State
governments, as well as our partners and relevant agencies for
their continuous support towards Iskandar Malaysia and the
initiatives planned and implemented throughout 2013.

“Riding the
waves of
development”

While IRDA’s 2013 journey was all about sustaining the momentum
Iskandar Malaysia had built during 2012’s Tipping Point, it was
also about the rolling-out of various initiatives and programmes
which had been planned the year before. As we lay out the
achievements before us, it is truly one which we recall with pride.
As at 31 December 2013, Iskandar Malaysia recorded total
cumulative committed investments of RM131.64 billion in various
sectors, of which, RM56.32 billion or 43% of these investments have
been realised.
Of the total cumulative committed investments, 64% (RM84.62
billion) are domestic investments while 36% (RM47.02 billion)
came from foreign investors.
Iskandar Malaysia also saw the continuation of the green agenda
through the roll-out of ten priority programmes identified in the
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Pasir Gudang

Low Carbon Society Blueprint for Iskandar Malaysia was launched
in November 2012.
The growth of investments in Iskandar Malaysia has also generated
an increase in economic activities and correspondingly, further
demand for employees from Johor. Data from Jobs Malaysia
showed that a total of 98,440 jobs were created in Iskandar
Malaysia in 2013. In terms of sector, electrical and electronics
offered 46% of the total jobs created followed by construction
(27.9%), food and agricultural product processing (12.6%) and
hospitality & tourism (8.3%).
The growth of small and medium enterprises (SMEs) in Iskandar
Malaysia has also seen significant increase, with 341,152
registered SME businesses under the Companies Commission of
Malaysia (SSM) as of 2011. These figures might indicate a strong
enterprising spirit in Iskandar Malaysia. SMEs account for about
90% of establishments in the services sector in Johor state and
contribution of the services sector to the GDP is increasing steadily.
Iskandar Malaysia Creative Industry Talent Development
Programme was launched in January 2013 to train 900 local film
crews to work with large-scale international film production in
Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia Studios (PIMS). The first batch of
146 trainees graduated in May 2013.

target group of this socio-economic programme are low-income
families with a total household income of less than RM3,000
per month each.
We are also pleased to note that the take-up rate of Rumah
Iskandar Malaysia has been tremendously encouraging. Of the
1,500 apartment units built and launched in December 2011,
a total of 1,016 units have been rented out at Rumah Iskandar
Malaysia.
Our efforts to promote the usage of public transportation have
also borne fruit. Bas Iskandar Malaysia has recorded an average
ridership of more than 140,000 passengers per month while Bas
Ekspress Transit (BeXTRA) recorded an average ridership of 219,446
passengers per month. The public’s negative perception towards
public transportation has improved and we will continue efforts to
create ways to help mobility in Iskandar Malaysia.
My wholehearted thanks to all who have made Iskandar Malaysia
grow from strength to strength. Moving forward, let us continue
to work hand-in-hand to bring Iskandar Malaysia to even greater
heights.

Another gratified achievement is the launch of community
driven socio-economic projects for 14 mukims in Iskandar
Malaysia. The Kawan Iskandar Malaysia (KIM) Programme is an
initiative to increase active participation of the local communities
in the economic activities in Iskandar Malaysia. Essentially, the
17
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MEMBERS
OF THE
AUTHORITY &
COMMITTEES

Kota Iskandar

MEMBERS OF THE
AUTHORITY PROFILES
As at 31 December 2013

As stipulated in the Act,
IRDA is governed by board
members officially known
as the Authority. The primary
responsibility of the Authority
includes but is not limited
to the setting of strategies,
directions and policies relating
to the development within
Iskandar Malaysia and
other functions in
connection therewith.

Y.A.B. DATO’ SRI
MOHD NAJIB TUN
ABDUL RAZAK

Y.BHG. DATO’ HAJI
ABDUL GHANI BIN
OTHMAN

Prime Minister of Malaysia

Chief Minister of Johor
(Until 13 May 2013)

The Authority consists of the following
members:

The Co-Chairmen:
• Prime Minister of Malaysia
• Chief Minister of Johor
Two representatives from the
Federal Government:
• Secretary-General of Treasury
• Director-General of Economic
Planning Unit
Two representatives from the
Johor State Government:
• State Secretary of Johor
• Director of State Economic
Planning Unit
Two professional representatives
are appointed by the Co-Chairmen
based on the representatives’ knowledge,
experience, academic qualifications,
proven capacity and professionalism
in matters relating to banking, finance,
planning, local government, commerce,
business or administration.
The Authority is assisted by an Executive
Committee (EXCO), which consists of nine
Members appointed by the Authority.
The day-to-day administration of IRDA is
entrusted to the Chief Executive who is
also the Secretary to the Authority. In 2013,
the Authority only met once, in November.
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Prior to the premiership, Y.A.B. Dato’ Sri
Mohd Najib Tun Abdul Razak was the
Deputy Prime Minister of Malaysia from
2004. He was appointed twice as the
Minister of Defence from 1990 – 1995
and from 1999 – 2008.
Other cabinet ministerial positions held
by him include Minister of Education
(1995 – 1999), Minister of Youth and Sports
(1987 – 1990) and Minister of Culture, Youth
and Sports (1986 – 1987). He also served as
Chief Minister of Pahang from 1982 – 1986.
Prior to that, he was the Deputy Minister
of Finance (1981 – 1982), Deputy Minister
of Education (1980 – 1981) and Deputy
Minister of Energy, Telecommunications
and Posts (1978 – 1980).
Y.A.B. Dato’ Sri pursued his tertiary
education at the University of Nottingham,
UK where he graduated in 1974 in
Industrial Economics.

Y.Bhg. Dato’ Haji Abdul Ghani bin Othman
is the former Chief Minister of the state of
Johor, a position he held since 1995 until
13 May 2013.
He was previously the Minister of Youth
and Sports at the Federal Government
level (1993 – 1995). Prior to that, he was
the Deputy Minister of Finance (1990
– 1993) and Deputy Minister of Energy,
Telecommunications and Posts (1987
– 1990).
Y.Bhg. Dato’ was a Colombo Plan scholar
and graduated with an Honours degree
in Economics from La Trobe University,
Melbourne, Australia and a Master’s
degree in Political Economy from the
University of Queensland, Brisbane,
Australia. He holds an Honorary Doctorate
of Laws from La Trobe University from 1998.
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Y.A.B. DATO’
MOHAMED KHALED
BIN NORDIN
Chief Minister of Johor
(Appointed on 14 May 2013)

Y.A.B. Dato’ Mohamad Khaled bin Nordin is the Chief
Minister of Johor. After completing law school at University
of Malaya,Y.A.B. Dato’ then joined the Department of
Law at Petronas before being appointed as Political
Secretary to the Minister of Federal Territories,Y.B. Tan Sri
Datuk Seri Sharir Abdul Samad in 1983 and continued in
this position until the end Y.B. Tan Sri Shahrir’s stint as Federal
Minister in 1987.
He then joined the legal and business world but
continued to remain active in politics. Starting as UMNO
Youth Chief of Johor Bahru, he was later elected as
UMNO Division Chief in 1995 – 1998 when Y.B. Tan Sri Shahrir
was suspended from UMNO. However, when Y.B. Tan Sri
Shahrir returned, he handed the Division Chief position
back and went on to hold the position of Deputy UMNO
Division Chief (1998 – 2003). At the central division, he
was elected as UMNO Youth EXCO in 1993 and then
successfully defended the same seat in the 1996 elections
until the end of 2000.
His career as a member of Parliament started in 1990
when he won the parliamentary seat in Johor Bahru.
He remained a Member of Parliament for Johor Bahru
over three consecutive terms until switching to the Pasir
Gudang parliamentary seat in the 2004 general election
and once served in the new division as the UMNO Chief
of Pasir Gudang following the revision of constituencies.
At the 12th general election held in March 2008, he again
defended the Pasir Gudang parliamentary seat for the
second term. At the federal level, he was first elected in
the Federal Government as Deputy Minister of Public
Works after the 1999 general election. In April 2004 he was
appointed as a Minister in the Ministry of Entrepreneur
and Cooperative Development. After the 12th general
election, he was appointed as the Minister of Higher
Education.

Y.BHG. TAN SRI
DR. MOHD IRWAN
SERIGAR BIN
ABDULLAH

Y.BHG. DATUK
DR. RAHAMAT
BIVI BINTI
YUSOFF

Secretary-General of Treasury
in Ministry of Finance

Director-General of
Economic Planning Unit,
Prime Minister’s Department

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dr. Mohd Irwan
Serigar bin Abdullah is the current
Secretary-General of Treasury,
Ministry of Finance. He began his
career in the public sector at the
Economic Planning Unit (EPU) of the
Prime Minister’s Department in 1984.
During his tenure at EPU, he served
in various capacities in the areas of
urban development, energy and
privatisation.
He joined the Ministry of Finance in
October 2003 where he held various
positions in the Economic Division,
and later as Section Head, Deputy
Secretary and Secretary of the
Economic Analysis and International
Division (Macro Economy). He then
served in the Ministry of Finance as
Deputy Secretary-General (Policy)
from December 2010 to August
2012, before being appointed as the
Secretary-General of Treasury.

Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Rahamat Bivi binti
Yusoff is currently the Director-General
of the Economic Planning Unit.
Having served for more than 30 years
in the Malaysian Public Service, she
was the Deputy Secretary-General
(System & Control) in the Ministry of
Finance, prior to her appointment in
October 2011.
She holds a Doctorate from the
Australian National University and
has a Masters in Economics from the
University of Western Michigan, USA.

He holds a PhD in Economics from
the International Islamic University of
Malaysia and a Masters of Science in
Energy Management and Policy from
the University of Pennsylvania, USA.
He also received his Bachelor of Arts
(Hons) degree in Demography from
the University of Malaya.
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MEMBERS OF THE
AUTHORITY PROFILES
As at 31 December 2013

Y.B. DATO’ HAJI
OBET BIN TAWIL

TUAN HAJI ELIAS
BIN HASRAN

Y.BHG. TAN SRI
DATO’ LIEW KEE SIN

State Secretary of Johor

Director of Johor State Economic
Planning Unit

President/Chief Executive Officer
of SP Setia Berhad

Y.B. Dato’ Haji Obet bin Tawil holds the
position of State Secretary of Johor since
March 2011.
Prior to that, he was the Director of Johor
Land and Mines Department. He has been
serving in the public sector since 1979, in
various government agencies including
Land Office of Mersing, Kluang and Muar.
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce
(Accountancy) from Universiti
Kebangsaan Malaysia.

Tuan Haji Elias bin Hasran was appointed
as the Director of Johor State Economic
Planning Unit, after Tuan Haji Hamsan bin
Saringat who retired in December 2011.
He began his service in Johor Civil Service
in 1981 and has been serving the Johor
State Government for more than 30 years.
Prior to his appointment, he was the
District Officer for Kulai and the Director
of Jabatan Agama Johor.
He holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
(Hons) from Universiti Kebangsaan
Malaysia.

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Liew Kee Sin, aged 54,
holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree
(Business Administration) from University
of Malaya, Malaysia. After graduating in
1981, he began his career as a banker in
a local merchant bank. After five years
in the banking industry, he decided on
a career change and joined a property
development company. In 1990, he set
up his own company called Syarikat
Kemajuan Jerai Sdn Bhd and went on
to develop Bukit Indah Ampang.
On 15 January 1996, he was appointed
Group Managing Director of SP Setia
Berhad following the buying over
of Syarikat Kemajuan Jerai. He was
instrumental in initiating the transfer of
listing status of S P Setia from the Second
Board to the Main Board of the Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange (now Bursa
Malaysia). Since then, he has spearheaded
many positive changes and implemented
various innovative plans which have driven
the Group’s growth from strength
to strength.
Appointed on 1 October 2013.
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Y.BHG. TAN
SRI DATO’ NOR
MOHAMED YAKCOP

Y.BHG. DATUK
ISMAIL BIN
IBRAHIM

Deputy Chairman of Khazanah
Nasional Berhad

Chief Executive of IRDA

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Nor Mohamed Yakcop was appointed Deputy
Chairman of Khazanah Nasional on 3 June 2013 and has been
a Director of Khazanah Nasional since 12 November 2002. He
has also been appointed as the Chairman of the upcoming
Khazanah Research Institute. He was previously a minister in the
Prime Minister’s Department after serving as the Second Finance
Minister until 9 April 2009. Prior to this, he was the Special Economic
Adviser to the Prime Minister.
Apart from a short period in the private sector in the late 1990’s,
he was with Bank Negara Malaysia from 1968 – 2000. During his
service with Bank Negara Malaysia, he was responsible for the
implementation of a number of major projects, including the
implementation of Islamic banking in Malaysia, the setting-up
of the bilateral payments mechanism between Bank Negara
Malaysia and Central Banks of South-South countries and the
setting up of the Rating Agency Malaysia Berhad.
As Special Economic Adviser to the Prime Minister, he played
a major role in a number of corporate restructuring exercises,
including United Engineers (Malaysia) Berhad and Malaysia
Airlines System (MAS).
Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ graduated from the University of Malaya with a
Bachelor of Economics (Hons) degree and also from the Catholic
University of Leuven, Belgium with an M.B.A. (cum laude) degree.
Appointed on 1 October 2013.

Born in Muar, Y.Bhg. Datuk Ismail bin Ibrahim received his early
education at the Malay College Kuala Kangsar and went on to
study town planning at the Heriot-Watt University in Edinburgh,
Scotland. He is registered with the Board of Town Planners
Malaysia and started his career in the civil service in 1983 as
a town planning officer attached to the Federal Department
of Town and Country Planning, Ministry of Housing and Local
Government. In 1990 he was awarded the British Council
Fellowship to specialise in Planning Law in Newcastle University,
England.
In April 2003, he was appointed as Penang State Town and
Country Planning Department Director. In February 2006, he was
seconded as Khazanah Nasional’s Senior Vice President of Special
Projects to oversee the planning of the southern economic region
in Johor, known today as Iskandar Malaysia. In January 2009, he
was appointed as Director of Physical Planning Division, Town
and Country Planning Department at its headquarters in Kuala
Lumpur. There, he was tasked to manage the preparation and
revision of the National Physical Plan. That document served as a
key input for the 10th Malaysian Plan. He also served as Secretariat
to the National Physical Planning Council chaired by the Prime
Minister.
Effective 1 January 2010, Y.Bhg. Datuk was appointed as the Chief
Executive of Iskandar Regional Development Authority (IRDA). His
main responsibility is to advise the Prime Minister and Chief Minister
Johor as Co-Chairmen of the Board of IRDA in planning and
implementing the economic, physical and social development
strategies to meet the vision of realising the Iskandar Development
Region as a Strong and Sustainable Metropolis of International
Standing.
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ADVISORY COUNCIL

As at 31 December 2013

The Advisory Council (AC) was established by resolution at the first Authority
Meeting in February 2007. The Council consists of eminent Malaysians and foreign
nationals who are, in the view of the Prime Minister with the concurrence of the
Chief Minister of Johor, in the position to provide advice and guidance to promote
the aspirations of Iskandar Malaysia to be a metropolis of international standing.

Y.A.BHG. TUN
MUSA BIN HITAM

Before becoming Malaysia’s fifth Deputy Prime Minister and
Minister of Home Affairs (1981 – 1986), Y. A. Bhg. Tun Musa bin Hitam
held a number of key government positions, including Chairman
of Federal Land Development Authority (FELDA), Deputy Minister
of Trade & Industry, Minister of Primary Industries and Minister of
Education.
Between 1990 and 1991, he was Malaysia’s Special Envoy to the
United Nations and from 1995 – 2002, the Prime Minister’s Special
Envoy to the Commonwealth Ministerial Action Group (CMAG). He
led Malaysia’s delegation to the UN Commission on Human Rights
from 1993 – 1998 and was Chairman of the 52nd Session of the
Commission in 1995. He has held positions at an international level
various times. These included Chairman of the Commonwealth
Parliamentary Association, member of the Board of United Nations
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation (UNESCO) and
leader of various Commonwealth Missions.
Y.A.Bhg. Tun is currently Chairman of Lion Industries Corporation
Berhad and United Malayan Land Berhad. He is also a Joint
Chairman of Malaysia-China Business Council, Chairman of the
World Islamic Economic Forum, and Chairman of the Eminent
Persons Group on the ASEAN Charter and Special Envoy of the
Commonwealth Secretary-General to the Maldives.
He received a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Malaya, a
Masters from the University of Sussex, UK and is a Fellow at the
CFIA, Harvard University, USA. He also holds honorary Doctorates
from the University of Sussex, UK; Universiti Malaysia Sabah and
the University of Malaya. He is a Fellow of the Malaysian Institute
of Management and Member of the Advisory Board of the
Malaysian Journal of Diplomacy and Foreign Relations.
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Y.BHG. TAN SRI
SAMSUDIN OSMAN

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Samsudin Osman is presently the Chairman of the
Employees’ Provident Fund. Previously, he served as the President
of Putrajaya Corporation from August 2004 to July 2012.
He has over 37 years of experience in the public sector.
From February 2001 until September 2006, he served as the
Chief Secretary to the Government of Malaysia. Prior to that,
Y.Bhg. Tan Sri was the Director-General of Public Services
Department.
Other positions held were Secretary-General, Ministry of Home
Affairs; Secretary-General of the Ministry of Domestic Trade and
Consumer Affairs; Federal Secretary of Sabah (1990); Deputy
Secretary-General of the Ministry of Transport (1978); Deputy
Director (Academic) of the National Public Administration Institute
(INTAN) (1986 – 1987); Deputy Director (Administration) of INTAN
(1985 – 1986); Head of Finance and Account Management
Centre of INTAN (1982); Special Officer to the Chief Secretary
to the Government of Malaysia (1977) and Assistant Secretary/
Principal Assistant Secretary of the Public Service Department
(1969).
Y.Bhg. Tan Sri has a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) and a Diploma in
Public Administration from the University of Malaya and a Masters
Degree in Public Administration from Pennsylvania State University,
USA.
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Y.BHG. TAN SRI
PANGLIMA
ANDREW L.T. SHENG

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Panglima Andrew L.T. Sheng
is presently the President of Fung Global
Institute. He is also the Chief Adviser to the
China Banking Regulatory Commission
and a Board Member of Khazanah
Nasional Berhad.
He currently serves as a member of the
International Advisory Council of the
China Investment Corporation, the China
Development Bank, the Advisory Council
of Shanghai as an International Financial
Centre and the International Council of
the Freie University, Berlin. He is also an
Adjunct Professor at the Graduate School
of Economics and Management, Tsinghua
University, Beijing and the University of
Malaya, Kuala Lumpur.
In 2009, he became the Pro-Chancellor
of Universiti Tun Abdul Razak. Y.Bhg. Tan
Sri Panglima served as Chairman of the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong from 1998 – 2005, having previously
been a central banker with the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority and Bank Negara
Malaysia. He also worked with the World
Bank from 1989 – 1993. From 2003 – 2005,
he chaired the Technical Committee of
the International Organisation of Securities
Commissions (IOSCO).

MR. KUOK HOCK
NIEN (ROBERT
KUOK)

Mr. Robert Kuok is the Chairman of Kerry
Group Ltd. He retired from most of his
businesses in 2000.
The Kuok Group of Companies is active
in commodity trading, development of
sugar and palm-oil plantations, property
development including hotels as well as
management, logistics, shipping, insurance
and general investments.
The Group consists of a few private
companies and a number of publiclisted companies in Malaysia, Singapore,
Hong Kong, China PRC, Thailand and the
Philippines.

Y.BHG. TAN SRI
KISHU TIRATHRAI

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Kishu Tirathrai is currently a
Court Fellow with the Malaysian Institute
of Management, Fellow of the Malaysian
Institute of Directors, Advisory Council
Member to the Corporate Malaysia
Roundtable and a member of the
Malaysia-British Panel of the Roundtable.
He has served as Director of Bank Negara
Malaysia, the National Productivity
Corporation and the Malaysian IndustryGovernment Group for High Technology.
He was the Founding Chairman of the
Malaysian External Trade Development
Corporation (MATRADE) and an Exco
Member of the Malaysian Crime
Prevention Foundation. He has also served
as a Director of the Malaysian Industrial
Development Corporation (MIDF),
Sampoerna Holdings Bhd and the KL
City ASMIC Unit Trust Management Bhd.
Y.Bhg. Tan Sri holds a Masters in Business
Administration (Hons) from the University
of Bath, UK.
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DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IRDA)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
As at 31 December 2013

The Executive Committee (EXCO) was formed in 2008 to strengthen
the Authority’s performance by helping it to function productively.
It is responsible for approaching operational decisions, which would
normally be under the purview of the Authority.
In 2013, the EXCO met once in February.

CHAIRMAN
Y.Bhg. Dato’ Haji Abdul Ghani bin Othman
Chief Minister of Johor
(Until 13 May 2013)
Y.A.B. Dato’ Mohamed Khaled bin Nordin
Chief Minister of Johor
(Appointed on 14 May 2013)

MEMBERS
Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dr. Mohd Irwan Serigar bin Abdullah
Secretary-General of Treasury in Ministry of Finance
Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Rahamat Bivi binti Yusoff
Director-General of Economic Planning Unit, Prime Minister’s Department
Y.Bhg. Dato’ Ahmad Husni bin Hussain
Director-General of Public Private Partnership Unit, Prime Minister’s Department
Y.B. Dato’ Haji Obet bin Tawil
State Secretary of Johor
Y.B. Dato’ Ahmad Zahri bin Jamil
EXCO for Housing, Local Government, Work and Public Amenities of Johor State
Dr. Nungsari bin Ahmad Radhi
Executive Director, Research and Investment Strategy of Khazanah Nasional Berhad
Y.Bhg. Datuk Ismail bin Ibrahim
Chief Executive of IRDA
Y.Bhg. Dato’ Benjamin bin Hasbie
Federal Commissioner of IRDA
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APPROVALS & IMPLEMENTATION
COMMITTEE
As at 31 December 2013

The Approvals & Implementation Committee (AIC) is chaired by the
Chief Minister of Johor, while Members consist of representatives
from Federal and State agencies.
Under Section
30(4) of the
Act, AIC is
responsible for:

• Identifying proposed major or strategic development and investments in the Iskandar
Development Region;
• Monitoring the status of all approvals in relation to such proposed major or strategic
development and investments;
• Coordinating the roles and activities of all relevant Government Entities to expedite the
implementation of such proposed major or strategic development and investments;
• Identifying any difficulties or issues arising during the implementation of such proposed major
or strategic development and investments, and taking or recommending appropriate steps
and administrative actions to resolve such difficulties or issues;
• Reporting the status of the implementation of such proposed major or strategic
development and investments to the Authority; and
• Performing any other functions or duties delegated to it by the Authority.

In 2013, the AIC met once, in July.

CHAIRMAN
• Y.Bhg. Dato’ Haji Abdul Ghani bin Othman
Chief Minister of Johor
(Until 13 May 2013)
• Y.A.B. Dato’ Mohamed Khaled bin Nordin
Chief Minister of Johor
(Appointed on 14 May 2013)

MEMBERS
• Y.Bhg. Datuk Ismail bin Ibrahim – Chief Executive of IRDA
• Senior Representative – Ministry of Finance (MOF)
• Senior Representative – Companies Commission of Malaysia (CCM)
• Senior Representative – Ministry of Home Affairs (MOHA)
• Senior Representative – Ministry of International Trade & Industry (MITI)
• Senior Representative – Ministry of Natural Resources & Environment (MNRE)
• Senior Representative – Ministry of Works (MOW)
• Senior Representative – Malaysian Investment Development Authority (MIDA)
• Senior Representative – Economic Planning Unit (EPU), Prime Minister’s Department
• Senior Representative – Public Private Partnership Unit (UKAS), Prime Minister’s Department
• Senior Representative – State Economic Planning Unit, Johor
• State Director of Department of Lands and Mines, Johor
• State Town & Country Planning Director, Johor
• IRDA Federal Commissioner
• IRDA State Commissioner
• Presidents of all local councils in Iskandar Malaysia, Johor:
– Mayor of JB City Council, Johor
– President of Johor Bahru Tengah Town Council, Johor
– President of Pasir Gudang Town Council, Johor
– President of Kulai Town Council, Johor
– President of Pontian District Council, Johor
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The Causeway

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
As at 31 December 2013

DATUK ISMAIL
BIN IBRAHIM

DATO’ BENJAMIN
HJ HASBIE

DR. BADRUL
HISHAM BIN
KASSIM

Chief Executive

Federal Commissioner

State Commissioner

Datuk Ismail bin Ibrahim, a true Johorean
at heart, was born in Muar. He received his
early education at the Malay College Kuala
Kangsar, before majoring in Town Planning
at the Heriot-Watt University in Edinburgh,
Scotland. He joined the Malaysian Civil
Service in 1983 and is registered with the
Board of Town Planners. In February 2006,
he was seconded to Khazanah Nasional
Berhad as the Senior Vice President of
special projects and the following year, he
was seconded to IRDA as the Senior Vice
President. He was appointed as the first
Federal Commissioner for the Authority in
October that same year and member of the
Approval and Implementation Committee
(AIC). Datuk Ismail joined IRDA on
1 January 2010 as Chief Executive.
Datuk had previously served as part-time
lecturer in University of Malaya (UM),
International Islamic University (UIA), Universiti
Teknologi Mara (UiTM) and Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia (UTM) between 1993 and
2002. He is currently a Board Member of the
Malaysia Town Planners Board, past Vice
President of the Malaysia Institute of Planners
(MIP), President of MCOBA Southern Chapter
and a Harvard Business School Alumni. He
sits in the Malaysia – Singapore Business
Council and a member of the National
Bio Technology Council. He was conferred
Adjunct Professor with the Faculty of Built
Environment, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia in
2013 until today.
30

Dato’ Benjamin holds a Masters in
Comparative Laws (1996) and an LLB
(Hons) from the International Islamic
University Malaysia (1994). He started his
career as a CID Investigation Officer in
Kuching, Sarawak. He later served at the
Political & Social Desk for the Sarawak
special branch.
In 1994, he was transferred to the Federal
Police Headquarters in Bukit Aman
where he served as the Legal Officer of
the Research & Development Branch
and later as the Assistant Director of
Training (Examination). In 2004, he was
appointed as the Deputy Chief Police
Officer of the Royal Malaysian Police,
Malacca contingent. In 2006, he became
the Commandant of the Royal Police
Malaysia College in Kuala Lumpur. He
has also previously served as the Chief
of Staff (Inspector General of the Police’s
Secretariat) for the Federal Police
Headquarters.
Dato’ Benjamin joined IRDA on 1 May 2009.
He currently heads the Commissioner’s
Office as the Federal Commissioner under
the CEO Office’s Department.

Dr. Badrul holds a law degree (LLB
Hons) from Staffordshire Polytechnic,
MBA from Leicester University, and a
PhD on the regulation of privatised
water companies, from University of
Glamorgan, Wales. His PhD was fully
funded by the Johor State Government.
He joined the Johor Civil Service in
1992 and served at the Johor State
Secretariat. He has since worked in
various State departments such as the
land office and Chief Minister’s Office, as
well as being on secondment to State
and Federal GLCs.
His latest secondment was in 2006, when
he was sent to Khazanah Nasional to join
a task force for Iskandar Malaysia.
Dr. Badrul serves as Deputy Director in
the Johor State Economic Planning Unit.
He is currently the State Commissioner
for IRDA.
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ENGKU AHMAD
KAMEL BIN
ENGKU TAIB

NOR HISHAM BIN
MOHD YUSOF

BALBEER SINGH
JESSY

Head, Economic & Investment

Head, Corporate Development &
Finance

Head, Legal & Secretarial Services

Engku Kamel is a graduate in Mathematics
from Lancaster University, UK (1982) and
has an MBA from Cranfield University,
UK (1990). He benefits from 30 years
of national and regional experience
in banking, oil & gas, IT consultancy,
automotive manufacturing and business
process outsourcing, managing a wide
range of retail banking services, oil and
gas marketing operations and retailing,
and system implementation activities at
local and international levels.
He has also managed a manufacturing
& sales systems environment and
has headed a self-service terminals
outsourcing outfit. At various times, he has
been based in a number of locations in
Malaysia and his work has also taken him
for stints to the UK, Singapore, Thailand
and the Philippines.
Engku Kamel joined IRDA on 1 February
2010, heading the Corporate Performance
Management Division, which oversees
the Corporate Planning and Programme
Management Office functions in IRDA.

Hisham joined IRDA on 1 March 2007 and is
currently overseeing the Corporate Planning,
Finance, Business Process Improvement,
Business Development and Public Private
Partnership Facilitation functions of IRDA.
An accountant by profession with more than
two decades of professional experience
in multinational and government-linked
companies, Hisham has worked in various
areas such as strategic planning, trade
promotions, business development,
corporate governance, risk management
and corporate affairs, obtaining valuable
experiences locally and abroad.
He graduated from the University of Kent,
Canterbury in United Kingdom with a
Second Upper Class Degree in Accounting
and Management Science Degree in
1991. Hisham is an Associate Member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales; a Chartered
Accountant with the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants and a Chartered Member of
the Institite of Internal Auditors (Malaysia).
He is also a Certified Internal Auditor (United
States) and a Certified Risk Management
Assurer (CRMA). He is currently one of the
Southern Regional Committee Member of
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Balbeer holds a Master of Business
Administration from the University of New
England, Australia (2003), an LLB (Hons)
from the University of London and a
Bachelor of Arts (Hons) from University Sains
Malaysia (USM). He also has a Certificate
in Legal Practice (CLP) from the Malaysian
Qualifying Board, having been called to
the Malaysian Bar in 2004.
He started his career working as
an Assistant TV Producer for USM.
Subsequently, he joined national
newspaper, the New Straits Times where
he served in various positions including
Sub Editor, Bureau Chief, Journalist, Acting
Editor and Assistant News Editor.
He later moved into advertising and
became Group Account Director and
General Manager of Public Relations in a
local agency where he managed several
blue-chip accounts. Balbeer joined IRDA
on 20 June 2007 as Assistant Vice President,
Strategic Communications. In July 2011, he
became the Head of Legal & Secretarial
Services.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
As at 31 December 2013

MAIMUNAH BINTI
JAFFAR

NOR HISHAM BIN
HUSSEIN

SAFUAN BIN
YUSOF

Head, Planning & Compliance
Acting Head, Environment

Head, Social Development

Head, Corporate Services

Maimunah graduated from the University
of Arizona, Tucson, USA. She has 25 years
of working experience. She worked for
four years in the US as an architect before
returning home in 1992, working with
Arkitek Jururancang Malaysia and later
with AJM Planning and Urban Design
Group as an urban designer.
She was involved in the preparation
of Iskandar Malaysia Comprehensive
Development Plan in 2006 as a consultant
and now oversees the Review of the
document. Maimunah joined IRDA in
2007 and is currently Head of Division for
Planning & Compliance as well as Acting
Head for the Environment Division.
Her responsibilities include ensuring
stakeholders’ alignment to the Iskandar
Malaysia vision by developing and
providing sustainability framework
such as the Iskandar Malaysia Smart
City framework, as well as driving and
facilitating key blueprints initiatives;
advisory on development compliance;
and providing strategic environmental
policy advice and directions for Iskandar
Malaysia through the Green-focused
Agenda.
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Nor Hisham obtained his degree in Social
Science and Humanities from UKM (1991).
He began his career in MBF Berhad in 1992.
Subsequently, he expanded his career
and joined Celcom Berhad where he rose
through the ranks from Human Resources
Development and Operations to HR
Strategy and finally as the Head of Human
Resource Development Division in 2000.
Nor Hisham joined PWC Consulting in
2000, serving as Project Manager in the
Petronas-MISC Business Transformation
Project. He was recruited back to Celcom
in year 2003 and played an instrumental
role in the Manpower Rationalisation and
Merger exercise with TM Touch, a Telekom
Malaysia subsidiary. Nor Hisham joined
IRDA on 1 May 2007 and is responsible for
the development of Iskandar Malaysia’s
Human Capital Blueprint that ensures the
Human Resource and talent requirements
of the nine targeted economic clusters of
Iskandar Malaysia are adequately met.
Nor Hisham is also in charge of monitoring
and facilitating the implementation of
the initiatives formulated under the
Human Capital Blueprint and other
initiatives under the Social Development
Division. Nor Hisham oversaw Strategic
Communications for a period of 10 months
until November 2010.

Safuan obtained his Master’s in Computer
Speech & Language Processing from
Cambridge University, UK (1993). Prior to
his return to Malaysia, Safuan worked with
a large IT company (DEC Ltd) in the UK for
about one year. He then started his career
as an Analyst Programmer in Shell Malaysia
in 1993.
He has over 20 years of experience in
ICT and among the companies that
he has worked with are EON Berhad,
MISC Berhad, British American Tobacco
(M) Berhad, DHL and Titan Chemicals
Corporation Berhad. Safuan joined IRDA
in March 2009 as Chief Information Officer.
Safuan is also in charge of monitoring
the implementation of the ICT Blueprint for
Iskandar Malaysia. The blueprint outlines
the programmes to make Iskandar
Malaysia’s ICT infrastructure world class by
2020.
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HANIZAH BINTI
MUHAMMAD

RUGAYAH YASMIN
BINTI IBRAHIM

MOHD REDZUAN
BIN MOHD SOFIAN

Head, Internal Audit

Head, Human Capital Management

Head, Business Eco-System Division

Hanizah holds an Accounting Degree
from Lancashire Polytechnic, Preston and
is a Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) and
a Chartered Member of the Institute of
Internal Auditors Malaysia (CMIIA). Upon
graduation, she began her career working
in a chartered accountancy firm in the
United Kingdom. She subsequently joined
Malaysia National Insurance and served
as the Head of Treasury in the finance
division. Her career in internal audit and
risk management began when she joined
Sapura Holdings Sdn Bhd.
She has over 19 years of experience and
has served in Pengurusan Danaharta
Nasional Berhad and Faber Group
Berhad, where she has held various
executive positions in internal audit.
Hanizah joined IRDA on 16 November 2009
and is responsible for the internal audit
function. She reports directly to the Audit
Committee.

Rugayah obtained her degree in Business
Administration from the University of Ohio,
Athens, USA (1983). Her career in Human
Resources began in 1983 when she joined
Advanced Micro Devices, a multinational
company in Penang, as a Human
Resource Officer. In 1989, she joined Projek
Lebuhraya Utara Selatan (PLUS) Berhad, a
company under the Renong Group, as an
Assistant Manager where she was tasked
to oversee the compensation and benefits
unit under the Human Resource Division.
Rugayah was later transferred to Projek
Penyelenggaraan Lebuhraya Berhad
(PROPEL) in 1995 to head the Human
Resources and Administration Division. The
following year she was headhunted to join
Lingkaran Trans Kota Sdn.Bhd (LITRAK), an
associate company of GAMUDA Group.

Redzuan graduated from the
Northwestern University, USA, with
a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemical
Engineering. He went on to further his
tertiary education at the University of
Birmingham, UK, where he attained his
Masters in Business Administration (MBA).
He is a trained Master Trainer and a
member of the Chartered Institute of
Personnel and Development (CIPD) in the
UK. He started his career with Petronas
as an engineer and went on to be Chief
Operating Officer of Kurita Chemicals in
Japan. He also held the position of Chief
Operating Officer at the Arab Economics
and Business Group.

In 2004, she joined Pos Malaysia Berhad
as the Deputy General Manager directly
involved in the transformation intiatives.
Rugayah joined IRDA on 5 September 2007
as the Vice President of Human Capital
Management. By July 2010, she became
the Head of Human Capital Management.
Rugayah is responsible for all Human
Capital Matters within IRDA which involve
organising, integrating and directing all
human capital management activities.

33

Annual Report

2013

ISKANDAR REGIONAL
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IRDA)

Puteri Harbour

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
As at 31 December 2013

MOHAMAD BIN
SA’ELAL

IZHAR HIFNEI
BIN ISMAIL

Head, Projects & Programme
Management Office

Special Officer to the Chief Executive
Acting Head, Strategic Communications

Mohamad graduated with a Bachelor of Civil Engineering from
the MARA University of Technology (1982). He is a registered
trainer with CIPD, UK and a member of the Malaysian Society
of Adjudicators, in collaboration with Construction Industry
Development Board (CIDB), he was involved in the training of
contractors and construction site employees.
He regularly presents papers in seminars and conferences both
locally and abroad as well as serving as a moderator to focus
group discussions, awareness programmes and stakeholder
engagements. Mohamed has more than 25 years experience in
senior positions with various property development companies in
Malaysia.
He has vast experience in the planning and execution of various
development projects, such as The Curve, Royale Damansara
Hotel, Ikea Mutiara Damansara and the University of Nottingham,
Malaysia Campus in Selangor, Kota Iskandar and Puteri Harbour
in Nusajaya, Johor and others. Mohamad was appointed as the
Head of Integrated Planning, IRDA on 17 February 2010. He leads
the team in the formulation of policy and strategy on land use
planning, environment, infrastructure, transportation and safety
& security for Iskandar Malaysia. He also sits on the Board of
Prisma Harta Sdn Bhd. As the Head of Projects and Programme
Management Office, he is responsible for the implementation and
monitoring of all projects implemented by IRDA.

Izhar Hifnei graduated from Liverpool John Moores University,
UK with a Bachelor of Laws (Hons.) degree in 1994, and
subsequently received a Master of Laws Degree in International
Business Studies from Exeter University, United Kingdom in 1995.
He began his career in Amanah Merchant Bank Berhad in
November 1995. In May 1998, Izhar joined the founding team
of Pengurusan Danaharta Nasional Berhad (“Danaharta”),
the national agency for resolution of non-performing loans,
where he served in the legal department and corporate
communications department before he was appointed special
assistant to the Managing Director of Danaharta, with roles in
government liaison and stakeholder management.
In July 2005, Izhar joined Malaysian Biotechnology Corporation
Sdn Bhd, the national agency for the development and
promotion of biotechnology industry, where he managed
incentives and grants for qualifying biotechnology companies.
He was also actively involved in the promotion of Malaysian
biotechnology companies internationally and worked closely
with industry promotion agencies and universities. In September
2008, Izhar was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of
Sanggar SAINS Sdn Bhd, a company set up by Universiti Sains
Malaysia (USM) to initiate the development of sains@usm, a
proposed science park in Pulau Pinang. Izhar also worked
closely with the Innovations Office of USM in identifying and
nurturing research & development products and outcomes that
have the potential to be commercialised.
In August 2011, Izhar joined IRDA as a Senior Vice President in
Strategic Communications Division, with main responsibilities in
stakeholder management. Izhar was appointed Special Officer
to the Chief Executive of IRDA and Acting Head of Strategic
Communications Division in January 2013.
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS
February
The internationallyacclaimed 18th Pasir
Gudang World Kite Festival,
which is said to be the
largest-of-its-kind in the
world was held at Bukit
Layang-Layang with the
participation of 180 kite-flyers
from 25 countries.

Opening Ceremony of
Marlborough College
Malaysia by H.R.H. Raja
Zarith Sofia, consort to
H.R.H. Sultan of Johor.

July
April

RM111.37
billion

IRDA announced
Iskandar Malaysia’s
1st Quarter 2013
new investments of
RM5.06 billion and
cumulative committed
investments of
RM111.37 billion.

May

Ground Breaking
Ceremony of University of
Reading Malaysia (UoRM).

The launch of Afiniti
Medini, Urban Wellness
Centre at Medini North
and Avira Resort Wellness
Centre at Medini
Central.

March
Participated in the 2nd
Global Free Trade &
Special Economic Zone’s
Exhibition & Summit in
Kuala Lumpur. IRDA further
hosted a delegation for a
visit to Iskandar Malaysia.

Opening of University of
Southampton Malaysia
Campus (USMC).
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More than 320 local and
foreign investors and
stakeholders attended
the 1st Iskandar
Malaysia Metropolis
Forum at KSL Resort
Hotel in Johor Bahru,
organised by IRDA.

Participated in Malay
Muslim Business
Conference (MMBC)
at Resorts World
Convention Centre,
Singapore.

June
The Social
Development
Committee held
their annual meeting
chaired by Y.A.B.
Johor Chief Minister.
Participated in MIDA Trade
& Investment mission to
Japan and Korea.

RM118.93
billion

September

IRDA announced
Iskandar Malaysia’s
2nd Quarter 2013 new
investments of RM7.56
billion and cumulative
committed investments
of RM118.93 billion.
IRDA hosted Iftar for
90 people from poor
families and the less
fortunate from Iskandar
Malaysia’s five flagship
zones. They received
contributions in cash
and in-kind.
Johor Bahru
Transformation Open
Day at Galleria, Kotaraya
JB, co-organised with
Majlis Bandaraya Johor
Bahru (MBJB).

August

IRDA played host to
2,000 guests at its Hari
Raya Open Houses at
The Royale Chulan Hotel
Kuala Lumpur and
Thistle Johor Bahru.

IRDA participated in
the PSKLM International
Expressway Conference
& Exhibition (PIECE) 2013
at Persada Johor.

Signing Ceremony of
the Memorandum of
Agreement between
Johor Corporation
(JCorp) and the
State Government for
the development of
low-cost & affordable
homes.
First batch of 14
Netherlands Maritime
Institute of Technology
(NMIT) students
completed
their diploma
programme.
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October
October

November

RM128.21
billion
The Iskandar Malaysia
Comprehensive
Development Plan
(CDP) Open Day
was held on 21 & 22
September 2013 at
AEON Bukit Indah, JB.
Themed “Your Future –
Have a say in your future
in Nusajaya”, members
of the public were
invited to participate
in the Bus Rapid Transit
(BRT) & Rapid Transit
System (RTS) public
transportation survey.

IRDA announced
Iskandar Malaysia’s
3rd Quarter 2013 new
investments of RM9.28
million and cumulative
committed investments
of RM128.21 billion
from 2006 until 30
September 2013.

IRDA Youth Event was
held on 26 October
2013 with the theme
of Iskandar Malaysia:
Future City of Arts. It
was attended by more
than 3,000 people.

H.R.H. Raja Zarith Sofia,
consort to H.R.H. Sultan
of Johor launched
the Iskandar Malaysia
Eco-Tourism Summit at
Persada Johor.
Ground breaking
ceremony of Medan
Selera Iskandar in
Gelang Patah by
Y.A.B. Johor Chief
Minister.

Iskandar Malaysia
was featured under
the Tourism Malaysia
pavilion at the World
Travel Market in London.

46th EAROPH Regional
Congress & Iskandar
Malaysia Sustainable
Summit (IMSS) – 19 to 20
November 2013 at
Thistle Johor Bahru.
The opening of
Legoland Waterpark.

November

Launching of Agro and
Eco-Tourism Project at
Kg. Kong Kong Laut
by Y.A.B. Johor Chief
Minister.

December

The Management
Development Institute
of Singapore made its
footprint in Iskandar
Malaysia’s Educity with
the groundbreaking
of its RM300 million
Malaysian campus
launched by Y.A.B.
Deputy Prime Minister.

Participated in MIDA
Trade Mission to Hong
Kong and Shanghai,
China.

Y.A.B. Johor Chief
Minister launched
Eco-Tourism project
at Kampung Sungai
Melayu, Johor Bahru.

Hershey’s announced
its RM816 million
investment for a
state-of-the-art
confectionery plant in
Iskandar Malaysia.

The launch of Iskandar
Malaysia mobile app
and Iskandar Malaysia
Low Carbon Society
Implementation Book
by Y.A.B. Prime Minister.
The 10th Johor Bahru
10K Run was held on
10 November 2013 and
saw the participation of
1,000 runners from more
than 10 countries.

The Malaysia Singapore
Joint Ministerial
Committee for Iskandar
Malaysia (JMCIM)
met on transport
matters in Nusajaya
on 6 December and
accepted the Joint
Engineering Study
Phase 1 report on the
Singapore-Johor Bahru
Rapid Transit System
(RTS) link.
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ORGANISATION CHART
Members of the
Authority

Chief Executive
Datuk Ismail Ibrahim

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Commissioners Office
Dato’ Benjamin / Dr. Badrul

Internal Audit
Hanizah Muhammad

Corporate Dev. & Finance
Nor Hisham Mohd Yusof

Projects & PMO
Mohamad Sae’lal

Business Eco System
Mohd Redzuan Mohd Sofian

Planning & Compliance
Maimunah Jaffar

Economics & Investment
Engku Ahmad Kamel
Engku Taib

Social Development
Nor Hisham Hussein

Iskandar Service Centre
Mohamad Sae’lal
(Acting Head)

Environment
Maimunah Jaffar
(Acting Head)

Strategic Communications
Izhar Hifnei Ismail
(Acting Head)

SUPPORT

Human Capital Management
Rugayah Yasmin Ibrahim
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Corporate Services
Safuan Yusof

Legal & Secretarial Services
Balbeer Singh Jessy

ISKANDAR REGIONAL
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IRDA)

Annual Report

2013

DIVISIONAL FUNCTIONS
No
1.

Division
Commissioner’s Office

Main Functions
To liaise with and coordinate all relevant ministries, departments, offices, agencies,
authorities, commissions, committees, boards, councils or other agencies, corporate or noncorporate, of the Federal and State Governments, in order to expedite the issuance or grant
of all approvals required or available under the Federal and State Laws.

2.

Internal Audit

Assist the Audit Committee to effectively discharge their stewardship and oversight
responsibilities to maintain sound system of internal control to achieve the organisation’s
objectives.

3.

Corporate Development
& Finance

Develop IRDA strategic corporate annual business plan and risk assessment, financial
and treasury management, enhance business processes with stakeholders, Public Private
Partnership Facilitation and commercialisation of public infrastructure and services, and
develop/identify viable business opportunities and business models leading to income
– generating activities.

4.

Business Eco-System

Strengthen and accelerate the growth of SME and business eco-system to support
the development of the 9 promoted sectors and develop/coordinate Human Capital
requirements in Iskandar Malaysia.

5.

Economics

Conduct business intelligence, strategic planning and development of 9 promoted sectors,
marketing planning and coordinate and facilitate strategic enablers.

6.

Projects & PMO

Implement and monitor strategic projects from award to handing over stage, provide project
management support and conduct project outcome and benefit realisation study.

7.

Planning & Compliance

Ensure stakeholders’ alignment to Iskandar Malaysia vision by developing and provide
sustainability framework through integrated initiatives, including monitoring and
implementation of all blueprints initiatives.

8.

Social Development

Enhance the participation of local population in the anticipated economic growth and
ensure equitable distribution of wealth among various groups and races through community
development, economy and social inclusion and asset and wealth sharing.

9.

Iskandar Service Centre

The Iskandar Service Centre (ISC) was set up in 2007 to provide comprehensive facilitation
and processing services that is one of the critical components in determining the overall
speed of development in Iskandar Malaysia.

10.

Environment

Provide excellent and robust strategic environmental policy advice and directions for
Iskandar Malaysia and IRDA Divisions through the Green-focused Agenda; and oversee the
implementation of IRDA’s Low Carbon Society Blueprint.

11.

Strategic
Communications

Create a strong brand for Iskandar Malaysia and the 9 promoted sectors through integrated
communication plan in advocating the vision of Iskandar Malaysia through effective
engagement with stakeholders and media.

12.

Human Capital
Management

Adopt and implement HR best practices for the organization and maintain a culture of
‘people excellence’ through human capital deliveries and initiatives.

13.

Corporate Services

Provide excellent office administration services, up-to-date ICT infrastructure and business
application and efficient procurement and contract processes.

14.

Legal & Secretarial
Services

Provide legal services, guidance and advice to IRDA and its divisions with a great number of
different legal matters from contract management, business development, litigation, federal &
state government affairs, and much more arising in administrative function of IRDA as federal
agency, pursuant to IRDA Act 2007, as well as providing efficient secretarial services.
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DRIVING SUCCESS
THROUGH
SUSTAINABILITY
The 2013 Iskandar Regional Development Authority
(IRDA) Annual Report is anchored on the theme of
sustainability that serves as the basis for all strategies
within the Iskandar Malaysia development framework.
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DRIVING SUCCESS THROUGH SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainable developments in Iskandar Malaysia take into consideration the existing needs and also future concerns arising from the
rapid development that is taking place. These focus on sustainability in the economic, social and environmental elements.
We believe that all three elements are closely interconnected to one another and neglecting one would be detrimental to the other
two as well. This is why the planning and execution of Iskandar Malaysia’s plans ensure a holistic balance of the three elements.

Economy

Environment

Social

Juxtaposing the three elements above, IRDA is able to develop five key result areas that serve as the over-arching objective and
outcome for all strategies within the Iskandar Malaysia development framework.

Key Result Areas:
1. Economic Growth

4. People Development

To ensure high quality investments in the promoted sectors as
well as generating strong growth opportunities for supporting
industries. A conducive business eco-system must be created
for the promoted sectors, with the private sector as the key
driver of all investments.

To train and ensure a talented pool of workforce will be available
to support the economic development and market demands as
well as promoting a first-class mentality through innovation and
knowledge empowerment.

2. Stakeholder Confidence
To create strong belief among stakeholders and ensure
stakeholders exercise shared responsibility in developing
Iskandar Malaysia in a sustainable manner.

3. Delivery Excellence
To provide effective and efficient public service, and world-class
infrastructure, both soft and hard, to benefit the Rakyat and
businesses.
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5. Social and Environmental Sustainability
To ensure social balance and equitable distribution of wealth
is balanced with practical environmental management.
This IRDA 2013 Annual Report showcases how these strategies
were translated and implemented on the ground through
execution of projects, initiatives and programmes.
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i. High Quality Investments in Promoted Sectors
ii. Strong Supporting Industries and Business Eco-System
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ECONOMIC GROWTH
i. High Quality Investments in Promoted Sectors
ii. Strong Supporting Industries and Business Eco-System
2013 was a year where the global economy is still struggling for
economic recovery. Economies such as the Eurozone, US and China
have seen some improvements in their economic activities but such
activities are not strong enough to bring these economies out of the
wood.
As for Iskandar Malaysia, though the external environment remains
challenging, Iskandar Malaysia managed to deliver a total
committed investments of RM25.33 billion (or total cumulative
committed investments of RM131.64 billion compared to RM106.31
billion in 2012). Realised investment grew by almost 30% in 2013 as
compared to 16% in 2012.

Investments in the Electrical & Electronics made up more than 50% of
the investments in Iskandar Malaysia, with heavy investments in solar
panels and related products.
Thanks to the support received from the Federal Government,
Hershey’s has announced the setting up of their new plant in
Iskandar Malaysia with investments of RM816 million. This will be their
second largest plant in the world. More investment interest from the
USA can be expected within the food processing industry to support
this project.
We can also expect strong interest in the oil and gas sector
especially spillover linkages from the Pengerang oil and gas hub.

In relation to this, the Economic Intelligence Division and Marketing
& Investment Division of IRDA officially merged on June 1, 2013 to
effectively manage and streamline the performance of the nine
promoted economic sectors in Iskandar Malaysia.

On the other hand, the opening of the LEGOLAND Water Themepark
and the LEGOLAND hotel in the 4th quarter of 2013 provide
complete LEGOLAND experience for visitors in Iskandar Malaysia.

Manufacturing remains the cornerstone of our committed
investments as Johor has attracted the highest investments in
Malaysia with investments of RM14 billion. RM10 billion from the total
investment will be invested in Iskandar Malaysia.

We also saw the opening of new hotels such as the Renaissance
Hotel in Permas Jaya, Granada and the Traders Hotel which will
provide more rooms in Iskandar Malaysia to cater to the increase in
tourist arrivals.

RM’ billion

Cumulative Committed Investment
Year-on-Year

140.00

131.64

130.00
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110.00

33.25
7.31

100.00
84.78

90.00

6.28

80.00
70.00
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41.76
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40.00
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10.00
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35.14

69.48

11.30

5.80
7.10
1.00

5.80
5.50

11.90

2006
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Manufacturing

6.83
8.17
5.05

55.56

6.28

6.28

21.83

16.52

28.79
19.98

14.45
9.11

46.82

21.70

23.65

26.92

2008

2009

2010

Others

43.26

27.30

Properties

31.22

35.07

2011

2012

Government

Investment
Update 2006 –
December 2013

2013 [DEC]

Committed Investment

*Others: Utilities, Emerging Tech, Tourism, Education, Healthcare, Creative, Financial, Logistics, Retail, Industrial.

Trade Missions
Continuous close collaborations with relevant agencies such
as the Ministry of International Trade and Industry (MITI) and
Malaysian Investment and Development Authority (MIDA)
have brought through a more focused approach.
The objective of these missions is to offer an effective platform to
engage international investors and promote Iskandar Malaysia’s
value proposition.
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In 2013, these missions included ASEAN countries such as
Singapore, Indonesia and Thailand, as well as other countries such
as Korea, China, Japan, Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

Outcome
The trade investment missions created a high level of awareness
for Iskandar Malaysia among investors in the global arena, further
strengthening the relationships between IRDA and participating
agencies or parties in this trade investment missions. This high
level of awareness is designed to convince investors to invest in
Iskandar Malaysia.
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MIDA Trade
& Investment
Mission

WIEF 2013

MIDA Trade &
Investment Mission

IMHTH
Technical
Visit

6

Gateway to Islamic
Market, Starting
Business In Malaysia

Technical Visit

5

MIDA Trade Mission
Fact Finding Visit and
Asian Logistics &
Maritime Conference

Halal Trip

3

4

IMITRA

LIST OF OVERSEAS TRADE
INVESTMENT MISSIONS
FOR 2013
1

UNITED KINGDOM

4

• 8 – 12 Jan: Halal Trip to Bangkok,
Thailand

• 29 – 30 Oct: 9th World Islamic Economic Forum
(WIEF) 2013, London, United Kingdom

2

GERMANY, FRANCE &
NETHERLANDS

5

• 3 – 6 Sept: MIDA Trade Mission to
Hong Kong & Shanghai, China
• 4 – 9 Nov: Fact Finding Visit and Asian
Logistics & Maritime Conference,
Hong Kong, China

INDONESIA
Iskandar Malaysia-Indonesia Trans-Regional
Investment Promotion (IMITRA), Indonesia
• 30 Jan – 1 Feb: Surabaya

CHINA
• 26 Feb – 1 Mar: Technical visit to Linyi,
Shandong, China

• 4 – 14 Oct: Iskandar Malaysia Halal Technology
Hub (IMHTH) technical visit to Germany, France &
Netherlands

3

THAILAND

6

JAPAN
• 29 Jun – 5 Jul: MIDA Trade & Investment
mission to Tokyo, Japan

• 18 – 20 Mar: Surabaya
• Apr: Jakarta

• 22 – 24 Oct: Gateway to Islamic Market,
Starting Business in Malaysia, Tokyo, Japan

• 2 – 5 Jul: Bandung, Jakarta & Semarak
• 24 – 28 Sept: Jakarta & Surabaya
• 28 Oct – 1 Nov: Medan & Pekan Baru
• 22 – 25 Nov: Jakarta

7

KOREA
• 29 Jun – 5 Jul: MIDA Trade & Investment
mission to Seoul, Korea
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A Foundation for Education
The past year saw several exciting events which marked the success
of our strategy to make Iskandar Malaysia the destination of choice
for education. We also saw universities and colleges breaking ground
on their new investments in Iskandar Malaysia.
Marlborough College Malaysia (MCM)
MCM held its opening ceremony which was officiated by H.R.H.
Raja Zarith Sofia, consort to H.R.H. Sultan of Johor on 24 February
2013.
From 370 students in year 2012, MCM enrolled 600 students
in 2013, many of whom are children of expatriates based in
Singapore.

University of Southampton Malaysia Campus
(USMC)
Mr Andrew Newey, Chief Technical Officer of the Red Bull Racing
Team officiated the opening of USMC Campus in March 2013.
USMC was granted approval to run the Bachelor of Electrical
& Electronics Engineering course for the academic year of
2013/2014. This will complement its existing programme in
Mechanical Engineering.

Netherlands Maritime Institute of Technology
(NMIT)
NMIT, which offers a 2½-year diploma programme, saw the first
batch of 14 students completing their studies in September
2013 and another three students undergoing internships that
were completed in December 2013. The students were sent for
a 16-week internship programme to various maritime-related
companies.
The internship programme proved to be a success in increasing
employability with all students being offered jobs in their
respective companies. Two students were offered places to
further their studies in Tasmania and Singapore while one was
accepted into a local university in Malaysia.
NMIT started with seven students in May 2011 and its enrolment
has increased to 567 students as of September 2013.
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University of Reading Malaysia (UoRM)
UoRM had the ground breaking ceremony of its new campus
in EduCity on 27 February 2013. Expected to be ready to
enroll students in the year 2015. UoRM kick-started its one-year
foundation programme in October 2013. Upon completion of the
foundation programme, students can continue their education
in undergraduate programmes offered by UoRM in Malaysia or
University of Reading, UK.

New International Schools
Pegasus International School and the Excelsior International
School both commenced their first full-academic year of 2013
in Bandar Seri Alam, City of Knowledge. Both schools will
introduce new standards for international schools in Flagship D
as well as offering more choices to parents in that area.

Iskandar Malaysia Education Lab
In March 2013, Performance Management Delivery Unit
(PEMANDU) and IRDA organised the Iskandar Malaysia Education
Lab which saw the participation of private and public education
institutions in Iskandar Malaysia. We have major representatives
from the Ministry of Higher Education (now merged into the
Ministry of Education), the Ministry of Education (represented
by the Private Education Division), regulating agencies such
as Immigration Department and MQA and funding agencies
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such as PTPTN and MARA. More than 60 people participated in
the three-day lab held in Iskandar Malaysia. The Lab discussed
improvement proposals especially in student visa application
processing as well as ways to promote and market education in
Iskandar Malaysia in a more holistic manner. These proposals were
taken up by the respective parties and resulted in policy changes
regarding student visas and approval processes at the Ministry of
Education.

Enhancing Collaboration and Smart Partnership
The strategy for evolving the education landscape in Iskandar
Malaysia between 2013 to 2015 will be to enhance strategic
collaborations between existing local education institutions and
international institutions.
We saw the successful signing of the collaboration between
Metropoint College and Holmesglen TAFE Australia on
8 November 2013 which marked the first TAFE accredited
institution in Malaysia.

Outcome
Iskandar Malaysia has witnessed several private and public
education institutions officially opening its doors to students.
Institutions such as Marlborough College Malaysia and University
of Southampton Malaysia will go on to be pioneers in the
Iskandar education landscape.

Tapping into Creative Resources
Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia Studios (PIMS), a collaboration
between UK’s Pinewood Studios and Iskandar Malaysia Studios
Sdn Bhd (wholly-owned by Khazanah Nasional Berhad) will be
the anchor for the establishment of an integrated creative hub
in Iskandar Malaysia.
This creates opportunities to attract companies, professionals,
local and foreign investors to participate in the media production
value chain whether in pre-production, production, postproduction, distribution or marketing. Even SME support services,
the likes of hospitality, logistics, food and beverages, equipment
rental, building materials, and many other services have a major
role to play. And in due course, the availability of international
experts, technology and transfer of knowledge will elevate and
expand our local talents and SME capabilities. This will build a
conducive creative eco-system in Iskandar Malaysia as well
as Malaysia, which in turn will enable a host of internationally
recognised Malaysian Intellectual Properties (IPs) in the areas of
film and television.
Fuelling this aspiration, Iskandar Malaysia had begun work in
developing the eco-system to support PIMS and the creative
sector as a whole. Among the major ones are:

Iskandar Malaysia Creative Industry Talent
Development Programme (IMCITDP)
Driven by the establishment of PIMS, and based on the estimates
of incoming foreign production – the ‘Iskandar Malaysia Creative
Industry Talent Development Programme’, a joint-collaboration

between IRDA and PIMS was created. Designed to strengthen
the film crew base in Malaysia, it aims to train around 900 people
by the end of the programme. Rolling out in early 2013, it will
focus on training and up-skilling Malaysian film crews to be
able to seamlessly integrate with large scale international film
productions.

Film Johor
In order to ensure the sustainability of the creative eco-system,
the ability to continuously land international productions is
crucial. Due to the benefits brought about by the industry and
the existence of many creative hubs worldwide, securing an
international film production is a fiercely competitive business.
This has led to two major market responses. The first is the
establishment of more film commissions and the second is the
progressive regionalisation of film commissions from national
to states to cities and regions, of which these film commissions
work effectively together to achieve common goals. As such,
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Tapping into Creative Resources
the proposed Film Johor responds to similar market imperatives.
Driven by the opening of PIMS, Film Johor has the potential to
transform a greenfield site into a world-class filming destination,
tasked with the following:
•
•
•

Actively promote Johor from a “film maker’s” perspective.
Fast approval on permits and authorisations from local
authorities.
A one-stop centre that facilitates the process of filming
from the standpoint of regulatory compliance.

Digital Centre of Excellence
The recently completed ‘Iskandar Malaysia Film, Animation and
Digital Games’ industry study and roadmap development for
pilot project planning committee has recommended the setup
of ‘Iskandar Malaysia Digital Centre of Excellence (COE) (joint
collaboration between IRDA, MDeC and UTM) as the pilot project
to be implemented under the said study, given the opportunity it
holds to complement the upcoming Film/TV industry in Iskandar
Malaysia.

as a World Class Data Centre Hub. MDeC has been appointed
by PEMANDU to be the lead agency of EPP3. The progress of
EPP3 is monitored by a leading minister through a high-level
steering committee which reports directly to the Prime Minister.
A mini lab was conducted by PEMANDU and MDeC from 2 – 7
July 2012 in Putrajaya. Later, a Focused Results Delivery was
conducted by PEMANDU, MDeC and IRDA from 1 – 4 October
2012 in Johor Bahru which focused directly on Data Centres in
Iskandar Malaysia. IRDA, MDeC and PEMANDU are targetting
to secure at least one major Data Centre player in Iskandar
Malaysia by 2014.
There are also firm interests from land and building owners
in Iskandar Malaysia to apply for the MSC Designated Zone.
IRDA together with the Johor State Investment Centre (JSIC)
are working closely to assist the land and building owners to
successfully receive the MSC Designated Zone status which
will help draw investments to spur local economic growth
and encourage the growth of local technopreneurs.

The COE’s core responsibilities will be to provide the necessary
support in terms of technical expertise, research, business
development, publishing, marketing and training for individuals
or SMEs to produce commercially viable products, while serving
as a self-sustainable centre. These will subsequently create an
environment that will contribute towards talent development,
industry promotion, knowledge sharing and international
collaborations.
Below are the areas of focus for the Digital Centre of Excellence:
•
•
•
•

Casual games – Mobile and online.
Serious applications of games in other industries.
Digital applications such as mobile apps.
Collaboration or integration across different creative
segments such as film, games, animation and VFX.

Outcome
Development of a comprehensive eco-system to support
Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia Studios and the creative sector
as a whole will in turn, attract a RM1.9 billion investment
boost from international productions while also creating
11,300 freelance jobs between the year 2013 to 2020.
Additionally, Iskandar Malaysia is expected to benefit from
higher tourist arrivals and spending as a result of exposure
received from being featured on film.

On 22 October 2013, at the 2013 Asia-Pacific Outsourcing Summit
held at Traders Hotel, Nusajaya, MSC Cyberport has announced
that the first of three development phases of MSC Cyberport
City in Iskandar Malaysia will start in early 2014 with an initial gross
development value of RM626 million. The 35 acre phase one plan
in Kulaijaya, is located within Zone E of Iskandar Malaysia. MSC
Cyberport City will include the development of:
•
•
•

•
•

Data Centre Parks and MSC-Designated Zones
The Data Centre Parks and MSC-Designated Zones are
initiatives by the Multimedia Development Corporation (MDeC),
Performance Management Delivery Unit (PEMANDU) and
IRDA. The Economic Transformation Programme (ETP) under
the Business Services National Key Economic Area (NKEA) has
identified the data centre industry as a key growth area which
resulted in the Entry Point Project 3 (EPP3): Positioning Malaysia
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The 125,000 sq ft MSC Cyberport Digital Centre which shall be
the icon of MSC Cyberport City.
89 Cyber Enterprise Complexes which cater for companies
that want customised offices and data centre buildings.
400 units of Small Office Cyber Office (SOCO) that cater for
living as well as small start-ups and small e-commerce		
companies.
364,000 sq ft Cyberpark catering for data centres and
purpose built buildings for outsourcing companies.
Lifestyle and Incubation Centre.
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Banking on Improved Financial Services
expertise, exchange of information and joint project execution
to maximise the effective use of resources and facilities. The
scope of cooperation also includes promotional activities and
media communication initiatives for the mutual benefit of the two
authorities.
Sectors in Iskandar Malaysia that would likely benefit from
this MoU would be the Financial Services, Logistics, and
Petrochemicals sectors, not to mention the Halal and Business
Services industries.
On 29 August 2013, IRDA and Labuan Financial Services Authority
(Labuan FSA) signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) to
establish a collaborative framework towards enhancing mutual
cooperation in the development of the financial services sector
and investment opportunities in Iskandar Malaysia.
The signing of the MoU reinforces the intent to cooperate
in developing new areas of synergy and strategic alliance
between the two authorities, particularly on new initiatives
and incentives to further enhance business and investment
opportunities in Iskandar Malaysia through Labuan IBFC as the
investment platform. The framework also facilitates the sharing of

The MoU was signed by Ahmad Hizzad Baharuddin, DirectorGeneral of Labuan FSA, and Datuk Ismail Ibrahim, Chief
Executive of IRDA.

Outcome
The MoU signifies a milestone in business and financial linkages
between the two authorities that contribute towards national
development and economic growth.

Looking into Healthcare

Afiniti Medini, Urban
Wellness centre at
Medini North and
Avira, Resort Wellness
centre at Medini
Central, launched on
18 February 2013.

In 2013, Malaysian Prime Minister Y.A.B. Dato’ Seri Najib Tun Razak
and Singaporean Prime Minister Lee Hsien Long jointly launched
Afiniti Medini, an urban wellness project, and Avira, a wellness
resort project, both of which will be located in Medini, Iskandar
Malaysia.
The biggest developments in the healthcare sector in Iskandar
Malaysia, with a gross development value of RM3.0 billion,
these projects are being developed in response to the growing
demand for people to live a healthy and well-balanced life. Afiniti
Medini, an urban wellness project, will be a regional destination
for families, tourists and professionals who look to combine
wellness, shopping, retail and hospitality as well as corporate

training needs in a total holistic package and experience. Avira,
which is a wellness resort project, will provide residents with
the experience of a retreat-like lifestyle all year round, being
surrounded by lush greenery complemented by a 210-acre
(RM84.98ha) development.

Outcome
The healthcare landscape in Iskandar Malaysia has seen strong
growth in 2013 with newly-opened healthcare centres such
as the Econ Medicare Centre in Taman Perling, Pasir Gudang
Specialist Hospital in Pasir Gudang, Landmark Medical Centre in
Johor Bahru City Centre as well as DB Medical Suites in Afiat
Healthpark in Nusajaya.
On top of that, collaboration between IRDA and Johor Health
Department and the setting up of the Iskandar Malaysia
Healthcare OSC to facilitate catalytic healthcare and wellness
facilities in Iskandar Malaysia is another major development for
this sector.
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Evolving the Logistics Landscape
IRDA has been promoting Iskandar Malaysia as the leading
aviation hub in the region. Now, Iskandar Malaysia is finally
ready with the infrastructure needed to meet the demands of
regional aviation growth.
Senai International Airport (Senai Airport) had invested more than
RM350 million to upgrade the basic facilities of the airport, a key
component to the aviation industry. This investment included,
among others, a runway extension to 3,800 metres, construction
of a cargo complex, enhancement of the main terminal building
and site preparation for an aviation park. The airport is now able
to accommodate larger passenger aircrafts like the Airbus A380
and cargo aircrafts Antonov 225. The airport also upgraded
its facilities to handle a capacity of 3.5 million passengers and
80,000 tonnes of cargo per annum as well as 20,000 sq metres of
apron space for aircraft parking. On top of that, the airport has
also readied 250 acres of airport land with direct access to the
runway, a crucial requirement for aviation park development.
Over the years, the aviation industry in Asia Pacific had grown
exponentially, driven by the success and growth of Low Cost
Carriers (LCC) such as Air Asia and Lion Air. Air travel within the
region will account for more than a third of global airlines traffic
and aviation activities by the year 2013 (Market outlook 2012 –
2013: Boeing).
To support the growth of air travel, airlines from the region have
put up orders for aircrafts to provide the required capacity, such
as those made by Air Asia and Lion Air to Airbus and Boeing
respectively. Apart from narrow and wide-body commercial
aircrafts, deliveries of business and light jets to this region are
also growing.
The growth of aircraft population in the region is also driving up
demand for aircraft Maintenance, Repairs and Overhaul (MRO)
services. European MRO service providers are also looking to set
up bases in the region to be closer to their customers or simply as
a cost effective expansion to their existing operations in Europe,
given the availability of skilled and trainable resources in this
region.
The value of the MRO industry is expected to double to more
than USD20 billion, at par with the industry value in traditional
markets like Europe and America, by the year 2020. (MRO Asia:
SAI Consulting)
Taking advantage of the high operating cost for MRO in
Singapore (Seletar) by moving to Senai Aviation Park, it allows
Singapore’s MRO providers to lower down their costs. Due to
massive availability of land at Senai Airport, these MRO providers
are able to expand their business and increase their customer
base.
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Currently, aviation parks that commonly attract the global
aviation industry players, such as those in Singapore, Hong Kong,
and Malaysia (Subang) are facing land constraint, while Australia
labour laws and strong workers’ unions have made operations
there costlier. Iskandar Malaysia is in a good position to take
advantage of this regional aviation industry growth.
The aviation industry has always been a sector strongly
promoted by IRDA. It falls under Flagship E, where Senai Airport
acts as the gateway and catalyst for the sector’s development.
The development of this sector is very much in line with the
high-impact development objectives of Iskandar Malaysia,
capitalising on synergies with the surrounding economies and
competitiveness of infrastructure and resources offered here.
It also suggested that in order to reduce traffic congestion at
Changi Airport, Senai Airport should be considered as a twin
airport to complement Changi Airport. As a start, non-scheduled
flights and low cost carriers could possibly move from Changi and
Seletar to Senai Airport.
Promoting Commercial Aviation would require support and
willingness from airlines to establish flights and create bases
within Iskandar Malaysia. Development of world-class holiday
attractions such as LEGOLAND and Puteri Harbour as well as
development projects like Petronas Refinery and Petrochemical
Integrated Development (RAPID) and Desaru Coast provide the
fundamentals for airlines to establish flights that cater to leisure
and business travellers. As for the General Aviation segment,
infrastructure such as hangars and aviation logistic parks as
well as trained and skilled human resources are important in
attracting the service providers.

Outcome
Iskandar Malaysia is closer to achieving its goal of being the
leading aviation-related activity hub in the region.

ISKANDAR REGIONAL
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IRDA)

Annual Report

2013

Iskandar Malaysia Halal Technology Hub

Artist impression of Iskandar Malaysia Halal Centre of Excellence (COE)

IRDA completed the master plan development for the Halal
Technology Hub in early 2013. The master plan will put forth
Iskandar Malaysia as an integrated Halal hub incorporating
high technology and equipped with modern facilities for
manufacturing, production, research & development, distribution
and trading of Halal food and non-food products.
The Halal Technology Hub implementation is in tandem with the
key economic areas that are being promoted under Iskandar
Malaysia’s Comprehensive Development Plan (CDP), 2006 –
2025. The CDP identified food, agro-processing, logistics-related
services, financial services and their priority sub-sectors
as the enabling sectors towards the development of a total
Halal eco-system.

Outcome
The plan is to position and transform Iskandar Malaysia as a
global trading and distribution hub for Halal products. A Centre
of Excellence (COE) facility is also part of the project which
will look at strategising the essential components of:
•
•
•
•
•

Certification and Standardisation;
Halal Tracking & Traceability Services (HTTS);
Halal Lab Services;
Research & Development and Human Capital
capability building and;
E-Halal Trading House

Three locations within the Eastern Gate Development Flagship,
Western Gate Development Flagship and Senai-Kulai had been
identified as potential hubs. These potential hubs spurred great
interest from potential investors and landowners who are keen
to be part of the project.
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Wealth Sharing Opportunities
The initiation of the Iskandar Malaysia Property Action Thinktank (IMPACT) at the start of this year; comprising IRDA, Royal
Institution of Surveyors Malaysia (RISM), Jabatan Penilaian dan
Perkhidmatan Harta (JPPH) and other agencies; to act as the
umbrella platform where current priority issues relating to the
property sector in Iskandar Malaysia are looked into in a
multi-agency, multi-disciplinary and professional manner
through a holistic, solution-centric and value-added approach.

•

Engagements with UTM, JPPH and the five local authorities in
Iskandar Malaysia on the creation of property price indices 		
for Iskandar Malaysia whereby we are currently negotiating 		
with UTM on their appointment towards the same;

•

Forum with RSIM Johor and Singapore Institute of Surveyors
and Valuers (SISV) on possible collaboration on joint CDP;

•

Post Budget 2014 Commentary on Property Sector with
RISM and other property experts provided as part of our 		
Budget Commentary to Johor Chief Minister;

•

Post Budget 2014 Property Outlook Roundtable to be held
with property consultants; and

•

Engagements with Bumiputra Property Gurus on possible
collaboration to organise Bumiputra Property Exhibition
for Iskandar Malaysia.

The ultimate objective of IMPACT is to raise the standard of the
property sector in Iskandar Malaysia in line with its vision as a
strong sustainable metropolis of international standing.

Outcome
To date, IMPACT has achieved the following:
•

Post GE13 Property Outlook Roundtable with property
consultants from Iskandar Malaysia and Kuala Lumpur. 		
The outcome of which was shared in the workshop on 		
foreign property ownership and bumiputra units organised
by UPENJ and Johor Lands and Mines Office (PTG) in
reviewing existing policies;

Streamlining Economic Information and Dissemination
Iskandar Malaysia BizWatch
is part of IRDA’s monthly
e-newsletter. Now in its fourth
year, it continues to deliver news
and updates on the economic and
social developments of Iskandar
Malaysia to our subscriber base.

Outcome
In 2013, we published a total of 12 monthly editions along with
two special editions which included our own analysis of the
Budget 2014 and its impact to Iskandar Malaysia.
Besides the Iskandar Malaysia BizWatch, we also published two
issues of Inside Iskandar during the year, issue no. 5 – Emerging
Metropolis, “Gearing Up The New Economic Generators” and
issue no. 6 Years and Going Strong, “The RM383 Billion Corridor”.
Inside Iskandar is a property digest, via collaboration with Messrs
Savills Rahim & Co.
These publications are distributed to potential and existing
investors and can also be downloaded from our website.
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STAKEHOLDER
CONFIDENCE
i. Stakeholders have Strong Belief
ii. Stakeholders have Shared Responsibility

Sunset at Puteri Harbour
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STAKEHOLDER CONFIDENCE
i. Stakeholders have Strong Belief
ii. Stakeholders have Shared Responsibility

Continued efforts were made to reach out to the various
stakeholders of Iskandar Malaysia, both from commercial
and non-commercial groups.
IRDA focuses on engaging various stakeholders to achieve our goals and also promote more opportunities here in Iskandar Malaysia.
Stakeholders include the government, communities, embassies, financial institutions, associations, property developers and also nongovernmental organisations. IRDA received more than 4,700 official visitors in 2013. There is great interest from the government sector,
followed by communities, associations, property developers and financial institutions who were keen to know more about Iskandar
Malaysia and the opportunities it presents.
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Government Liaison
The Commissioner’s Office in IRDA acts as the main liaison and
coordinator in dealing with the ministries and government
agencies at both the federal and state levels.
The Commissioner’s Office coordinates meetings and facilitates
issues and requisitions that require high level interventions with
Federal and State Government to ensure that all projects

and developments within Iskandar Malaysia are successfully
implemented.
Apart from that, the Commissioner’s Office receives and
coordinates engagements with the Head of States, Embassies
and High Commissions.

High Level Engagements with Federal Ministries
Among the notable meetings were with the Ministry of Housing
and Local Government on 17 February 2013, Chief Secretary Tan
Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsah on 27 April 2013, Ministry of Health on 18
June 2013, and the Minister of International Trade & Industry,
Y.B. Dato’ Seri Mustapa Mohamed on 6 November 2013.

Engagements with State EXCO and Assemblymen
Several engagements and meetings have also taken place with
the State EXCOs and Assemblymen in 2013. Among others were
meetings with Y.B. Datuk Ir. Haji Hasni Mohamad, EXCO for Works,
Rural, Town & Regional Development, Johor on 1 November 2013,
Y.B. Asiah Md Arif, EXCO for Rural & Regional Development, Arts,
Culture & Heritage, Johor and meeting with Dr. Zaini Abu Bakar,
Political Secretary to the Chief Minister of Johor and Chief UMNO
Division Leader, Gelang Patah on 18 October 2013.

Joint Ministerial Committee Iskandar Malaysia
(JMCIM) Focus Group Discussion (FGD),
3 – 4 October 2013
The Focus Group Discussion session was held at Thistle Hotel,
Johor Bahru represented by members from the work groups. The
objective of the FGD was to share and obtain feedbacks, issues
and future plans from the relevant work groups. It also served to
promote close relations and gain understanding amongst the
JMC Work Group Members at both Federal and State levels.
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Iskandar Malaysia Information Centre (IMIC)
Since opening its doors in 2011, the successful promotion of the Iskandar Malaysia Information Centre (IMIC) to the public saw an
increase in interest and visitors to IMIC in the year 2013.
Numerous programmes anchored on the creative, education, healthcare and social themes received good response from the
community, as was other events which were held such as the TweetUp Johor event and Youth event, both targeted at gaining youth
participation in the development of Iskandar Malaysia.
Operating seven days a week, IMIC is a centralised interaction platform between IRDA and its stakeholders. IMIC showcases the
progress, development and collaboration between agencies, government agencies and investors.
Throughout 2013, IMIC received a total of 33,411 visitors. Visitors hailed from near and far, including international visitors mostly from
Indonesia, Japan and Singapore. A flurry of investors, ministers, local authorities, corporate companies, universities and school students
were amongst the visitors. A number of exhibitions, corporate meetings and seminars were also held at IMIC. Below is the breakdown of
visitors in 2013:

Breakdown of Visitors in 2013
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Events held at IMIC throughout 2013 include:

Tweet UP Johor: 28 September 2013

Healthcare Week: 3 – 6 September 2013

Social Inclusion & Youth Event: 23 – 27 October 2013

JB 10k Run 2013: 8 – 9 November 2013

Media Relations
In 2013, Iskandar Malaysia made greater progress and continued to garner positive media coverage in both print and electronic
media in Malaysia and Singapore, yielding a PR value of RM60.1 million Positive headlines on the region dominated the mainstream
media with a total of 97.5% of all news published in 2013.
Ultimately, the effort that was ploughed into engaging with the media on a planned and regular basis to promote and highlight
Iskandar Malaysia came through with the results that were achieved.
The media relations team capitalised on various opportunities to make engagements with the media more fruitful, as they had
been hoped to be. Proactive steps were taken to build bridges and enhance relationships with members of the media by initiating
programmes that were essentially good for building rapport.
2013 was another exciting year as Iskandar Malaysia scored well with several efforts to gain worldwide publicity. This was achieved by
conducting exclusive print and broadcast coverages with Thomson Reuters and The Edge Singapore.
On the local front, the mainstream media continued to give their support to Iskandar Malaysia’s development through write-ups and
broadcasts in local television channels, radios and newspapers in all three languages.
Overall, IRDA had a total of 48 engagements with the media through various platforms and issued a total of 21 media releases.
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Content Development
IRDA realizes the need for information consolidation, extensive
research support and proactive strategic content development
for friendly informative reading.
As such, the role to develop content and information related to
Iskandar Malaysia for dissemination to all IRDA-owned channels
and external paid media channels was given focus. Content
to reach out and create strong brand association of Iskandar
Malaysia while continually showing how it has impacted the lives
of our stakeholders continue to be published.
Content developed in 2013 include a cover story in Malaysian
Business– Brightening Up Iskandar Malaysia and feature articles
such as:
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1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Iskandar Malaysia Tourism Sector
Johor Bahru Transformation Plan
Low Carbon Society
Iskandar Malaysia – Smart City of the Future
Smart Healthy City
Social Goals of Iskandar Malaysia
Building the Dream Factory in the Creative Sector
Mindsets for Tomorrow
Room for everyone in Iskandar Malaysia
Closing the Talent Gap
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Branding & Events
Branding efforts in 2013 continued to focus on international and local promotional initiatives to further increase awareness amongst
both local and foreign investors, while also raising stakeholder awareness regarding current affairs and the latest developments in
Iskandar Malaysia.
Iskandar Malaysia continued with branded advertising and articles in publications such as Nikkei Business Publication, Sustainable
Cities and Malaysian Business.
Key Activities and Events:

PSKLM International Expressway
Conference and Exhibition (PIECE)

Gaya Travel

Home & Apartment Trends
(Southeast Asia and The Gulf)

Borneo Bulletin Yearbook 2013

IRDA Annual Report 2012

Procurement
Procurement is the acquisition of goods, services or works from an outside external source. It is favourable that the goods, services or
works are appropriate and that they are procured at the best possible cost to meet the needs of the purchaser in terms of quality and
quantity, time, and location. Almost all purchasing decisions include factors such as delivery and handling, marginal benefit, and price
fluctuations.
In the year 2013, 100% of the 1252 Purchase Orders were issued by the Procurement department within 3 working days as per policies
and procedures. Moreover, 9 tenders were called and awarded, amounting to the value of RM120,119.15 of which 6 were classified as
services and 3 were classified as works.
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DELIVERY
EXCELLENCE
i. Effective and Efficient Public Service Delivery
ii. World Class Infrastructure to Benefit Rakyat
and Business

Senai International Airport
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DELIVERY EXCELLENCE
i. Effective and Efficient Public Service Delivery
ii. World Class Infrastructure to Benefit Rakyat and Business

Iskandar Service Centre
ISC is a one stop centre that facilitates qualified investors in
obtaining necessary development, business and human resource
permits or approvals to enable them to operate their business in
Iskandar Malaysia.
Another duty is to assist the marketing team in disseminating
information to investors regarding facilitation services available
at IRDA which currently covers 2 major aspects:
1. Physical Development
•
		
•
		

Assistance on land matters such as acquisitions or
foreign ownerships
Planning permission, building plan, infrastructure and
certificate of completion and compliance

2. Non-physical Facilitation
• Immigration – expatriate status approval
• Business advisory service
Towards the end of 2013, ISC was re-established as an
independent division which enables ISC to plan and execute
the long-term visions of Iskandar Malaysia.

Achievements & Highlights
The biggest challenge in facilitating investors is to guide and manoeuvre them through the complex web of bureaucracy and
regulatory demands. While ISC is required to guide the investors through the approval process, IRDA itself is not an approving authority,
and ISC would need to rely on the cooperation of the approving authority to speed up the process.
Therefore, ISC has to invent revolutionary methods of processing
to gain the desired result. Below are a few examples of these
methods:
1. Planning & Design Review Panel for Medini and Puteri
Harbour (PDRC)
In collaboration with Planning & Compliance, the
PDRC was formed and approved by the AIC and State
Planning Committee as a body authorised to process any
development applications in Medini and Puteri Harbour and
make recommendation to Johor Bahru Tengah Municipal
Council (MPJBT) for approval. The committee applies the
“working under one roof” concept and often looks for
collaborative efforts among agencies for faster processing of
the application. The operation of PDRC is expected to reduce
the number of processing days for any planning permission,
building plan and infrastructure plan approval from 57 days
to 30 days.
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2. Regulatory Review
In an effort to improve the regulations and procedures related
to development approval and construction permits, ISC has
been invited to become a member of the Focus Group in
Dealing with Construction Permit (FGDCP) organised and
monitored by Malaysia Productivity Corporation (MPC)
which reports directly to Special Taskforce to Facilitate
Business (PEMUDAH) and is chaired by the Chief Secretary
to the Government.
The outcome of the review was published by the World Bank’s
Doing Business Report 2014 – Understanding Regulations for
Small and Medium-Size Enterprises. Malaysia’s ranking in this
aspect improved from rank no. 96 in 2012 to no. 43 in 2013 out
of 189 countries surveyed by World Bank.
To formalise the collaboration, IRDA and MPC have signed
a Memorandum of Understanding on 4 June 2013 to carry
out joint activities to improve service delivery particularly in
Iskandar Malaysia.
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3. Immigration
Iskandar Malaysia Expatriate Committee (IMEC) of which ISC
has been a secretariat, has been empowered by the Home
Ministry since 25 November 2011 to process and approve
expatriate status applications by qualified expatriates within
the 6 promoted service sectors in Iskandar Malaysia.
The volume of application has increased by 91% from 2012.
To manage the increasing number of application, ISC has
utilised the centralised database software to increase the
processing efficiency and monitor all applications processed
by IMEC.
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In 2013, IMEC has approved 189 applications for expatriates
status (DP10). The approval process takes 5 working days from
the completed submission till date of approval.
4. Physical Development Unit
The Physical development Unit has facilitated about 184
applications including land, planning & building and
infrastructure applications. Besides that, 2013 seems a
challenging year where we coordinated two separate
workshops with various technical agencies. The findings of this
workshop are expected to become proposed solutions for
new strata lease concepts in Medini.

Moving Forward

Joint programme with MPC on Improvement on Land

ISC facilitation services are to be rendered to selected investors
that are catalytic, high-impact or strategically in line with the
vision of Iskandar Malaysia. The selection of investors will be
determined by IRDA’s Investment Committee.
To facilitate these investors, ISC needs to have value-added
facilitation methods or mechanisms which would result in a
faster turnaround time compared with the normal processes
and procedures. In order to achieve this, ISC recognised the
need to bring various processing and approval agencies
together to collectively facilitate investments or projects
supported by IRDA.

Therefore, in 2014, ISC plans to set up taskforces which would
deal with land matters, development approvals and business
advisories. The taskforces apply the “processing under one
roof” concept which will require collaboration between various
agencies. These taskforces will not deal only with improvement of
the processes but also with a wide range of policy matters that
may affect the investment climate.
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Effective and Efficient Public Service Delivery

IRDA strives to create value and sustainability through continuous
improvement and innovation. In 2013, various business plans have
been developed and approved for implementations such as:
1. The commercialisation of Iskandar Malaysia Information
Centre (IMIC).
2. Setting up Film Johor – a self-sustaining Special Purpose
Vehicle (SPV) that supports the development of the
creative sector.
3. The Expatriate Support Services (ESS) was set up to provide
opportunities to the Small and Medium Enterprise (SME)
businesses in Iskandar Malaysia to be appointed as certified
consultants to IRDA. These SMEs provide various services
to new expatriates relocating to Iskandar Malaysia. Services
provided among others include advisory on tax matters and
setting up business and/or offices in Iskandar Malaysia.
4. The RM99.5 million worth of facilitation fund secured with the
assistance of Iskandar Investment Berhad for the construction
of the Coastal Highway Southern Link and Medini North
Interchange.
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5. Throughout 2013, IRDA has been involved in several key
initiatives such as:
a. Facilitated the development of new stratum guidelines
		 in Johor, together with Iskandar Service Centre (ISC)
		 and other agencies such as Pejabat Tanah and
		 Galian Johor.
b. Established an Investment Committee whose role is to
		 assess and profile investors to Iskandar Malaysia ensuring
		 that their presence must also complement the region’s
		 social and environmental aspirations and concerns.
c. Set up of Expatriate Support Services (ESS), which is a
		 certified panel of consultants for Iskandar Malaysia that 		
		 acts as a Single-Point-of-Contact (SPOC) catering to the 		
		 ‘people-aspect’ needs such as logistics, relocation,
		 education and leisure of those relocating to Iskandar
		 Malaysia, both for locals and expatriates.
d. Internal process improvement to strengthen various delivery
		processes.
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Blueprint for 11 Agendas
Blueprint is a document to guide Iskandar Malaysia’s policies and strategies on certain subject such as Land Use, Economic,
Environment and Infrastructure. The blueprint details the framework and action plans for implementation of strategies, programmes and
projects based on best practice benchmarked with other world class and livable cities and support the Comprehensive Development
Plan (CDP), the main document for Iskandar Malaysia.
In total, 649 initiative areas identified in all the approved blueprints. For implementation and monitoring purposes, these initiatives are
divided into 4 types of initiatives and consolidated into 11 important subjects, which have similar objective and outcome.

4 Types of Initiatives and List of 11 Agendas

11 Agendas

Awareness
/ Training

Policies

4 Types
of
Initiatives
Programme
/ Project
Implementation

Compliance
to Guidelines

1. Transport
2. Economy
3. Green
4. Tourism
5. Heritage & Culture
6. Land Use & Physical
Development
7. Information & Communication
Technology
8. Safety & Security
9. Utility, Infrastructure & Asset
Management
10. Creative
11. Social

(649 Initiatives)

The Blueprint Agenda is important as this approach is more focussed in identifying action plan towards achieving Iskandar Malaysia’s
position as a Strong and Sustainable Metropolis of International Standing. It also promotes strong collaboration between agencies
during planning, implementation and monitoring of the progress of the blueprints.
On 21 – 22 September 2013, IRDA had organised a CDP Review and Blueprint Open Day at AEON Jusco Bukit Indah. The main objective
of this event is to disseminate information about the plan and obtain feedback from the public on what will be expected in the future
of Iskandar Malaysia. Benefits of organising this event are:
1. Increasing level of awareness on moving forward plan for blueprint agendas to stakeholders
(private entities, public agencies and public at large);
2. Positive feedback and comments were shared on the panels;
3. Encouraging participation from stakeholders in adopting and implementing the blueprints’ projects / initiatives.

CDP Review and Blueprint Open Day @ AEON Jusco Bukit Indah
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Blueprint for 11 Agendas
In conjunction with the open day, IRDA introduced brochures for its 11 Agendas to the public.

Brochure for
the 11 Agendas

List of Priority Projects for 2014 – 2015:

No. Initiatives / Projects
Transport

Economy

68

1.

Implementation of Transit Oriented Development (TOD).

2.

Logistics & Facilities Enhancement of logistics facilities.

3.

Provide bicycle lane in a new road layout development to promote healthy lifestyle and to
support the effort for controlling the carbon footprint campaign.

4.

Water taxis/ ferry.

5.

City bus coverage – Bus Rapid Transit.

6.

Truck Zone – Heavy vehicles and truck routes.

1.

Strengthen and enhance collaboration between State Agencies and IRDA to promote
investment.

2.

Spearhead the development and positioning of Iskandar Malaysia as Halal Regional Trading
& Distribution Hub.

3.

Facilitate high level negotiations to promote Senai Airport as an ASEAN and global gateway
to improve Tourism and Logistics sector.

4.

Promote and target strategic investors in Tourism, Logistics, Creative, Healthcare sectors and
Halal Industry (Food & non-food) as supporting sectors.

5.

Continue developing & enhancing specific enablers and initiatives towards building
Integrated Creative Eco-system.

6.

Implementation of tailored Incentive Support Package for newly focused & prioritised service
sector hubs.

7.

Improve connectivity & facilitation of strategic projects for Aviation Logistics.

8.

Leverage on the strengths of key existing players to expand and move up the value chain.

9.

Facilitate strong supporting industries & business eco-system for the promoted sectors, with
private sector as the key driver.

10.

Facilitate global partnership, promote expansion of FDI, enhance core competitiveness
among domestic investors & develop high quality product and service performance.
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No. Initiatives / Projects
Green

1.

Establishing Green Economy Guidelines.

2.

Launching and Promoting of Green Accord Initiative Award (GAIA).

3.

Introduction of Waste to Energy Mechanism.

4.

Tanjung Piai Erosion.

5.

Greening Existing Industry Programme for Pasir Gudang Industrial Area.

6.

Establishing of inventory for trees for urban forests and Carbon Sequestration.

7.

Establishing of Bukit Batu Eco Community.

8.

Launching and Promoting of Iskandar Malaysia Green Portal.

9.

Green Community Programme.

10.

Masterplan and Pilot Project for Connected Pedestrian Walk and Cycle lane.

1.

Creating more tourism packages related to nature.

2.

Coordinating marketing activities.

3.

Improving tourist transport services in Iskandar Malaysia.

4.

Destination branding.

5.

Johor Industry Communications.

6.

Conserving and protecting area management and tourism use.

Heritage

1.

Cultural mapping.

& Culture

2.

Heritage Registrar.

3.

Enhancing production of printed materials – Johor Sketch Book.

4.

Centre for performing arts.

5.

Promoting and improving Classes, Programmes and Workshops on culture.

Landuse

1.

Reviewing Local Plans.

& Physical

2.

Incentives for In-fill Developments.

Development

3.

Formulation of Urban Design Framework and Guidelines for the City Centre.

4.

Rejuvenation of Johor Bahru City Centre to enhance the services sector to complement
new economic growth zones.

5.

Development in Iskandar Malaysia should be in line with the ESA category to the
respective area.

1.

Iskandar Malaysia Cloud Computing Data Centre

Tourism

ICT

-

Data Centre Park
Data Centre Event

2.

Incentives for MSC Cybercity and Iskandar Development Region (IDR) Status.

3.

1Iskandar.

4.

Personalising Concierge Services
-

Iskandar Malaysia Mobile Apps
Mobility Management

5.

Wireless @ Iskandar.

Utility, Infra

1.

To re-establish Sungai Segget as a naturally flowing river.

& Asset

2.

Comprehensive Smart Grid.

Management

3.

Mandatory Source Separation for Household.

4.

Enhancing of current recycling drop off and centre – Phase 1.
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Blueprint for 11 Agendas
List of Priority Projects for 2014 – 2015:

No. Initiatives / Projects
Safety

1.

Implementing integrated CCTV surveillance system for Iskandar Malaysia.

& Security

2.

Establishing Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership in Iskandar Malaysia.

3.

Establishing a Community Safety Plan for Iskandar Malaysia.

4.

Establishing Critical Infrastructure (CI) Council among key agencies and owners / operators.

5.

Defining a Future Interoperability Architecture for safety and security organisations
in Iskandar Malaysia.

1.

Ensuring adequate supply of qualified employee.

2.

Upgrading existing player’s capabilities.

3.

Expanding scale and quality of high value activities.

4.

Improving utilities.

5.

Building reputation.

6.

Improving efficiencies.

7.

Incentive competitiveness.

1.

Strengthening and enhancing policies and monitoring mechanism to provide affordable
and quality housing Phase 1.

2.

Strengthen and enhance policies and monitoring mechanism to provide affordable and
quality housing according to local demands.

3.

Develop comprehensive plan, roadmap, governance structure and monitoring of potential
displacement.

4.

Finalise and launch wealth sharing vehicles (property based).

5.

Facilitate implementation of income generating socio-economic projects at identified
locations through structured social economic enterprise.

6.

Promote international accreditation for local SMEs and enhance inter-racial economic
inclusion programmes.

7.

Engage relevant policy makers for Urban Poor efficient support system and medium of
communication.

8.

Develop (reskilling, up-skilling, training) local talents in three focus sectors (Oil & Gas, Hospitality
and Tourism, Creative) according to investors’ requirements.

9.

Make Socio Economic Impact Assessment a requirement in development approval.

10.

Develop holistic plan for Iskandar Malaysia public education need and encourage public
and private sector participation in school/education enhancements.

11.

Introduce Iskandar Malaysia discount cards for Urban Poor and Low Income Households.

Creative

Social
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Towards Healthier Iskandar Malaysia Communities
A year after declaring Iskandar Malaysia as pilot for all Smart City projects in Malaysia, IRDA has received positive feedback from
interested parties to collaborate towards making Iskandar Malaysia a Smart City.
Part of the Smart City framework, IRDA looks at promoting a healthier lifestyle. In line with this, a 3-day lab was held on 5 – 7 March 2013
and was co-organised by IRDA and the Ministry of Health (MoH). In order to have a fruitful input and discussion, representatives from
five local authorities, telecommunication service providers, major players in Iskandar Malaysia and representative from the youth were
invited.
At the end of the session, the lab had agreed on the following projects / programmes to be implemented:

Health Facilities & Services
•
•
•

Community Campaign
•

“No Sugar” campaign

Iskandar Malaysia Healthcare One Stop Centre
Integrated Healthcare Mall
Mobile Healthcare Services

13
Programmes
Identified

Infrastructure
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

‘Make Health Fun’
Calorie Count signage
Iskandar Malaysia Healthy City Park
Healthy Smoke-Free Park
Non-Motorise Amenities
Healthy Clean Food Outlets
Upgrade Health Facilities & Self-Monitoring Kiosk

ICT Enabler
•
•

‘Personal Health Diary’ Mobile Apps/Portal
Extend Connectivity 1Gov.Net to remaining
public health facilities
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4th series of Bicarawara “Konservasi dan Warisan”

As part of our Area Character Statement Strategy, we are committed to develop the awareness programme in Iskandar Malaysia.
2013 is the fourth year for the Bicarawara series since it was first held in 2010. This year, the 4th series of Bicarawara with the theme of
“Konservasi dan Warisan” was held on 5 July 2013 in conjunction with the Johor Bahru Transformation Open Day 2013 at Galleria
@ Kotaraya, Johor Bahru City Centre.
Bicarawara is an awareness session where invited participants will be exposed to heritage in a light, casual and storytelling manner.
To ensure the objective of the event is achieved, we have decided to give more focus to the younger audience, while encouraging
others who are interested to participate in this event.
Featuring two speakers from conservation and architecture backgrounds, the objective of the event is to provide awareness among
the public and professional on the importance of historical values in Iskandar Malaysia by using a “story telling” and technical study
approach. With an understanding of the values, the participants are expected to preserve the heritage of building, art and culture.
The expected outcome is:
1. To establish this event as a public knowledge sharing session to instill the love of Johor Culture and Heritage.
2. To create public and private sector appreciation and preservation of Johor’s heritage culture, architecture and art for the 		
future generation.
3. To promote the event to the private sectors to ensure it can eventually be privately driven.

Johor Bahru Transformation Open Day 2013
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Johor Bahru Transformation programme is a programme to focus
on sustaining Johor Bahru (JB) City’s role as capital of Johor by
providing vibrant economic activities, city living and amenities
while preserving culture and heritage values. The programme has
also been selected as one of the focus area in the Corridor and
City Transformation programmes.
After almost three years of planning and implementation, the
responsible committee has decided to do a continuation event
from 2012 to share the achievement and future plans for Johor
Bahru City Centre.
Johor Bahru Transformation Open Day 2013 was held in Galleria
@Kotaraya, Johor Bahru City Centre on 5 – 22 September 2013.
The benefits and outcome for this event are:
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The theme for JB Transformation open day 2013 was “The New
Journey”. The event was officiated by Y.A.B. Dato’ Seri Mohamed
Khaled Bin Nordin, Chief Minister of Johor. More than 500
people from various government agencies, business and local
communities and NGO attended the launching ceremony.
Five key partners displayed their commitment to transform JB City
Centre throughout the three day event, i.e Johor Corporation,
UM Land, Daiman Properties, Maybank and Ken Holdings. Nearly
6,000 visitors from various background benefit from the three
day exhibition that covers overall vision of JB Tranformation
programme, economic achievements, heritage and culture
initiatives and strategies, social and environment.

1. As a platform to inform international, national and local
community on the city’s vision, plans and future prospects.
2. To share with the general public on why and how Johor Bahru
Transformation Programme will uplift the image of JB City.
3. To further increase the public awareness and involvement in 		
JB Transformation’s latest development and initiatives.
4. Opportunity to increase the interest of investors, developers, 		
hoteliers and business community on the potential 			
opportunity of economic growth within JB City Centre.
5. To obtain feedback from public on how IRDA could
contribute in building JB City.

Nafas Baru Pasir Gudang Programme
Pasir Gudang, an industrial area to the east of Iskandar Malaysia,
is one of the key components of the economic region in flagship
D. Pasir Gudang covers 34,434 hectares with a population
about 229,309 people. Pasir Gudang is one of Malaysia’s most
rapid industrial zones, built in the 1970s. The main industry is
transportation and logistics, ship building, petrochemicals,
oleo-chemical and other heavy industries, a power station
and a gas turbine power plant.

To have a balanced development, IRDA and Majlis Perbandaran
Pasir Gudang (MPPG) have come up with the programme to
revamp Pasir Gudang. The name of this programme is Nafas Baru
Pasir Gudang, to be a healthy and green city. This programme
is to rejuvenate and renew Pasir Gudang to boost its economic
activities, while addressing social and environmental issues in line
with the Iskandar Malaysia smart city framework and low carbon
society actions.

The existing land use includes residential, commercial and
service, industrial, institutions, agriculture, open space and
recreational, and infrastructure and utilities. The main built-up
land use is residential (13.56%), industrial (10.23%), and agriculture
(37.07%). However the residential and industrial areas are
located too close to each other and is thus causing issues such
as air pollution and traffic congestion in the neighbourhood.

For a start, Nafas Baru Pasir Gudang programme covers 10%
of Pasir Gudang (3,717 hectares) that includes town precint,
residential (Taman Molek and Taman Air Biru), core industrial area
and recreational area.
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Nafas Baru Pasir Gudang Programme

After a few focus group discrission (FGD) sessions between IRDA
and MPPG, the committee came up with 21 initiatives to revamp
Pasir Gudang. The initiatives for a healthy and green city are as
follows:
1.
2
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

EQA Compliance – green industry
Solid waste treatment technologies – e.g: incinerator
Nafas Baru Pasir Gudang Masterplan
Bus Rapid Transit (PG-JB)
Feeder bus system
Green building – Incentive by Local Authority
Manual Carbon Sequestration

Iskandar Malaysia 171
Description:
1. Serves as a high impact forum for government agencies
to share and disseminate updates on planning policies, 		
legislations and issues.
2. Serves as a pre and post committee for Approval &
Implementation Committee (AIC) to ensure continuous 		
communication between management and working levels.
Date: Commencing 7 June 2013 onwards.
Benefits of Implementation:
Outcomes from AIC Meetings are cascaded down to the
working level for implementation while substantial achievements
and issues can be escalated to the Meeting. This will ensure
important subjects are captured and seamless coordination
between the management and working levels.
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8. Enhance LA 21 programme – Awareness programme related
to health & green
9. Special Area Plan
10. TPO gazetting
11. Conservation of mangrove forest
12. Promoting infill development
As a conclusion, the plan to rejuvenate Pasir Gudang is mainly
to provide good governance that is balanced in the economic
and social environment.

Planning agencies have an actual platform to highlight
and discuss issues collectively. This platform will also promote
active data collation and information gathering to enhance
decision-making process and share ideas for enhancement of
implementation by agencies.
IM171 has improved cooperation and trust between government
agencies through discussions and close cooperation.

Outcome:
The Community Police Post (CPP) initiative has been approved
by Johor State Planning Committee (SPC) on 7 April 2011.
However, due to a gap in the communication process, this
initiative has not been adopted after two years of its approval.
The underlying cause for this failure was actively discussed and
identified in the IM171 sessions and subsequent measures have
been taken to solve this matter.
Subsequently this led to follow-up actions which includes
unearthing and redistribution of the SPC memo ratifying the
decisions to the relevant agencies, an FGD to refine the standard
CPP guideline and adoption policy for new development areas
and way forward for the initiative.
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The Ops Lumpur Iskandar Malaysia
2013 saw the Ops Lumpur Task Force evolved into a mainstay
feature of Iskandar Malaysia and one of the prime examples of
an effective joint multi-agency enforcement platform.
The task force measures the effectiveness of their enforcement
through the number of Commitment Letters to comply with the
Erosion Sedimentation Control Plan (ESCP) submitted by the
monitored development project proponents.

These Commitment Letters are the assurance from the
developers that their development will be contained and have
minimal disturbances to the surrounding environment. Through
this, developers within Iskandar Malaysia will embrace selfmonitoring as part of their best management practices.
Out of the ten active developments monitored in 2013, seven
have submitted their Commitment Letters. This is a significant
improvement from only two out of ten monitored projects
submitting their Commitment Letter back in 2012.
Supporting the effectiveness of the task force on the actual
development sites, the enforcement agencies such as
the Department of Environment have noted significant
improvements in compliance by the project proponents.
Perhaps the most notable achievement by the task force is
influencing Medini to replicate the task force’s methodology
and coordinate their sub-developers to comply with the ESCP at
their respective sites. Medini also took the initiative to monitor the
final outlets of their development site to ensure compliance to
the set standards.

List of developments monitored in Ops Lumpur.

The Medini’s successes have shown that master developers
can and should control their sub-developers to adhere to all
standards during development. Through the years in operation,
Ops Lumpur task force has galvanised the member agencies
to jointly enforce compliance of the monitored development
projects and influenced adoption of best management
practices by both agencies and project proponents.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
As a result of IRDA’s aggressive promotion efforts in the past six
years, Iskandar Malaysia has today gained recognition both in
Malaysia and throughout the world.

4. Type of marks applied and/ or registered are as follows:

a.

In anticipation of the growth of Iskandar Malaysia in the future,
IRDA has applied for and registered it’s name for trade mark as
we saw this as a long term measure to prevent the abuse of the
“ISKANDAR” name, “ISKANDAR MALAYSIA” and its associated
marks and logo, once the economic development region was
established.
Moving forward, IRDA intends to extend this trade mark
protection by filing applications in the South East Asia region
as a defensive step to prohibit third party registering the
mark incorporating the name “ISKANDAR” and/or “ISKANDAR
MALAYSIA” throughout the world.

b.

c.

d.
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Safety and Security
IRDA recognises the importance of safety and security as a
pre-condition to stability, growth, and sustainability. IRDA has
commissioned the Safety & Security Blueprint to assist the
public sector, private sector and community to work together
in building a safe and secure environment.
The blueprint establishes a vision for safety and security in
Iskandar Malaysia that shares its responsibility in achieving key
goals, commencing with an intensive effort at coordination
and integration since the end of the year 2009. The blueprint
then proposed a period of incremental safety and security
enhancement over the period of the Tenth Malaysia Plan up to
the year 2015. There is a focus on the capability to be extended
over to the Eleventh Malaysia Plan that carries it through to year
2020. And a vision that sees its capability sustained through to
the Twelfth Malaysia Plan that carries on until the year 2025.
Safety is one of the key elements in making Iskandar Malaysia
the destination of choice so people can invest, work, live and
play. For Iskandar Malaysia, real crime and perception of crime
continue to be of concern especially when 12 out of 15 hotspots
in Johor are located within the corridor.

IRDA, together with the Royal Malaysian Police (PDRM) are
committed in ensuring the implementation of the initiatives
underlined in the Iskandar Malaysia safety and security blueprint.
IRDA is focused on increasing enforcement capability and
capacity, fostering good community policing to instill a sense of
shared responsibility, and leveraging technology to aid in crime
prevention. Three strategic projects have been identified, namely,
the establishment of Community Police Post (CPP), deployment
of Auxiliary Police (AP) and installation of integrated Closed
Circuit Television (CCTV) surveillance systems.
Based on the survey outcome conducted on selected housing
areas throughout the year, 96% respondents agreed that the
level of security has improved and fear of crime has reduced
exponentially with the implementation of CPP.
Furthermore, as Iskandar Malaysia is closely monitored by
PDRM, the increased presence of police force together with
the improved community policing as a shared responsibility has
contributed to 43% decline in street crime against the baseline
year and 12% decline in index crime from 2012 – 2013 in Iskandar
Malaysia.

The aim is to continuously improve the level of security, while
increasing public and investors’ confidence in Iskandar Malaysia.

Community Police Post (CPP)
17 CPPs operationalised
1 CPP completed construction
2 CPPs work in progress
Community Police Post is part of a community policing initiative where police constables
and their families are provided with residences and offices in each housing estate solely
for the purpose of crime prevention.
To date, 18 CPPs have been handed over to PDRM with 2 CPPs currently works in
progress. Ultimately, 208 CPPs will be established and operationalised throughout
Iskandar Malaysia while also creating high visibility of police officers to make for a safer
community.

Auxiliary Police (AP)
In line with the augmentation of police forces working towards a police to population ratio
of 1:250, IRDA actively pursues the engagement of Auxiliary Police within Iskandar Malaysia.
Application by IRDA for one battalion of 942 Auxiliary Police for Iskandar Malaysia was
approved by PDRM in 2011.
Aligned to the Omnipresence Programme initiative under the Government Transformation
Programme (GTP) Reducing Crime, the deployment of Auxiliary Police hopes to reduce crime
via increasing police presence in the public eye while addressing the issues of ineffective
policing due to lack of strength capacity in enforcement.
The formation of IMSec Sdn Bhd, a special purpose vehicle for IRDA marks a catalyst for the
increased enforcement capacity and capability in Iskandar Malaysia.
Subsequently, IRDA has sent six AP batches for special training at Pusat Latihan Polis (PULAPOL)
Muar, Segamat and Kuala Lumpur. Until October 2013, a total of 223 APs have graduated
and are currently being deployed all across Iskandar Malaysia.
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CCTV Surveillance System
The CCTV Study was commissioned in October 2010 and completed in May 2011. The
implementation stage of the CCTV had to be postponed in view of insufficient funds.
A total of 142 CCTV cameras have been installed at public areas including Kota
Iskandar Government Administrative Centre and the local authorities. The total number
of CCTV cameras in Iskandar Malaysia is estimated to be around 180,000.
Installation of an integrated CCTV surveillance system is crucial in managing crime
prevention, deterring and detecting crime. Aligned to the Iskandar Malaysia Safety &
Security Blueprint and Iskandar Malaysia Corridor and Johor Bahru City Transformation
Programme, a total of 1,467 CCTVs will be installed at designated locations to bring
Iskandar Malaysia at par with the surveillance system of a safe and strong metropolis of
international standing.
Upon commencement of the CCTV Package 1 project in May 2012, IRDA has identified
76 locations in the MPJBT area for the installation of 250 CCTV cameras in Nusajaya and
Johor Bahru Utara police districts. Additionally, 165 CCTV cameras are being installed in
Kulai Municipal Council area and expected to be completed by January 2014.
Y.A.B. Johor Chief Minister visited Nusajaya Command Centre on 2 September 2013 to
take a first hand look at the work in progress.
Total index crime for 2013 in Iskandar Malaysia dropped by 10.8% when compared
with 2012.

Corridor & City Crime Lab
IRDA is fully committed to ensuring the safety and security of those who live and/or work in Iskandar Malaysia.
A total of 10 initiatives which are in line with Iskandar Malaysia Safety & Security Blueprint are being implemented at a cost of RM3.05
billion spread up to 2020. The government has allocated RM30 million in early 2012 to kick-start the implementation of the CCTV
installation; one of the other 10 key initiatives.

Other Initiatives
IRDA also actively participated in the Safe City Programme led by the Yang DiPertua of all the local municipal councils in Iskandar
Malaysia, as dictated by the NKRA Crime Reducing initiatives. The rollout of five out of 15 Safe City initiatives across Iskandar Malaysia
will also mean the implementation of a proportion of the Safety & Security Blueprint programmes.
The Safety & Security exercise at Pasir Gudang was held annually in line with the Safety & Security Blueprint programmes. The annual
Safety & Security conference was successfully held in Nusajaya, Johor Bahru and Pasir Gudang.
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Infrastructure Development in Iskandar Malaysia
Contraflow Lane at Sultan Abu Bakar Complex, Johor.
The Ministry of Home Affairs and the Immigration Department of Malaysia have developed a detailed improvement plan with the
objective to create the Sultan Abu Bakar Complex, Tanjung Kupang (KSAB) as the “zero congestion” alternative route into Johor.

Implementation Agency
Iskandar Regional Development Authority (IRDA)

Programmes
The implementation of this contraflow lane work in KSAB is divided
into three packages which involves Civil Works, Mechanical and
Electrical Works and installation of Intercom System as stated
below:
1. Civil Works: Sinar Perdana Construction
Start Date: 16 July 2012, Finish Date: 16 October 2012
2. Mechanical & Electrical Works: MRZH Engineering

Funding
A total cost of RM2 million has been allocated and the funding
has been implemented.

Objective
IRDA has implemented the construction of contraflow lanes with
the objective of reducing the peak congestion to a maximum of
2 hours.

Start Date: 14 November 2012, Finish Date: 23 January 2013
3. Intercom System: Gemilang Digital Sdn Bhd
Start Date: 17 January 2013, Finish Date: 7 March 2013

Outcome
The Immigration Department has tested the contraflow lane on
29 March 2013 and the result was excellent in which queue time
has been reduced from 4 – 6 hours to one hour during peak time.

Flood Mitigation System in Jalan Kolam Air and Sungai Chat, Johor Bahru.
Flash floods at Jalan Kolam Air is a common occurrence. The stretch facing English College, Education Office at the junction of Jalan
Kolam Air and Jalan Kampung Mohd. Amin and Kampung Mohd. Amin itself are flood-prone areas.
These flash floods are often associated with the completed upgrading of Jalan Kolam Air project by IRDA. However, it also observed
that there are other contributing factors such as the maintenance of Tasik Merdeka, the construction works at Mudra Tropika project
and the timing of the downpour.
Normally, flood occurs when the downfall coincides with the high tide of Selat Tebrau when the tidal gates at Sungai Chat river mouth
is closed and water from Sungai Chat is unable to flow into Selat Terbrau.

Funding
A total cost of RM2 million has been allocated and the funding
has been implemented.

Objective
The objective of this project is to solve the issue of flash floods
especially at Jalan Kolam Air.

Implementation Agency
Iskandar Regional Development Authority (IRDA)
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Programmes
The implementation of this project as stated below:
1. Civil Works: Perniagaan Harum Cipta
Start Date: 3 December 2012, Finish Date: 2 March 2013
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2. Mechanical & Electrical Works: Perniagaan Elektrik Kempas
Start Date: 3 December 2012, Finish Date: 2 March 2013

Outcome
This project was completed on time and has been handed over
to Majlis Bandaraya Johor Bahru for maintenance.

Upgrading of Sungai Tebrau Bridge KM9, Kampung Pandan, Jalan Tebrau, Johor Bahru.
The proposed project involves the upgrading of the existing four-lane bridge over Sungai Tebrau at KM9 Federal Route 3 (Jalan Tebrau)
at Kampung Pandan, Johor Bahru into a new four-lane expressway heading to Kampung Pandan and three-lane expressway heading
to Johor Bahru. This road-widening process also requires the widening of the approach road, treatment to the soil and demolition of
some existing structures. Other works involve utilities relocation and installation of street lighting.

Implementation Agency
Iskandar Regional Development Authority (IRDA)

Programmes
The implementation of this project is stated below:
1. Bridge Work: NZ Bina Sdn Bhd
Start Date: 12 August 2013, Finish Date: 28 December 2014

Outcome

Funding

This project is progressing well and is targeted to complete as
scheduled in December 2014.

A total cost of RM13.5 million has been allocated and the
funding has been implemented.

Objective
The objective of this project is to reduce peak hour congestion
from Johor Bahru to Kota Tinggi at that stretch (KM9, Kampung
Pandan, Jalan Tebrau, Johor). By widening this bridge, it will
reduce required time to cross this bridge where it occassionally
leads to bottleneck traffic.
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Infrastructure Development in Iskandar Malaysia
Feasibility Study, Engineering Study and Detailed Engineering Design Related to
Bus Transit Priority.

Iskandar Malaysia is running on the right track in achieving its ultimate goal – to be a sustainable metropolis of international standing.
The ongoing development and completion of catalytic projects within the vicinity of Iskandar Malaysia have resulted in a surge of
activities, ranging from 55,000 new job creation to tourism influx from both domestic and international market.
Albeit the surge is seen as a boon to Iskandar Malaysia, the surge too will subsequently add additional burden into the metropolis’
current road system. At the moment, the accessibility and connectivity of urban transportation is in need of further improvement as
we are moving towards the Low Carbon Society. Iskandar Malaysia has to provide choices for people to enjoy efficient and smooth
travelling from one destination to another in the form of an effective and convenient means of public transportation.
Through IRDA’s observation, it is noted that the current public transportation system needs huge restructuring. This is due to the poor
state of current infrastructure and service patterns; the road network does not support transit priority with poor integration in land use
and the lack of enforcement at operational level.
The implementation of Iskandar Malaysia Bus Rapid System will:
1. Improve efficiency and reliability of bus services;
2. Improve the basic public transport infrastructure while increasing level of accessibility and connectivity; and
3. Improve and expand the current bus service network
The implementation of Iskandar Malaysia Bus Rapid System is proposed based on the following merits:1.
2.
3.
4.

Flexible and fast to implement
Lower infrastructure cost (1/10) compared to rail options
Able to match the carrying capacity of LRT
Affordable and sustainable system and easily implemented along with transit oriented development

Funding

Implementation Agency

A total cost of RM36.5 million has been allocated and the
funding has been implemented.

Iskandar Regional Development Authority (IRDA)

Objective
The objective of this project is to increase public transport model
split from 15% to 35%.
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Feasibility and Engineering Study
Programmes
The implementation of these projects/studies are stated as below:1. Project/ Study Name:
Feasibility Study for the proposed access road upgrading from
Kukup to Tanjung Piai, Johor Bahru, Johor.

3. Project/ Study Name:
Feasibility Study for the proposed road upgrading for Jalan
Datin Halimah to Persimpangan Sutera, Johor Bahru, Johor
with Transit Priority.

Consultant: Jurutera Perunding Raudhah Sdn Bhd
Consultant: KFI Engineers Sdn Bhd
Start Date: 15 Feb 2013
Finish Date: 14 July 2013
Remarks: Study Completed

Start Date: 15 Aug 2013
Finish Date: 14 Dec 2013
Remarks: Study Completed

2. Project/ Study Name:
Detailed Engineering Design for the upgrading works including
two interchanges at Jalan Kebun Teh and Jalan Tun Abdul
Razak with Transit Priority.

4. Project/ Study Name:
Feasibility and Engineering Study for Jalan Kong-Kong, Masai
to Jalan Skudai (Through The Middle Ring Road) Johor Bahru,
Johor with Transit Priority

Consultant: Jurutera Perunding Kamarul Saiful Sdn Bhd
Consultant: MUDA Consult Sdn Bhd
Start Date: 21 June 2013
Finish Date: 20 Dec 2013
Remarks: Detailed Engineering Design is in progress

Start Date: 15 Nov 2013
Finish Date: 14 May 2014
Remarks: Study is in progress

Outcome
Two of the study packages involving Tanjung Piai and Jalan Datin Halimah were completed on time.
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PEOPLE
DEVELOPMENT
i.

Talented Workforce to Support Rapid Economic
Development
ii. First Class Mentality through Knowledge and Innovation

Newcastle University Medicine Malaysia
(NUMed Malaysia)
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PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT
i. Talented Workforce to Support Rapid Economic Development
ii. First Class Mentality through Knowledge and Innovation

Talent Outreach Programme
Team
Lead

Performance
Information

Pasir Gudang

Plaza
Angsana

Persada

UPENJ

Total Visitors

15,000

17,000

13,000

JTK

1. Job Seekers

2,003

2,178

1,732

2. Job Vacancy

3,779

1,801

3. Interview

2,003

2,125

The objective of the
Outreach Programme is to
provide job opportunities
in Iskandar Malaysia and
attract more talents to
work in this region. IRDA was
involved in various outreach
programmes locally and
abroad as one of the initiatives to
raise awareness among Malaysian youths on the developments
in Iskandar Malaysia. In 2013, IRDA participated in various career
fairs and briefings involving various agencies such as Institut
Belia Negara, UiTM, Politeknik Ibrahim Sultan, Department of Skills
Development (DSD), training providers and various non-profit
organisations.
IRDA has also collaborated with Talent Corporation Berhad
(TalentCorp), participated in various career fairs covering major
cities such as Melbourne, Adelaide, Sydney, Brisbane, Perth and
London. The objective of this initiative is to create awareness

1,732

among Malaysians residing abroad on the developments and
career opportunities in Iskandar Malaysia while also offering them
a path to return to Malaysia.

Outcome
The Programme introduced IRDA and Iskandar Malaysia to
Malaysian professionals and students in London and Australia
through TalentCorp and GRADUAN, where IRDA received about
400 resumes from potential candidates.
We also provided a professional platform for IRDA to promote
business and career opportunities in Iskandar Malaysia.
We have established a strong relationship with TalentCorp,
employment communities and other government agencies such
as the Consulate General offices, Ministry of Health, Ministry of
Education and various other Malaysian companies.

Study on Human Capital Requirement for Iskandar Malaysia
The purpose of this study is to review the existing Iskandar
Malaysia Human Capital Blueprint (IMHCB) in ensuring the
relevancy of the blueprint with the current and existing human
capital supply and demand in Iskandar Malaysia. In Malaysia,
the Economic Transformation Programme (ETP) and the Tenth
Malaysian Plan (RMK10) recognises Iskandar Malaysia as a critical
contributor to the creation of new jobs and economic growth
in the next two decades. This study aims to examine the drivers
of talent supply and demand, and address the human resource
development needs in four sub-sectors which are theme parks,
film & television, oil & gas (downstream) and specialist medical
services.
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Moving Forward:
•

Develop a broad understanding of the talent landscape
within the four selected sectors.

•

Identify the demand and supply for talent for selected sectors
(up to 2020).

•

Identify talent requirement gaps for selected sectors.

•

Benchmark the strategies and best practices of two countries
per selected sector.

•

Develop actionable plans to ensure sustainable talent for
Iskandar Malaysia’s selected sectors.

Iskandar Malaysia Creative Industry Talent
Development Programme – IMCITDP
Driven by the establishment of Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia
Studios (PIMS), and based on the estimates of incoming foreign
film & television productions, the IMCITDP was created as a
joint-collaboration between the IRDA and PIMS. Designed to
strengthen the local film production industry here in Malaysia,
the programme’s main aim is the training and up-skilling of the
Malaysian Film/TV Crews in order to seamlessly integrate with
large-scale international film & television productions.

Taught by highly-qualified foreign experts in their respective
fields, the programme will allow trainees to learn from the best
while gaining valuable knowledge and a broader understanding
of the operational functions of the various departments in
international film & television productions.
For those interested in film-making, the IMCITDP offers a great
stepping stone to a career in the international film industry.

Having rolled out in early 2013, and covering ‘above the line’
(cinematic) as well as ‘below the line’ (organisational and
technical skills) and taking a multi-faceted approach to training,
a total of 24 courses and 10 master-classes will be executed
throughout 2014.
The completion of the first seven courses saw the graduation
of 146 trainees. Four out the seven coursework curriculum have
already been approved by DSD. When the approvals are
completed, the National Occupational Skills Standard (NOSS) –
format curriculums will be made available to accredited centres
and their equivalent, to enable more Malaysians to undergo
training in these seven areas. Of the first batch of trainees, some
have already obtained employment in local and international
productions as well as local SMEs.
The next batch of courses, which will be carried out in
collaboration with Met Film School from the UK, will cover a wider
range of film-making skill sets. Master-classes will also be made
available to current Malaysian film-makers to upgrade their skills
and specialisations.
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Iskandar Malaysia Creative Industry Talent
Development Programme – IMCITDP
Supporters
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ministry of Finance
Jabatan Pembangunan Kemahiran
(JPK)
Akademi Binaan Malaysia (CIDB)
Politeknik Ibrahim Sultan (PIS)
Kolej Komuniti
MARA
FEMAC Accreditation Centres

First batch of IMCITDP
(Completed)

•
•
•

Make up
Technical Drawing (Draughts Person)
Script Supervision

The first seven courses covered the
following areas –
• Production Accounting
• Wardrobe
• Grip
• Electric
• Set Construction
• Hair

Upcoming Courses
The next batch of courses, which will be carried out in collaboration with Met Film School from the United Kingdom, will cover a wide
range of film making skill-sets including Production Management, Art Department, Casting, Location Management, Management
techniques for Film and many more. Master classes will also be made available to current Malaysian film-makers in Cinematic areas
– covering Screen Writing and Adaptations, Global Co-Production Strategy and Film Financing, among others. The upcoming courses
are as below:

Film-making
(Production Assistant Seminar)
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Casting
Location Management
Production Office Coordination
Production Management
Assistant Directors
Managing Techniques for Film
EP Movie Magic Scheduling

•
•
•
•
•
•

EP Movie Magic Budgeting
Art Department Coordination
Art Direction
Set Dressing / Props Buying
Technical Drawing (Draughts Person)
Script Supervision

Karnival Kerjaya, Perniagaan dan Kemahiran (KEPAK)
The Career, Business and Skills Carnival is a human capital development programme conducted in collaboration with the Johor State
Government which falls under the second-strategy Budget 2011 which aims to improve the lives of low-income communities.

The main targets and areas of focus:
1. School leavers, training and higher learning centres looking 		
for work, business and skills upgrading.
2. Job-seekers and full-time or part-time businesses looking to 		
expand existing revenue sources including housewives,
single mothers, the disabled or the elderly.
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3. Low-income workers who require training to improve skills 		
and the ability to retrain for better jobs while also increasing 		
the opportunity to increase revenues.
4. School students as well as trainees and training centres in 		
preparation for work exposure prior to stepping into the work 		
or business world.
5. Career advancement for experienced employees who are 		
skilled in a particular field.
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The main purposes of programme are as stated below:

3. Skill enhancement opportunities and retraining.

1. Reveal and match the target groups of career opportunities 		
locally and in Iskandar Malaysia.

4. Sharing of information in order to form a developed and
high-income society in Johor.

2013

2. Entrepreneurship programmes and income-generating 		
opportunities through small and medium businesses.

Strengthening ‘Smart Partnership’

Various initiatives in developing skilled workers have been
implemented from 2010 until 2013 and among them are
developing ‘Smart Partnerships’ between IRDA, government
agencies, training providers and industries in Iskandar
Malaysia. In this collaboration, government agencies such as
Skills Development Fund Corporation (Perbadanan Tabung
Pembangunan Kemahiran), an agency under Ministry of Human
Resources (MoHR), will provide the training funds. Industries
provide feedback on the types of skilled and number of skilled
workers required. Then, training providers train as per the industry
requirement. Meanwhile, IRDA’s role in this collaboration is to
plan, facilitate and coordinate with all agencies involved in
this collaboration.
IRDA has successfully planned and coordinated various skilldevelopment programmes based on the industry requirement
mainly for catalytic projects such as Legoland Malaysia, Puteri
Harbour Family Theme Park, Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia Studios,
Malaysian Marine Heavy Industry, RAPID Pengerang and many
more.
IRDA is currently reviewing its strategic plan to ensure sufficient
supply of skilled workers by 2015. This plan will also be included in
the Iskandar Malaysia Human Capital Development Action Plan,
in-line with the Economic Transformation Programme (ETP) across
National Key Economic Areas (NKEA).
Currently, IRDA facilitates Jobs Malaysia, an agency under the
Ministry of Human Resources in their job placement plans, DSD
in the human capital development plan and Johor Economic
Planning Unit (UPENJ) in implementing Career, Business and Skills
Carnival commonly known as KEPAK. This carnival has been
organised on a rotation basis in various districts in Johor such as

Kota Tinggi, Segamat, Mersing, Muar, Kluang, Pontian, Batu Pahat
and Johor Bahru. So far, the response for KEPAK among Human
Resource Managers and the visitors is very encouraging in the
respective districts.
IRDA and UPENJ have also collaborated in developing the
Human Resource Management System for Johor. The purpose
of this system is to monitor and gauge the demand and supply
of workers in various sectors and levels. IRDA has also developed
good networking with the Human Resource Managers within
Iskandar Malaysia through regular meetings and gatherings
for the purpose of information sharing and implementation
of relevant initiatives. IRDA has also implemented 20 Talent
Development Programmes and has upgraded the existing
Tracer System for School Leavers.
In 2013, apart from monitoring and upgrading the existing
initiatives, significant emphasis has been given to strengthen
the strategic collaboration between IRDA, government, training
providers and industries to train more skilled workers based on
industry requirements. Focus will be given to fulfill job vacancies
offered by four emerging sectors in Iskandar Malaysia namely,
Hospitality & Tourism, Creative, Oil & Gas and Healthcare.
In addition, IRDA has collaborated with the Institute for Labour
Market Information and Analysis (ILMIA), an agency under the
Ministry of Human Resources to review the Iskandar Malaysia
Human Capital Blueprint that was developed in 2009. The revision
was required to ensure that the human capital development
plan and strategy is in-line with current investment trends in
Iskandar Malaysia.
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Moving Forward
Up-skilling and Re-skilling
Up-skilling and re-skilling help overcome the rising issue of skilled
worker shortage, mainly for the Hospitality & Tourism, Creative, Oil
& Gas and Healthcare sectors. With the involvement of agencies
in the up-skilling and re-skilling initiatives such as DSD, Human
Resource Development Fund (HRDF) and Skill Development Fund
Corporation (PTPK) under MoHR, Performance Management &
Delivery Unit (PEMANDU), MARA, DSD, private training providers
and industries, the ‘Smart Partnership’ has successfully trained and
up-skilled workers in accordance with the industry requirements.
Implemented in 2013, the first phase of IMCITDP stretched across
seven vocational courses, namely make-up artist, hair, wardrobe,
electric, set construction, grip and production accounting. This
programme, which commenced in March 2013 for a duration of
10 weeks, has successfully trained a total of 146 skilled workers
in these areas for international film production houses that are
expected to utilise Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia Studios (PIMS) in
Nusajaya. This programme will continue to train about 760 skilled
workers in the creative sector by the end of 2015. The programme
allows foreign trainers with experience in international film
productions to train Malaysians as crews and professionals in their
own right. In this programme, IRDA and DSD have also developed
curriculums for these areas to further train more skilled workers.
Meanwhile, the National Talent Enhancement Programme (NTEP)
has been introduced to Iskandar Malaysia for the Electronics
and Electrical (E&E) sector. In an effort to reduce shortage of
technical talents in E & E and Mechanical fields from becoming
critical, our government has introduced NTEP through PEMANDU.
This enables more engineering graduates to be trained by
employers according to the industry requirements. More than
60 engineering graduates have been given opportunities to be
trained by participating companies such as Celestica, Kenwood,
Sumitomo, PCA Technology Sdn Bhd, Beyonics Technology Sdn
Bhd, Syarikat Wen Ken Drug Sdn Bhd, All Cosmos Industries Sdn
Bhd, Asiaflex Sdn Bhd, Luvata (M) Sdn Bhd and others.
Meanwhile, for the Oil & Gas industry, IRDA, Malaysia Marine and
Heavy Engineering (MMHE), PTPK and local training providers
have collaborated to implement a ‘Finishing School’ – a shortterm intensive training to up-skill these graduates from local skill
centre to meet the industry skill set requirements.
Through the‘Place and Train’ programme, trainees who have
completed SKM 1 and 2 in welding will be offered a conditional
job offer and enroll in the Finishing School to acquire required
skills as per the industry standards for a period of three
months. Eventually, they will be offered a job once they have
accumulated all their required skills.
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Attracting and Retaining Women and
Handicapped into the Workforce
IRDA has collaborated with UPENJ, Ministry of Women, Family
and Community Development, various non-profit organisations
and relevant agencies in developing a strategic plan to nurture
and strengthen women based on their potentials while also
encouraging the involvement of the handicapped into the
workforce.
Among other initiatives that have been implemented is the
encouraging opening of dedicated childcare centres that
offers various incentives for childcare operators.

‘1 AZAM Programme’ – Job opportunities to the
underprivileged group in Iskandar Malaysia
One of the six elements in NKRA under the Government
Transformation Programme (GTP) is to upgrade the living
standards of the underprivileged group by providing
employment. IRDA’s involvement in the ‘1 AZAM programme’ is
through promoting KEPAK, Night Career Fair 2012 & 2013 as well
as various career fairs organised by Jobs Malaysia and other
agencies.
IRDA monitors the implementation of these initiatives to ensure
that it is implemented in accordance to the framework that was
developed and agreed with the respective agencies. IRDA has
constantly engaged the implementation agencies and added
value to these initiatives to give a greater impact.

SME Programme
SMEs are an integral part of the growth engine for Iskandar
Malaysia as being outlined in the Comprehensive Development
Plan (CDP) and the Iskandar Malaysia Investment and Marketing
Strategy Roadmap (IMSR). As the development grows rapidly
in Iskandar Malaysia, SMEs must take note of the competitive
landscape as well as the incoming influx of regional and global
players being welcomed into Iskandar Malaysia. IRDA strives to
accelerate growth and strengthen the participation of SMEs
to be more competitive as well as facilitating SMEs to move to
higher value activities in Iskandar Malaysia.
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•

SME Satisfactory Index evaluated from our 2013 SME
programmes is 4.65.

•

Bengkel Pembungkusan dan Penjenamaan SME Corp
& IRDA – offers SME financial assistance in acquisition
of machinery with an emphasis on the importance of
branding and corporate imaging.

•

SME Biz Talk is a collaborative effort between SME Bank
and IRDA to plan business strategy for SMEs in facing 		
challenges due to current national economics scenario.

Moving forward:
Iskandar Malaysia will be focusing on youth and women
entrepreneurship development particularly to collaborate
with Malaysian Global Innovation and Creativity Centre
(MaGIC), National Entrepreneur Development Office, 1Malaysia
Entrepreneur (1Met), Multimedia Development Corporation
(MDEC) and Human Resource Development Fund (HRDF).

Iskandar Malaysia SME Strategic Framework
Objectives:

Overview & Achievements:
IRDA in collaboration with various Ministries and agencies such
as Ministry of International Trade and Industry (MITI), Ministry of
Domestic Trade, Co-operatives and Consumerism, Cradle Fund
Sdn Bhd, SME Corp, SME Bank, MDeC and TERAJU is continuously
strengthening the participation of Bumiputera in Iskandar
Malaysia through the programmes stated below:
•

Iskandar Malaysia SME Dialogue – a dialogue session for SMEs
to stay informed of the latest developments and
opportunities available in Iskandar Malaysia.

•

30 SMEs signed up under Saham Khas MITI during Program 		
Pembangunan Usahawan Iskandar Malaysia which also
encourages SMEs to register their product under 			
Geographical Information (GI).

•

Coach and Grow Adoption is an awareness programme
for participants before undergoing the application and 		
selection process to entitle them to be coached by an 		
appointed consultant.

•

Approximately 1,200 SMEs participated in our 2013
programmes, including business matching, consultancy
& advisory and awareness or outreach programmes.

•

To develop a structured and comprehensive SME strategic
framework and blueprint for Iskandar Malaysia;

•

To conduct a structured and comprehensive study that
shall contain key strategic SME framework and blueprints 		
for Iskandar Malaysia, Strategic framework for SMEs for 		
Singapore and Malaysia, SME business models , development
milestones, initiatives and quick wins that could assist IRDA to 		
create Iskandar Malaysia SME as a world class SME; and

•

To strategically position Iskandar Malaysia SMEs to be more
dynamic and flexible in meeting the international standards 		
of SMEs while focusing on the nine economic sectors in high 		
value added activities.

Moving forward:
To implement programmes and initiatives recommended in this
strategic report to drive Iskandar Malaysia towards their goal
of being a strong and sustainable metropolis of international
standing.
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Moving Forward
TERAJU@Iskandar Malaysia

TERAJU@Iskandar Malaysia is one of the arms of TERAJU that
implements TERAJU@Koridor initiatives in Iskandar Malaysia. It
is managed via a collaboration with IRDA to identify and assist
Bumiputera companies to undertake viable projects through
the provision of Facilitation Fund and the implementation of High
Performing Bumiputera Companies (Teras) programme. It also
aims at educating, informing and creating awareness among the
Bumiputera community on other available support provided for
by TERAJU.
Together with the Johor State Government, TERAJU@Iskandar
Malaysia identifies growth opportunity areas that will eventually
provide strong platform and benefit the Bumiputera business
enterprises in Iskandar Malaysia by establishing strategic
initiatives.

TERAJU@Iskandar Malaysia commenced its operation in
September 2012.
Programme Highlights:
•

RM100 million grant allocated for Iskandar Malaysia in 2012.

•

RM19.9 million grant approved to 4 companies under
Facilitation Fund in 2013.

•

100% approval rate for 44 applications received throughout
2012 for Teras Programme and Facilitation Fund.

Outcome
RM3.42 billion worth of committed investment from SMEs in
Iskandar Malaysia achieved through TERAJU@Iskandar Malaysia.

SME Programmes

One of the foundations for the Iskandar Malaysia’s development
strategy is growth and value creation. To support this, the SMEs
in Iskandar Malaysia are being nurtured to be significant players
in realising the vision of a strong and sustainable metropolis
of international standing. This is to be achieved through
the acceleration of growth and the strengthening of SME
participation that allows it to be more competitive and resilient
in both the local and global markets.
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Programme Highlights:
1. Iskandar Malaysia SME Dialogue:
Conducted a dialogue session to keep the SMEs abreast
with the latest development and opportunities available
in Iskandar Malaysia.
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2. SMEs Pocket Talk:

Annual Report

2013

b. Targeted programmes such as Financial Grand ‘Coaching
and Grow’ IRDA-Cradle, Smart Biz Kid Iskandar Malaysia,
SME International Talk Series and International SME
Networking Programme.

Sharing of opportunities available in specific sectors in
iskandar Malaysia with SMEs in Malaysia and Singapore.
3. SME Competitive Rating for Enhancement (SCORE):

Outcome

Conducted to identify strengths and weaknesses of SMEs
with the aim of recommending measures for improvements.

Up to 100% increase in sales and productivity as a result of 2,500
SME participation in various programmes held in collaboration
with SME-development agencies.

4. Others:
a. Business Accelerator Programme and Enrichment &
Enhancement Programme.

Local SMEs penetrated the high-end and international markets
through businesses operated in Johor Premium Outlets, Legoland
Malaysia as well as in education developments such as EduCity.

Iskandar Malaysia SME Strategic Framework
Iskandar SME Business Eco-System

PROGRAMME
HIP

HIP
PROGRAMME
PROGRAMME
PROGRAMME

Financial

HIP

PROGRAMME

Human Capital

PROGRAMME

Innovation

HIP

HIP

Identification
of
opportunities

HIP

FEEDBACK

VISION

TARGET

BACKBONE STRENGHTENING & BALANCING

PROGRAMME
HIP

HIP
PROGRAMME
PROGRAMME
PROGRAMME
HIP

Legal Framework

Infrastructure

HIP

HIP
PROGRAMME

Market Access

HIP
PROGRAMME

Identification
of
opportunities

PriPMA = Priorities *Plan *Manoeuvre *Accelerate
HIP

High Impact Programme

Realising the importance of SMEs in the development of Iskandar Malaysia, IRDA is currently in the midst of formulating the Iskandar
Malaysia SME Strategic Framework with the objective of accelerating and internationalising SME businesses. This will in turn create
a positive impact on SME growth development which will subsequently contribute to the much needed support for the rapid
development of Iskandar Malaysia.
Programme Highlights:
•

Review, recommend and formulate current national policy
and incentives in order to expedite the growth of local and
international SMEs.

•

Areas being reviewed include business planning, special
target projects, enriched and enhanced database with
categorisation for better tracking of SME development,
quick wins, matters relating to policies and incentives
related to SMEs.
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Learning & Development
The scope of learning ranges from value-driving execution
programmes, extraordinary productivity, effective
communication and executive and leadership development.
As a progressive organisation, IRDA was given the privilege to
co-host the Business of Innovation programme which involves
three world-renowned speakers. They are Dr. Michio Kaku,
Mark Gallagher and Bill Rancic.

IRDA acknowledges the need to improve the performance
of individuals and groups in an organisational setting and
endeavours to employ the best talents to continuously hone
their skills through the latest learning programmes that will better
equip them in their specific fields of expertise.
IRDA extends the idea of personal development (and thereby
organisational development) to beliefs, values, wisdom,
compassion, emotional maturity, ethics, integrity – and most
important of all, facilitating our employees to identify, aspire,
and fulfil their own unique individual personal potential. Training
Needs Analysis (TNA) for the year 2014/2015 was conducted this
year to identify the needs of our employees to be aligned with
IRDA’s people development requirements.

The event was part of our collaboration with the London
Speakers Bureau where 600 participants attended the event
which was held in JW Marriot Kuala Lumpur. IRDA also continued
with our Leadership Series having Tan Sri Rafidah Aziz and Peter
Drapper in May and Hamish Taylor in September. The leadership
series was also part of our collaboration with the London
Speakers Bureau. A few in-house sessions with external agencies
were also conducted. IRDA organised the Integrity of Workplace
with YaPEIM, 2P Performance Talk by Prodigy Asia Sdn Bhd and
the Breast Awareness Talk with Hospital Sultan Ismail (HSI). IRDA’s
strategic partners assists and organises all programmes, formal
courses, seminars and workshops which will continue to be held
both internally and externally.
e-Continuing Professional Development (CDP) was introduced,
an online system which was co-developed internally at IRDA.
The system was developed to make entries, calculations
and final reports much easier for employees. It refers to the
process of tracking and documenting the skills, knowledge
and experience that our employees gain both formally and
informally.

No.

Programme

Date
Conducted

Type of “best
practices”
Training

Invitation
to
Relevant
Agencies

Speaker
specialisation

Total

1.

The Business of
Innovation

9 Apr 2013

Inspire and produce
result-oriented
innovative leaders
who are able to take
their companies, their
careers and their
personal lives to
the next level

Internal
participants,
key partners,
stakeholders

1. Bill Rancic, Winner
of The Apprentice
2. Dr. Michio Kaku,
World Renowned
Futurist
3. Mark Gallagher,
Grand Prix Motor
Racing Boss

EXTERNAL
= 80

To share and update
internal participants,
key partners,
stakeholders on the
recent trips to Japan
by IRDA employees

Internal
participants,
key partners,
stakeholders

IRDA employees
made a trip to Japan
to understand and
learn more about
smart city.

EXTERNAL
= 18

2.
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World Café –
Future City

15 Apr 2013

INTERNAL
= 30

INTERNAL
= 60
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No.

Programme

Date
Conducted

Type of “best
practices”
Training

Invitation
to
Relevant
Agencies

Speaker
specialisation

Total

3.

Going Global – Talk by
Tan Sri Rafidah Aziz &
Peter Draper

29 May 2013

Inspire and produce
result-oriented
leaders who are
able to think outside
the box and are not
afraid to be different

Internal
participants,
key partners,
stakeholders

1. Tan Sri Rafidah Aziz,
Malaysia’s longest
serving Minister of
International Trade
and Industry
2. Peter Draper,
Ex-Manchester
United, Group
Marketing Director

EXTERNAL
= 21

To cultivate internal
and external parties
on the true meaning
of organisational
culture power

Internal
participants,
key partners,
stakeholders

Speakers were from
all around asia with
vast experience and
knowledge to share

EXTERNAL
= 14

Inspire leaders who
are able to take
their companies,
their careers and
their personal lives to
the next level when
drastic changes
happens

Internal
participants,
key partners,
stakeholders

Hamish Taylor
Ex – CEO of Eurostar
& Sainsbury Bank

EXTERNAL
= 39

To create a stress
free workplace and
to increase work
performance

Internal
participants,
key partners,
stakeholders

External Speaker has
vast experience on
stress management

To create awareness
about deadly
diseases and its
early detection

Internal
participants,
key partners,
stakeholders

The external speaker
is a specialist with
Hospital Sultan Ismail

4.

5.

6.

7.

Asia Organisational
Culture Summit (AOCS)
2013

Transformational
Leadership-Talk by
Hamish Taylor

2P Performance Talk

Breast Cancer
Awareness Talk

3 Jul 2013

3 Sep 2013

7 Oct 2013

25 Oct 2013

8.

2013 IRDA Youth Event

26 Oct 2013

Bringing youths
together in a
more healthy
environment while
also conducting a
grooming session
for youths

Internal
participants,
key partners,
stakeholders

9.

Grooming Session with
Bon Zainal Harun

12 Nov 2013

To create awareness
about how to dress
professionally

Internal
participants,
key partners,
stakeholders

INTERNAL
= 78

INTERNAL
= 30

INTERNAL
= 70

EXTERNAL
=5
INTERNAL
= 27
EXTERNAL
= 65
INTERNAL
=9
OVER 100

The external speaker
is a fashion icon and
also a designer

EXTERNAL
= 23
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Knowledge Management
Knowledge Management has been practised in IRDA since
2008. It started with the development of the Knowledge
Exchange Portal. Knowledge Management is a platform to
share information. IRDA’s Knowledge Management practice
is an integrated approach of creating, sharing, and applying
knowledge to enhance organisational productivity, and growth.
For 2013, the focus on Knowledge Management initiatives are as
follows:
•
•
•

To inculcate Knowledge Management tools and initiatives
within IRDA and to our stakeholders and partners
Create awareness on Knowledge Management
Capture stories about the best practices for completed
projects in Iskandar Malaysia initiated by IRDA

Knowledge Management is regarded as the key to competitive
advantage, market capitalisation and enhance livelihood in
Iskandar Malaysia which eventually will be one of the key
drivers to realise Iskandar Malaysia’s vision to be “A Strong
and Sustainable Metropolis of International Standing”.
We had been successful in organising the 2nd Knowledge
Management Forum this year. There is a significant increase in
participation of more than 100% that comprises of both public
and private sectors. We invited Global Training Network Alliances
to share about Information Mapping and methods for analysing
information that could ease communications. Plans are currently
being formulated to allow interaction within and outside the
organisation and to create innovative value-added service
components as part of the customer relationship management
process.

The Knowledge Management holistic approach involves multidisciplinary system which covers the importance of leadership
direction setting and commitment with the participation from
employees, support from IT system to enhance knowledge
transfer and accessibility, identify the various techniques about
how knowledge process is embedded into work processes and
practices in the organisation.

Internal Communication
IRDA continues its journey with “The People Excellence” campaign which was aimed at heightening excellent work values
and principles amongst employees. Efforts to foster closer relationship and narrow the gap between the employee and the
management, were implemented as per following few initiatives.

•

Lunch & Learn
The idea is to discuss topics and share views on the current
internal and external issues in IRDA over a lunch gathering.

•

Briefing Sessions
Briefing sessions on several topics such as insurance, benefits
and Human Capital Management (HCM) Info Day were
organised. These briefings help employees conduct an open
session with the HCM on topics or issues that have been
raised.
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•

Knowledge Sharing Session with CE
The Knowledge Sharing session with IRDA Chief Executive
(CE) was introduced last year. The idea of this session with
CE is for the employees and the head of the company can
have a one-to-one session.
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IRDA’s Strategic
Aspirations

Enhanced Shared Values
The assessment of the degree of assimilation and practice of the
shared values at individual and team levels were made to be
more objective and measurable. The shared values descriptors
have been concisely re-defined to be easily comprehended in
the context of each individual’s day to day execution of their job
duties. The refining of the shared values descriptors or dictionary
shall increase managers’ and appraisers’ understanding in
assessing their subordinates in a more objective manner,
particularly on how the shared values are demonstrated
and measured.

Customers Satisfaction

Mission Assurance

Employee Fulfillment

Culture

Values

Behaviours

Below are the enhanced shared values descriptors that have been structured and embedded into the Performance Management
System to ensure a fair and transparent assessment on employees’ performance and rewards.

SUPPORT STAFF

ASSOCIATES

AVP

VP

SVP

Build Global Business Understanding
International
Standing

Learn Continuously
Improve Process

Improve Continuously & Lead Change

Honest & Straightforward
Integrity

Accountable & Ethical

Managerial Courage

Assertive

Transparency & Governance

Think Analytically
Envision

Set Challenging Goals

Think Creatively

Think Strategically
Exercise Initiative
Innovate & Lead Change

Follow Procedures and Standards
Enable

Follow Policy &
Procedures

Commit to Tasks
Quality Orientation
/Attention to Details

Develop Others
Plan & Organise
Result Orientation

Oral Communication
Engage

Decisive
Get Results

Communicate with
Conviction

Written Communication
Teamwork

Energise Others

Interact with Impact
Collaborate for Results

Manage Conflict

Delegate Wisely
Focus on Stakeholders
Network & Build Relationship

Humility
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Employee Relations
IRDA’s manpower as at year-end 2013 stood at 192, which comprises Senior Executives to allow IRDA to play a more leading influential
role in line with our strategic functions.
Our employee relations strategies are based on IRDA’s business strategies and goals. IRDA’s Employee Relations main objectives are
to achieve commitment through our employees’ engagement in order to develop a sense of ownership as our common interest in
achieving IRDA’s goals through the development of our culture based on our shared values.
Various Employee Relations activities were consistently carried such as sports, recreational, wellness, Islamic, charity and volunteerism
related activities that will continued to be emphasised with the agenda in realising the organisation’s corporate social responsibility
(CSR). The following are activities that were carried out throughout the year:
2013 Employee Relations Activities
1. 2013 IRDA Blood Donation Drive
– 14 March 2013
41 people including our
neighbouring companies attended
this event in collaboration with
Hospital Sultan Ismail.
2. 2013 HCM Info Day
– 10 April 2013
53 people including our
neighbouring companies
attended this event in
collaboration with Tabung
Haji,PERKESO, KWSP & JAIJ.

3. Religious Talk with Ustaz
Muhamad Pairuz
34 people attended on 5 June
2013 and 78 people on average
attended every Thursday during
Ramadhan.

4. ‘Buka Puasa’ with 25 selected
poor families
104 people attended this CSR
programme hosted for 25 less
fortunate families within Iskandar
Malaysia.
5. Korban Group on Hari Raya 		
Aidiladha – 11 October 2013
Two penghulu representatives
from each divisions were
nominated to receive the
contributions for 14 villagers from
two villages (Kg.Air Manis & Kg. Sri
Paya) within Iskandar Malaysia.
6. Annual Appreciation Dinner
– 20 December 2013
119 people including our
employees’ family members
attended the Secret Agent
themed-event where 34
employees received ‘5 Years’
Service Award’ while also
featuring guest artistes Farhan,
Hillary and local band Azlan
and The Typewriter.

Town Hall Session – Bringing Together Thoughts and Opinions
IRDA’s commitment to transparency and accountability was continually demonstrated in the Town Hall sessions; as an informal
public quarterly gathering of employees where the Chief Executive (CE) provides highlights and updates on IRDA’s performance.
Identifies the challenges faced, and presents a road map on achieving our vision. The gathering is an opportunity for employees
from all levels to hold an open dialogue with the CE as well as raise questions and offer suggestions. Town Hall sessions signify IRDA’s
commitment in upholding it’s shared values – International Standing, Engage, Enable, Envision and Integrity – as the pillars of the
Iskandar Malaysia’s culture.
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Employee Engagement Survey

Today, employee engagement and loyalty are more vital than
ever before to an organisation’s success and competitive
advantage. Employees are IRDA’s biggest investment and should
bring the greatest reward. Employees are viewed as an asset to
be managed rather than as individuals who can create the next
innovation for success. Long-term engagement starts with good
communication between employer and employees as well as
among co-workers, fostering a positive working environment.

Employee Engagement Survey of 2013, the assessments were
based on engagement drivers of the Castellano model.
Due to the appropriate improvement initiatives being undertaken
against the concerns raised by employees during the year, the
result derived from 2013 Employee Engagement Survey had
shown an upward trend or improvement on the Engagement
Index and Response Rate.

Due to such importance, Employee Engagement Surveys has
been continuously carried out to address the organisational
factors that drive employee engagement. In the recent

Trend on Employee Engagement Indices and Response Rates 2008 – 2013
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Green Office Initiatives
In support of the Smart and Healthy City initiatives and to provide more efficient and eco-friendly service, IRDA has embarked
on promoting recycling and green office initiatives to reduce the environmental impact on our planet. The initiatives include the
placement of recycling bins on every level at the IRDA head office. The bins are segregated according to glass, paper, plastic and
other recyclable materials.
In line with the importance of reducing air pollution within IRDA’s office vicinity, five prime parking spaces have been dedicated
to the users of hybrid cars. Unlike conventional cars that are heavily dependant on fossil-based fuel, hybrid cars use less fuel, thus
reducing the environmental impact.
To promote a healthier lifestyle among IRDA employees, a new project under the Iskandar Malaysia Smart Healthy City and
Communities Programme was developed. IRDA switched from bottled water dispensers to reverse osmosis water purifiers and these
are available on two levels at the IRDA head office. The water purifier helps reduce the usage of plastics.
Make Health Fun is an initiative that aims to encourage IRDA’s employees to adopt a healthier lifestyle through it’s “Making Staircase
Fun” programme which promotes the use of the staircase instead of elevators.
In 2012, the IRDA Sports and Recreational Club initiated the Integrity Shop. New product range were added in 2013, including
refreshments, confections and instant noodles from Nestle.
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SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
i. Social Balance & Equitable Distribution of Wealth
ii. Environmental Sustainability

Social Development Strategic Framework

“A prosperous and harmonious
community underpinned by social inclusion
and equitable wealth sharing”.

Desired Social
Development
End State

Socio-economic
Mobility

Participation /
Involvement in
Socio-Economic
Activities

Participatory
Preparedness

Social
Safety Net

Institution
Building

Equitable
Wealth
Distribution

Economic
Inclusion

Human
Capital

Caring
Community

Racial
Harmony

Asset Wealth
Sharing

Financial
Capital

Social
Capital

Quality
of Life

Social
Inclusion

Connectivity

Beginning with the End in Mind
Our vision statement puts forth the dream of creating a multiracial, multi-religious and multi-national society and community that lives
harmoniously together while enjoying the benefits of the expected economic growth and wealth in the region.
The two main factors which contribute greatly to the envisioned prosperity and harmony are the fact that nobody is marginalised in
the pursuit of economic growth. Everybody will be provided with the opportunity to participate irrespective of race, religion, nationality
or economic standing. And, that the accumulated wealth that has been created, is to be shared in an equitable manner throughout
inter – and intra-races and groups.

Desired End States
Our Social Development Vision is translated into Desired Social Development End States to enable the formulation of key performance
indicators specially for monitoring purposes.

Desired End States

Brief Descriptions

Socio-Economic Mobility

The ability of people to move up the economic value chain while
participating either as employees, entrepreneurs or asset owners.

Equitable Wealth Distribution

The equitable distribution of assets and wealth ownership across the
respective races, as well as between the rich and poor in each community.

Caring Community

The building of a society which is truly sensitive to the needs of the less
fortunate.

Racial Harmony

The attainment and enhancement of harmony and unity among the
multiethnic populace in Iskandar Malaysia.

Quality of Life

A reflection of the general prosperity and well being of the people.

100

ISKANDAR REGIONAL
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (IRDA)

Annual Report

2013

Programmes Implemented based on Desired End States
1. Mindset Change
Cultivating a society with first class mindset in support of Iskandar Malaysia’s vision to build a strong and sustainable metropolis of
international standing.

Key Programmes
a. Awareness Before Change (ABC) Programme
•
•
•
•
•

Organised mostly in IMIC and based on invitation
Schools located within Iskandar Malaysia and Johor
Total of 36 programmes in 2013
Participation of more than 2,976 participants
Performance and outcome is measured via Improvement of Awareness Level
(pre and post programme evaluation rating)

b. Change Agent Programmes
•
•
•
•

10 programmes organised in 2013
Organised in IMIC
Total of 3,001 participants
As a follow through of the Change Agent Programmes effectiveness, the agents are
encouraged to conduct and initiate community & awareness programme. Examples
of programmes conducted:

i. Johor Convention of School Counsellors (Participation of 1,650 school students &
		counsellors)
ii. Iskandar Malaysia Community Development Programme (960 school students
		 partake in gotong-royong activities at Permas Jaya & Bandar Seri Alam)

c. Entrepreneurship, Productivity, Welfare And Mindset Change Week Programme
•
•
•
•

14 – 15 December 2013
Medini Mall, Nusajaya
Participants: Jabatan Kebajikan Masyarakat (JKM) officers & clients
This programme is an outcome from the third series of the Change Agent Programme
conducted, which focuses on cultivating entrepreneurship skills among JKM clients
and unleash confidence level of JKM officers to undertake new mandated KPI which is
to reduce numbers of JKM financial recipients

2. Socio-Economic Mobility
a. Kawan Iskandar Malaysia (KIM)
The Kawan Iskandar Malaysia (KIM) programme is a community empowerment programme that assists targeted groups in moving
up the economic value chain through social enterprises. This concept was presented and endorsed in the Social Development
Committee meeting held in October 2012 as part of an intervention under the Socio Economic Mobility strategy. The long-term
plan is to get 14 Mukims and 87 villages in Iskandar Malaysia to be involved. Each Mukim is expected to set up a Cooperative
consisting of the residents within the Mukim with elected board members entrusted to carry out the businesses. RM1 million will be
allocated to the respective Cooperatives via micro financing programme from the Social Project Fund (SPF). The objectives of this
programme are:
•
•
•
•

To generate and share wealth with low-income household families that are critically affected due to the increased cost of living
in Iskandar Malaysia
To assure the stakeholders of Iskandar Malaysia that there are plenty of opportunities for the locals
Local entreprenuers can participate in the supporting eco-system of Iskandar Malaysia’s promoted economic sectors
Its part of Iskandar Malaysia’s commitment that the economic development will have a direct impact and benefit the Rakyat
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Programmes Implemented based on Desired End States
2. Socio-Economic Mobility
a. Kawan Iskandar Malaysia (KIM)

Kawan Iskandar Malaysia: Existing and Planned Projects

5. Integrated

4. Agro-Tourism Project,

Business and
Tourism Avenue
Project, Mukim
Bukit Batu

Kampung Sinaran Baru

13. Eco-Tourism Project,
Teluk Jawa

3. Kampung Kong Kong

5

Laut Eco & Agro
Tourism Project, Masai

9. Maid in Iskandar Malaysia
(cleaning service),
Kampung Kempas

6. Agro-Tourism

Project, Sri
Gunung Pulai

Project, Tanjung
Langsat

4

10. Eco-Tourism

Project, Mukim
Jeram Batu

9

6

3
14

12
10

2. Medan Selera

1
2

Iskandar Project
(MSI), Gelang Patah

12. Agro-Tourism

Project, Mukim
Plentong

8
7

1. Kampung Sungai

Melayu Eco- Tourism
Project, Gelang Patah

11. Eco- and

Agro-Tourism
Project, Serikat

14. Eco-Tourism

13

11

8. Heritage Tourism
7. Agro-Tourism Project,

Project, Kampung
Tebing Runtuh

Mukim Tanjung Kupang

Three Projects Launched in 2013:

1st Launch:
Launch of Eco-Tourism Project at Kampung Sungai Melayu,
Gelang Patah (5 October 2013)
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2nd Launch:
Ground Breaking Ceremony for Iskandar Food Court (IFC)
Project at Taman Nusa Perintis, Gelang Patah (27 October 2013)
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3rd Launch:
Kampung Kong Kong Laut Agro and Eco Tourism project
site visit (30 November 2013)

Key Achievements/Outcome for KIM:
Increase of income of the participants between 30% – 50%.

3. Equitable Wealth Distribution
Equitable distribution of assets and wealth ownership across the respective racial class, as well as between the less fortunate and
the better off in each community.
Formation of Johor Housing Taskforce

Mini Carnival for Affordable Housing

On 25 July 2013 Johor Housing Taskforce was formed. The
taskforce is chaired by Y.A.B. Chief Minister of Johor and it was
established to discuss issues, strategies and action plans related
to housing that will ensure the well-being of Rakyat. It shall also
monitor the implementation of affordable housing policy to
ensure that targets are met.

In conjuction with Iskandar
Malaysia CDP Open Day
2013 held at AEON Bukit
Indah, Johor Bahru on 21
& 22 September 2013, IRDA
organised a Mini Carnival
with SUK Perumahan
Negeri Johor.

The Johor government is committed in ensuring that 28,000
units of low-cost and affordable houses are built in the urban
areas within the next five years with such areas being resided by
people of all races. 20,000 units would be built in the Iskandar
Malaysia development area and the other 8,000 units in other
areas of the state at a cost of RM50,000.00 to RM150,000.00
per unit.

The aim of the event was to introduce and provide awareness
to the public about affordable housing policy in Iskandar
Malaysia. The event also encouraged the community to register
with SUK Perumahan Negeri Johor for new affordable houses
costing RM150,000, which will be completed by phases starting
2014.

Endorsement of Relocation Protocol
In realising Iskandar Malaysia’s vision for future growth,
relocation of people and settlements are unavoidable,
particularly where such settlements are located in incompatible
land use zones or the land is required for public use. In 2012, the
Relocation Protocol of Iskandar Malaysia was prepared and has
been endorsed by Johor State Economic Planning Unit (UPENJ)
in November 2013.
The objective of the Relocation Protocol is to develop a
standard, comprehensive and dynamic set of processes and
procedures. This is to facilitate relocation of human settlements
as part of the development process, focusing on squatters
and squatters settlements, traditional villages (Kampongs) and
Orang Asli settlements, religious buildings and private lands.
Bumiputera Property Ownership Workshop in Iskandar Malaysia
In March and June 2013, the state government of Johor
organised several workshops on Foreign Ownership and
Bumiputera Ownership Policies. It is a collaboration effort
between public and private agencies to review Foreign
Ownership and Bumiputera Ownership Policy in Iskandar
Malaysia. The policies have now been finalised and targeted
to be approved by the first quarter of 2014.

Karnival Hartanah Bumiputera dan Perumahan
Mampu Milik Johor
‘Karnival Hartanah Bumiputera dan Perumahan Mampu
Milik Johor’ was the first carnival of its type organised by the
State Government of Johor in collaboration with IRDA and
Johor Corporation (JCorp) in promoting Bumiputera units and
affordable housing in Johor, focusing on Iskandar Malaysia.
The carnival aimed to provide opportunity to Iskandar Malaysia
communities especially from the low and middle income to
get information on how to own affordable housing, location of
committed projects under the Johor State Housing Policy and
availability of Bumiputera units in Iskandar Malaysia.
The carnival was held at Persada Johor International
Convention Centre, Johor Bahru on 29 November 2013
– 1 December 2013.
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Programmes Implemented based on Desired End States
3. Equitable Wealth Distribution
Workshop on enhancement of Johor State Housing Policy
On 5 September 2013, a workshop on preparation of Johor
State Housing Policy (outside Iskandar Malaysia) and revision
of the Housing Policy in Iskandar Malaysia was organised by
Johor State Economic Planning Unit. The policy is targeted to
be introduced and implemented starting 1 January 2014 for
outside Iskandar Malaysia.
The Housing Policy in Iskandar Malaysia was revised to ensure
that the supply of new
component of affordable
housing costing RM150,000
is open to those with
monthly household
income of RM6,000.

MoA Signing Ceremony between JCorp and State Government
to Provide Affordable Housing
On 3 September 2013,
Memorandum of
Agreement (MoA) on
low-cost and affordable
housing development
between JCorp and the
state government was
signed by JCorp president
and chief executive Datuk
Kamaruzzaman Abu Kassim and State Secretary Datuk Obet
Tawil, on behalf of the state government.
The sites identified for the project are Taman Seroja Tampoi ,
Bandar Dato’ Onn, Bandar Tiram Phase 1 and 3, Bandar Baru
Majidee, Kempas and Larkin. All the houses would be built on
land belonging to JCorp and its subsidiaries; targeted to be
completed in phases from 2014 – 2018.

4. Caring Community
Building a society which is truly sensitive to the needs of the less fortunate.
Racial Integration and Caring Community Mini Lab
IRDA in collaboration with Jabatan Perpaduan Negara dan
Integrasi Nasional (JPNIN) and Kementerian Pembangunan
Wanita, Keluarga dan Masyarakat (KPWKM) organised the
Racial Integration and Caring Community (RICC) Mini Lab on
8 – 10 May 2013 at M-Suites Hotel, Johor Bahru. A total of 45
individuals representing various government agencies, private
sector and non-governmental agencies participated.
The output of the minilab saw an integrated vision for both
end states with 15 top ideas and five clustered interventions
recommended for stakeholders to adopt. Ultimately, the
minilab resulted in strategies to achieve greater social return
on investments through redefining relationships between public,
private and community sectors as singular community.
Iskandar Malaysia Sustainability Communities Network
(IMSC Network)
As prescribed under the Racial Integration and Caring
Community minilab lab report, activating society to be more
self-sufficient is a key enabler to attain the long-term objectives
of the vision. An empowered community helps overcome
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resource issues in ensuring sustainable social development.
The IMSC Network was set up as a loose coalition of proactive
members of society to create a smaller network of people
connected to an even larger network representing the outside
communities. Its purpose is to build and enhance greater social
capital in Iskandar Malaysia. It aims to be a hub for people in
social innovation.
IMSC Framework
The racial integration and caring community lab was limited in
terms of its reach and coverage as it was organised to involve
a smaller group of people representing the public, private and
community sectors. This limitation was overcomed through
repackaging and transferring the minilab initiatives under
a new open platform to enable greater public access. The
IMSC Framework was adopted to allow greater community
collaboration through a framework for cooperation. It became
fully effective on the 3rd RICC Minilab follow up meeting on 13
September 2013. The IMSC Framework has seen many projects
undertaken to incorporate the strategies and recommendation
of the original Racial Integration and Caring Community
minilab.
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5. Racial Harmony
Racial harmony and unity among the multi-ethnic populace in Iskandar Malaysia.
Youth’s Talent Show 2013
IRDA in collaboration with Institut Penyelidikan Pembangunan
Belia Malaysia (IPPBM) and UiTM Kampus Bandaraya Johor
Bahru collaborated to organise ‘Racial Integration Amongst
Youth – Youth’s Talent Show & Football Competition 2013’ on
29 June 2013 at Perumahan Rakyat Iskandar Malaysia in
Gelang Patah.
This programme is a good
platform to promote
racial integration to
the Perumahan Rakyat
Iskandar Malaysia
communities especially
the youths. This event can
help to promote Iskandar
Malaysia as a place for
‘Play’, a part from ‘Work’, ‘Invest’, and ‘Live’. Racial Integration
Amongst Youth – Youth’s Talent Show & Football Competition
2013 is one of the programmes that deliver the message of the
importance of racial integration and caring community among
communities.
1st Chinese Community Iskandar Malaysia Conference

between the government and the local communities and also
encouraging active participation of the communities in tackling
issues. About 1,000 people participated in this conference.
Iskandar Learning Festival 2013
Its primary purpose is to provide the Rakyat with access to world
-class learning and development content for free to help spark
mindset change in the pursuit of human capital excellence.
It also aims to promote continuous learning and global
understanding through cross cultural and inter-generational
exchange.
2013 is the second year of Iskandar Learning Festival and it
continues its implementation model as a collaboration between
the public, private and the community. The
programme entailed a series of workshops,
seminars, talks, dialogues and trainings on
various topics centred around an annual
theme. These learning tracks are conducted
by experienced professionals in their
respective capacities and are designed to
change mindsets. More than 5,000 people
participated in this learning festival which
was organised on 7 – 13 October 2013.

Organised by the Southern University College and Johor
Tionghua Association on 26 October 2013 at Southern
University College, this conference was one of the outreach
programmes driven by the community. It provides a platform
to the stakeholders, members of the public and local investors
to get updates on various key developments in Iskandar
Malaysia, enhancing consistent communication and dialogue

6. Quality of Life
Development of Social Index

First Social Index Study Workshop in Iskandar Malaysia

Between February and December 2013, IRDA engaged
with Economic Planning Unit, Town and Country Planning
Department, Ministry of Urban Wellbeing, Housing and Local
Government, Department of Statistics, UTM and Local Authorities
that have developed earlier indexes such as Malaysia Quality
of Life (MQLi) and Malaysian Urban-Rural National Indicators
Network on Sustainable Development (MURNInets), Urban
Well-being Index and others. This is in relation to developing
the Social Index for Iskandar Malaysia.

In finalising the best indicators for Iskandar Malaysia, a workshop
was organised from 26 – 28 December 2013, involving State
and Federal Government ministries, departments, agencies
and selected universities to get their professional input in
identifying the best Social Indicators in line with National
Development Policy, Suara Hati Johor survey, Iskandar Malaysia’s
Comprehensive Development Plan, Social Development Desired
End State and Iskandar Malaysia related blueprint.
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Social Agenda Retreat
To realise a vision of prosperity and harmony in a community underpinned by social inclusion and equitable wealth sharing, a set of
strategies has been formed to deal with the key issues and gaps that are present in the current system.
The strategies include improving the quality of education through key areas, namely institution building, human capital, financial
capital, social capital and connectivity; participating and involvement in issues regarding social safety net, economic inclusion,
asset wealth sharing and social inclusion; and the liveability factors that encompass a caring community, socio-economic mobility,
equitable wealth distribution, racial harmony and quality of life.

Identifying the Root Cause
Using the Ishikawa method, the root causes have been identified such as racial polarisation, displacement, education quality,
community consciousness, and income vs affordability. Lack of transparency, no common bonding element and language barriers,
the existence of vernacular school are the identified problems that lead to racial polarisation, apart from the racial-centric policies
as well as inconsistent family upbringing and values.
Displacement within the community arises from the lack of holistic planning, unclear Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) on
managing displacement, unspecified agency, lack of resources and enforcement as well as lack of knowledge. On the other hand,
the poor quality of education standards is lagging the growth of the community due to factors such as poor planning to meet the
educational needs in Iskandar Malaysia; lack of funding for proper facilities and support from the private sector; and poor parental
involvement. Lack of awareness on the importance of education and inconsistent enforcement too, contribute to the the poor
education quality.
In terms of income vs affordability issue, the employment of incorrect communication medium and mismatched support system
of targeted group; lack of education; economies or investments that do not yield high-income jobs and various inconsistent
coordination among the agencies are the major root causes. Furthermore, lack of enforcement on price-controlled items, lack of
public amenities or facilities and enforcement and revision of Foreign Asset Ownership (property).

Fix

Enhance

Transform

Consolidated Root-cause Commonalities
Upon consolidating the root-cause, a number of commonalities have been identified. These commonalities include implementation
issue on developed models and programmes; policies that are readily available/reviewed/enhanced but not enforced and
implemented; lack of unenforced policies where programmes or issues that are addressed on ad-hoc, reactive basis but strategic
in nature; lack of education and awareness where there is no appreciation of impact to oneself and no information available; the
need for review/change/customise policy relevance that encompass national level and the need of political will.
To resolve the issues above, the following strategies have been employed to counter the issues in stages:

IRDA Strategic Intervention

> INFLUENCE

Displacement
Livability
Factor
Enhancement

Income VS
Affordability

KEY
ISSUES

IRDA Care
Function

PLAN
PROMOTE
FACILITATE

Community
Consciousness

Education
Quality
Racial
Polarisation
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Moving Forward
There are four major components of wealth sharing to promote social equity and improve quality of life. They are economic
participation, equitable wealth, social connectivity and quality of life.
Through inclusiveness and entrepreneur and technopreneur development, better economic participation can be achieved. This will
enable access to better jobs and cluster-driven talent and skills development.
To ensure equal distribution of available wealth among the society, measures such as improving household income, promoting zero
poverty, place-based wealth, affordable housing and spatially-driven asset value enhancement are crucial. This is to be added with
social connectivity aspects such as building a self-driven community, knowledge sharing, public participation and engagement as
well as trust-building.
In improving the quality of life, especially within the urban areas, the inclusion of green and health elements into lifestyle is important
and they include a clean and safe environment; the availability of quality and variety of amenities and infrastructure; plenty of
housing choices and transportation options; access to amenities and green lifestyle.
Strategic Thrusts Wealth Sharing 1

Strategic Thrusts Wealth Sharing 2

To increase economic participation rate from 67% to 72% in
2025 through knowledgeable and skilled human capital, which
is to increase the economic participation, several initiatives are
needed to attract and provide the avenue for youths, women
and other unemployed and underemployed citizens to enable
them to actively participate in the economy.

In order to reach the country’s vision of becoming a developed
high income nation, it is important to improve access to higher
income and capital gain through the increase of monthly
household income while subsequently eradicating the
occurrence of poverty and create place-based wealth.

Moreover, by upgrading the quantity and quality of human
capital, will finally reduce the barrier of employment
opportunities. Therefore, the following key directions are
needed to drive the human capital.
Strategic Thrusts Wealth Sharing 3
Improvement is the key to building a well-informed and
self-driven society. To Improve various initiatives such as
propagating community-driven acitivities, knowledge sharing
among all levels of societies is important in order to expedite
dissemination of information and ensure more knowledgeable
and well-informed societies – a valueable asset that will help
to achieve rapid and targeted regional growth in Iskandar
Malaysia by 2025.

Such initiative is made to increase monthly wages to a level that
is at least, at par with Kuala Lumpur. The marginalised and lowincome household will be provided with support to move up the
economic ladder and escape from the poverty trap.

Strategic Thrusts Wealth Sharing 4
As part of Iskandar Malaysia’s constant move in enhancing the
quality of life, improvements should be made on neighbourhood
environment while encouraging more investments to be made
on housing, transportation, infrastructure, health and economic
disparities. Such measure will ensure that the constant
economic growth will be able to deliver quality life to the
people of Iskandar Malaysia, guaranteeing the adequacy
of affordable amenities and housing.

Smart School 2.0 Roll-out
The Smart School programme was initiated by the Multimedia Development Corporation (MDeC) aimed at improving and
enhancing the ICT utilisation within schools in Malaysia. As Iskandar Malaysia aspires to become the educational hub of the
region, MDeC’s knowledge and expertise in smart schools and utilising ICT in education have proven to be an invaluable asset.
On 19 October 2011, an MoU was signed between IRDA and MDeC to collaborate the enhancement of 50 schools within Iskandar
Malaysia to realign this aspiration. The initial target for the year 2012 would be to improve Smart School quality standards of the 50
targeted schools from a three-star rating to a four-star rating.
For 2013, MdeC, IRDA and Jabatan Pelajaran Negeri Johor (JPNJ) are taking further initiatives to partner up with Microsoft for a
programme called MyBackPack Programme. The programme uses Microsoft Office 365 as a tool for developing 21st century skills.
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Smart School 2.0 Roll-out

MyBackPack programme encourages students and teachers to realise their full potential with teachings suited for all age groups.
Teachers and students can create, collaborate and share in real-time with instant messaging, voice over IP, email, calendar and
video across multiple devices (including non-Windows operating systems) through Office 365.
Office 365 for education is a cloud-based suite that includes Microsoft Office Web Apps, Exchange Online, SharePoint
Online and Lync Online.

ICT Programme Awareness for SME and Industry
IRDA has jointly organised two programmes throughout 2013 with seminars to leverage on ICT for businesses as well as briefings on
new technologies such as:
1. Pop Up Classroom (16 May 2013)
•

Jointly organised with Multimedia Development Corporation and Microsoft (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

2. Connected Lifestyle and Internet of Things (2 September 2013)
•

Jointly organised with Malaysian Communications and Multimedia Commission

Additionally, the event is a platform for the industry to share their thoughts and ideas on business models, new trends, changing
consumer expectations and various other matters.
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Environmental Sustainability
As Iskandar Malaysia moves into its next critical phase of development towards achieving its vision of a strong and sustainable
metropolis of international standing, IRDA needs a strong and dynamic team to handle its strategic environmental role.
In order to complete the three overlapping circles of the economic and social domains, thus providing an overarching strategic
framework and coherency, it is highly necessary and imperative to have dedicated initiatives in addressing and handling
environmental issues and challenges.
The mission is to provide excellent and robust strategic environmental policy advice and directions for Iskandar Malaysia as well
as for all IRDA Divisions through the Green-focused Agenda while also overseeing the implementation of the Low Carbon Society
Blueprint.

Low Carbon Society (LCS)
Towards fulfilling Malaysia’s voluntary commitment in reducing the country’s carbon intensity by up to 40% by year 2020 (based on
the level measured in 2005), IRDA strongly foresees that the implementation of a low carbon society is the way forward. The goal
is to reduce Iskandar Malaysia’s carbon emissions by 40% as it reaches maturity in 2025.
The global launching of the LCS Blueprint for Iskandar Malaysia (LCSBPIM) at COP18 in Doha in 2012 is a strong move by IRDA into
going low carbon, whilst at the same time achieving high economic growth. The LCSBPIM contains future society scenarios based
on socio-economic and environmental development variables; quantitative modelling of CO2 emissions and 12 major Actions
merged under 3 pillars – Green Economy, Green Community and Green Environment. These 12 Actions consisting of 52 Sub-actions,
97 Measures and 281 programmes have been formulated to transform Iskandar Malaysia into a low carbon society. It covers
wide-ranging but inter-related aspects including urban planning, smart growth, transportation, industry, building, energy efficiency,
renewable energy, lifestyle change, education and awareness, urban governance, forest conservation, waste management and air
quality.
There is also a strong element of consensus-building, education and awareness so that prime focus is given towards ensuring
the community is deeply involved, and in some ways become champions, in transforming Iskandar Malaysia into a low carbon green
growth region.
IRDA has now started implementing LCSBPIM. IRDA is documenting 10 of the 281 programmes through a book on implementation
called “Actions for a Low Carbon Future”. The book, the first in a series, describes the programmes being implemented with a special
feature on Pasir Gudang – a heavy industry area in the south-eastern region of Iskandar Malaysia. Each chapter will explain what
the programme is all about, its relation to the LCS, what the intended outcomes are, and the stakeholders that are involved. Among
others, it is hoped that the book can reach out to a wider audience on what IRDA is working towards, in collaboration with other
agencies. The 10 programmes are as stated below:
1. Integrated Green Transportation – Mobility 			
Management System
2. Green Economy Guidelines
3. Eco-Life Challenge Schools Project
4. Portal on Green Technology
5. Trees for Urban Parks

6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Responsible Tourism and Biodiversity Conservation
Bukit Batu Eco-Community
Green Accord Initiative Award (GAIA)
FELDA Taib Andak Low Carbon Village
Special Feature: Smart City-Nafas Baru Pasir
Gudang – Green and Healthy City

Programmes
The programmes to be implemented aim to improve environmental conditions towards enhancing quality of life and subsequently
to achieve environment sustainability.
A few programmes have, or will be, carried out throughout 2013 with the aim of encouraging participation and commitment among
stakeholders to support Iskandar Malaysia’s green agenda.
1. Green Economy Guidelines:
In moving towards a strong and sustainable region, adapting and changing ways of doing business to be more “green” is a
necessity and growth is about making processes more resource efficient. The economic guidelines will look into providing a set
of checklist that addresses areas of procurement, operations, and supply chain management in order to minimise its impact on
the environment for companies, adapting or improving current policies to support green growth and incorporating solutions for
lifestyle changes to move to a low carbon future. In promoting a low carbon future, information sharing and its accessibility on
green technologies and natural environment are important aspects.
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2. Eco-Life Challenge Schools Project:
In creating a green community, it would need to start at the roots i.e working
with the younger generation through education programmes, be it within the
current curriculum or non-curriculum approaches. The Eco-Life challenge is a
supplementary programme to provide contextual learning, systems-thinking to
changing personal and family lifestyles towards a low carbon future. This will be
in the area of energy consumption, waste generation, using renewables etc.
The Iskandar Malaysia Eco-Life Challenge Competition is an initiative involving
23 primary schools in Iskandar Malaysia. Its purpose is to inculcate an eco
friendly lifestyle in pursuit of our shared future.
During Iskandar Malaysia Eco-Life Challenge (ELC) TOT Session in 23 September
2013, the ELC workbook is distributed to 23 schools for all their primary six
students. All the schools need to submit their ELC workshop by early November.
Iskandar Malaysia Eco-Life Challenge Finals was held on 14 November 2013 and took place in IMIC. 23 schools came with
a team of five students each. They presented their projects and answered simple questions from panelists. Winners were
announced the same day.
For the 1st Prize winners, two teachers and five students were sponsored a trip to Kyoto.

3. Green Portal for Iskandar Malaysia:
The green portal is a website or an online platform where communities, government, private businesses, developers and investors
and the public can gain access to all types of information on green technology and natural environment in Iskandar Malaysia.
This is an indirect innovative approach to reduce carbon emission through improvement of portal user’s knowledge.

4. Green Accord Initiative Award (GAIA):
In encouraging or promoting changes towards a green economy, soft incentives or innovative initiative to recognise and award
worthy companies and businesses is the intent of GAIA. In its first phase, GAIA will look at the green building development to
highlight innovative technologies implementing renewable energy and being energy efficient and eventually looking at other
business sectors in Iskandar Malaysia that is implementing green technology. International rating tools will be used as the basis
to evaluate and recognise such efforts. This is an indirect means to reduce the carbon emission in businesses that are growing
green.

5. FELDA Taib Andak Low Carbon Village:
In working with a framework of green community, an eco-community is one that carries out economic activities to improve
village lifestyles and financial standing via employment, entrepreneurship and co-ownership. Applying suitable green
technologies and leading towards being a showcase and education centre, from its design, construction and operations to
achieve a balance in the economic development, its social status and environment as the desired outcome. An on-going work
in Felda Taib Andak, low carbon eco-village incorporates the application of low carbon mitigation measures and low carbon
lifestyles including the use of energy saving appliances, implementing the concept of 3R, creating green products. This pioneer
project engages all level of community in the village and inculcate an inclusive decision making process.
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6. Nafas Baru Pasir Gudang – Green and Healthy City:
Pasir Gudang is one of Malaysia’s most rapidly growing industrial zones, built in the 1970s.
The high density development in Pasir Gudang has resulted in high traffic volumes and the associated pollution from motor
vehicles as well as from industrial activities and effluents. Urban and industrial sources of air water pollution are the main issues of
concern for the people surrounding the area.
The initiative to rejuvenate Pasir Gudang through the Nafas Baru Pasir Gudang (NBPG) programme was mooted by IRDA,
together with Pasir Gudang Municipal Council with the aim of rejuvenating Pasir Gudang to become a Green and Healthy City
by 2025. Nafas Baru is in line with both the Low Carbon Society Blueprint and the Iskandar Malaysia Smart City Framework. It is
the plan that by having its residents smarter in resource planning and management, the communities within, be it residents, the
municipal council, industry and others can work towards transforming Pasir Gudang into a clean, green, healthy and vibrant city.
Among the four areas that will be looked into include that of green industry, solid waste management, carbon sequestration and
creating a green community.
Two programmes for 2013 are on greening existing industry and carbon sequestration.
Greening existing industryThe aim is to provide framework based on the industries’ capability and
LCS recommendation for the identified industries to be low carbon without
compromising their production outcome. This will be followed by continuous
monitoring on their achievement and improvement of low carbon-related
initiatives.
Carbon sequestration –
To increase the number of trees in order to absorb carbon, reduce
temperature and trap dust.
The key activities include calculating current carbon sequestration of Tree Preservation Order in Pasir Gudang.

7. Community Awareness Programmes on Environment:
In creating a Low Carbon Society, the community must play an important role in changing personal and family lifestyles while
adopting a mindset-change towards a low carbon future. As such, IRDA continuously promotes awareness on environmental
sustainability, issues and challenges through a series of events. These events are catered for both professionals and the general
public which are usually carried out in collaboration with several agencies.
a. Earth Hour:

An annual event led by UPENJ, the Earth Hour is a worldwide event organised by the
World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF) and held annually towards the end of March.
During the Earth Hour, households and businesses were encouraged to turn off their
non-essential lights for one hour to raise awareness about the need to take action
on climate change. The event saw about 1,000 people participating, encompassing
general public with various backgrounds.
50% of the participants have previously joined Earth Hour events and most of the
participants have switched off their lights during the one-hour period in a show of
support for Iskandar Malaysia’s Low Carbon Society Programme.

Yearly event led by UPENJ
(23 March 2013)
Medini Mall, Nusajaya
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7. Community Awareness Programmes on Environment:
b. World Environment Day Johor state
level Celebration

Held on an annual basis by Johor Department of Environment (DOE), the objective of
the event is to promote environmental awareness to all people of the world to come
together to share responsibilities in preserving and conserving the environment. Among
the activities that were organised in conjunction with the event were poem recital,
recyle fashion design competition and environment awareness talks.
The event garnered about 1,000 participants from the general public of various
backgrounds, with 78% of the booth visitors agreeing that the event has helped to
increase awareness and knowledge on environmental issues.

Yearly event led by DOEJ
(29 June 2013)
AEON, Tebrau City

c. EcoParty

In the spirit of Iskandar Malaysia’s vision as a sustainable metropolis of international
standing, the EcoParty served as an awareness programme that encourages
environmental preservation in our daily lives and specifically caters to the general
public, in a fun and creative way.
Among activities that were held during the EcoBazaar were Ecofilm screenings,
Urban gardening workshop, migratory bird workshop, acoustic performances and
fun eco-games.

In conjunction with Iskandar Malaysia
Eco-Tourism Summit 2013
(5 October 2013)
Galleria@Kotaraya

d. Energy Management
Awareness Training

Participants background ranged from school and university students, housewives
associations, villagers and many more. Furthermore, 85% respondents agreed the
knowledge that they received from the event can be used in their daily lives.

This programme provides training and education to improve human resource capacity
related to Renewable Energy (RE), Energy Efficiency (EE) and Green Technology. The
traning promoted involvement in climate change-related issues and factors through
initiatives under the Environment Planning Blueprint (EPB), Shoreline Management
Planning (SMP), RE and EE as well as Low Carbon Society Programme.
The training encompassed the following issues: Energy in building/premises; brief on
energy management and facts of energy usage; potential saving for electrical system
elements; potential saving for mechanical system and passive elements; and energy
audit in buildings/retrofits implementations.

In collaboration with with Sustainable
Energy Development Authority
Malaysia (SEDA Malaysia) and UPENJ
(26 June 2013)
Iskandar Malaysia Information
Centre (IMIC) Danga Bay
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Held to update stakeholders on LCSBPIM and progress reports on LCS programmes in
other Asian countries, it aims to showcase:
• Roadmap and Implementation
• Unveiling of UTM-Low Carbon Asia Research Centre
• An alliance of CoEs (Centres of Excellence) towards realising low-carbon
development in Asia – How to lead science-based policymaking”. The symposium
saw 100 participants from government agencies. Researchers hailed from Japan,
Indonesia, Thailand, Philipines and Cambodia. It is suggested to continuously conduct
such symposiums to update stakeholders on LCS Iskandar Malaysia and other Asian
programme on LCS.

In collaboration with UTM and
Kyoto University, Institute for Global
Environment Strategies (IGES) and
National Institute for Environmental
Studies (NIES). Sponsored by Japan
International Cooperation Agency
(JICA) under the SATREPS project on
Development of Low Carbon Society
for Asian Region
(30 October 2013)
Faculty of Built Environment

f.

Expert talk on solid waste

Held as a platform to share and discuss on Integrated Solid Waste Management (SWM)
approaches which include waste reduction, waste technologies, benchmarking cases
and many more. The talk discussed issues such as the general policy of SWM in Iskandar
Malaysia, current solid waste management and incineration technology and challenges
of (3R-Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) education and waste minimisation.

In collaboration with Okayama
University, as part of SATREPS project
(5 December 2013)
Grand BlueWave Hotel Johor Bahru

g. Participation in the 4th International
Greentech & Eco Products 		
Exhibition & Conference
Malaysia (IGEM 2013)

Showcasing Iskandar Malaysia’s Green-focused Agenda to the world, IGEM 2013 is a
platform for the region to share with visitors its commitment in tackling climate change
through the Low Carbon Society Blueprint and other environment-related matters.
About 1,500 visitors attended the exhibition, from high-ranking government officials
including our Prime Minister and other ministers; green business developers and other
local and overseas visitors.

In collaboration with Johor State
Government Unit Perancang Ekonomi
Negeri Johor (UPENJ)
(10 – 13 October 2013)
Kuala Lumpur Convention Centre
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8. International Collaboration on Environment:
Other than the current Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) funding on LCS project. IRDA’s other achievements are
the securing of in-kind funding from the following:
•
•
•
•
•

The UK’s Foreign and Commonwealth Office for Short Study on Climate Smart Cities;
United Nations Development Program Global Environment Facility (UNDP-GEF) for Green Technology Application for the
Development of Low Carbon Cities;
Panasonic Fujisawa Sustainable Smart Town (SST);
Keio University’s Comprehensive Assessment System for Built Environment Efficiency (CASBEE) Pilot; and
Energy Advance (Tokyo Gas) Feasibility Study on Area Energy Network Construction and Energy Management System.

Internationally, IRDA has also been involved in several noteworthy international events in 2013 including the Future City Initiative
(Japan, February and October), High-Level Seminar on Environmentally Sustainable Cities (Vietnam, March), the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) launching of their Synthesis Report on Green Growth Cities (Sweden, May),
Seminar on Eco-Cities (Belgium, Sept) and Smart City Week Yokohama (Japan, October).
Through its international connection, IRDA also collaborated with JICA to send representatives to Japan on JICA-sponsored
training: Future City Initiative (attended by IRDA) and Environmental Technology for Low Carbon Society (by Pasir Gudang
Municipal Council). IRDA assisted in Johor Baru City Mayor’s attendance at the Mayors Forum: Urban Green Growth in Dynamic
Asia, held in conjunction with the third Future City Initiative Seminar held in October in Kitakyushu.
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Statement of Corporate Governance
The Statement of Corporate Governance sets out the framework
and process through which the Authority and the Management
of Iskandar Regional Development Authority (IRDA) ensures
the integrity and sound operational policies and procedures in
accordance with prevailing laws, rules, regulations, best practices
and ethical business conduct.
The Authority
The Authority is the highest decision-making body in IRDA. There are eight Members of the Authority and it is co-chaired by the
Prime Minister of Malaysia and the Chief Minister of Johor.
Other Members of the Authority are eminent members from the public and private sectors, who are appointed by virtue of (Section
8(1)) of the Iskandar Regional Development Authority Act 2007 (Act 664). The Authority is committed to ensure IRDA practices the
highest standards of corporate governance, in keeping with the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance.
The Authority provides strategic directions, reviews and approves policies and decisions for the development and promotion of
Iskandar Malaysia, ensures proper financial administration and human capital management and oversees the overall management
of IRDA.

Authority Meeting
The Authority met once in 2013 for the Authority’s meeting. It was held on 6 November 2013 in Kuala Lumpur.
The details of the Members and their attendance are as follows:

Name of Attendees

Designation

No. of Meetings

Y.A.B. Dato’ Sri Mohd Najib bin Tun Abdul Razak

Co-Chairman

1/1

Y.A.B. Dato’ Mohamed Khaled bin Nordin

Co-Chairman

1/1

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dr. Mohd Irwan Serigar bin Abdullah

Member

1/1

Y.Bhg. Datuk Dr. Rahamat Bivi binti Yusoff

Member

1/1

Y.B. Dato’ Haji Obet bin Tawil

Member

1/1

Tuan Haji Elias bin Hasran

Member

1/1

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Nor Mohamed Yakcop

Member

1/1

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Liew Kee Sin

Member
Secretary

1/1

Y.Bhg. Datuk Ismail bin Ibrahim

1/1

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by IRDA. This process includes updating the
system of internal controls when there are changes to the organisation’s operations and to meet regulatory requirements.
The key elements of the internal control system of IRDA are as follows:
•

Clearly defined division and delegation of responsibilities
to the members of the senior management including a robust
organisation structure and the appropriate levels of authority
for expenditure approval limits.

•

Establishment of committees to review and recommend on
key areas such as evaluation of tenders, capital and 		
operational expenditure, projects, human resource issues
and other pertinent matters.

•

Documented internal policies and procedures that take into
account the changing environment, risks and enhancement 		
to processes.

•

Periodical reporting by the Management to the Authority
and/or the Audit Committee on financial and performance 		
indicators as well as key risk issues.
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•

A detailed budgeting process that incorporates the input of
all operational functions of IRDA for the preparation of 		
the annual budget that is approved by the Authority, as well
as the Economic Planning Unit of the Prime Minister’s 		
Department and the Treasury, Ministry of Finance, Malaysia.

•
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External audits conducted on the financial statements of
the Authority are under the statutory purview of the National 		
Audit Department (Jabatan Audit Negara).

Audit Committee
The Authority had established an Audit Committee on 30 June 2008 and delegated oversight responsibilities for the:
•
•
•

Corporate Governance process;
System of internal control;
Compliance to laws and regulation.

•
•

Financial reporting process;
Audit process, internal and external; and

Membership and Meetings
The Audit Committee (“AC”) comprised three members. The AC met one (1) time on 3 December 2013 in the year ended
31 December 2013. The details of the members and their attendance are as follows:

Designation

No. of Meetings

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Nor Mohamed Yakcop

Chairman

1/1

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dr. Mohd Irwan Serigar bin Abdullah

Member

1/1

Y.B. Dato’ Haji Obet bin Tawil

Member

0/1

Activities of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee carried out the following activities over the Internal Audit Department during the year:
•

Reviewed and approved the annual internal audit plan to
ensure adequate scope and coverage. Reviewed the
Internal Audit Department’s resources to ensure that the
function is adequately resourced with competent and
proficient internal auditors.

•

Reviewed the Internal Audit Department’s performance
and activities in relation to the approved plan.

•

Reviewed the internal audit reports which were tabled, the
audit recommendations made and management’s response.
The Audit Committee also directed management to rectify
and improve the processes where appropriate.

•

Monitored the corrective actions taken on the outstanding
audit issues.

Internal Audit Department
IRDA’s Internal Audit Department (IAD) reports independently to the Audit Committee and appraises the system of controls of IRDA.
Internal Audit Department assists the Audit Committee in the discharge of Audit Committee’s duties and responsibilities.
The principal roles of the Internal Audit Department are:•

To ensure that a sound internal control system is in place
and to provide reasonable assurance that such a system 		
continues to operate satisfactorily and effectively for IRDA.

•

To provide independent and objective evaluation of
the operations with the view to add value and improve the
operational efficiency, effectiveness and economy.

•

To help the organisation accomplish its objective by
bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes.

•

To ensure that the internal audit activity is managed
effectively and the results of the internal audit’s activities are
communicated to the Audit Committee periodically.

•

The activities undertaken by Internal Audit Department are
in conformance with the Code of Ethics and the International
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
issued by Institute of Internal Auditors.
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
Enterprise Risk Management Framework
The Management has established the Risk Management Framework which was approved on 1 March 2011 by IRDA’s Executive Committee.
The following key elements have been put in place:
•

Establishment of a formalised Risk Management Policy
and Procedure on risks and communicated throughout IRDA;

•

Establishment of Risk Management Committee to assist
the Authority in discharging its statutory duties and
responsibilities relating to Risk Management activities;

•

Establishment and review of the risk management structure,
which outlines the reporting framework and responsibility of
the Authority, Risk Management Committee, Risk Working
Group, Management and Corporate Planning Unit;

•

Appointment of Risk Managers’ representative within each
division of IRDA;

•

Reviewing and, where appropriate, revising the risk
parameters (qualitative and quantitative) for IRDA
and at the individual business unit level to strengthen
effectiveness of the risk management process;

•

Ongoing formal and informal risk management education
and training at management and staff levels;

•

Continuous review and refinement of existing risk
management framework model to enhance risk awareness
within IRDA and facilitate re-affirmation of risk prioritisation
and aggregation exercises with various divisions
and departments; and

•

Implementation by Management of a group-wide risk
assessment process, which includes the identification
of key risks facing each business unit, the potential
impact and likelihood of those risks occurring, the control
effectiveness and the action plans to manage those risks
to the desired level.

Annual Financial Review
Building on the momentum achieved in previous years coupled with the prevailing economic condition, IRDA was able to turn in a
commendable financial performance and commitment in delivering outstanding achievement during the ‘Strengthening & Growth
Generating Phase’ of Iskandar Malaysia. Accordingly, the year 2013 has seen a number of catalytic projects completed such as the
Pinewood Studios, LEGOLAND Water Park Malaysia, Traders Hotel and Legoland Hotel.

5 Years Financial Highlights
IRDA’s Operational Expenditures Performance
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5 Years Financial Highlights
5 years Budget Utilisation Trend
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IRDA’s Development Expenditures Performance
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Note: 301.5 million grant were received in 2008 for land acquisitions.
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Detailed Financial Analysis
Income Statement
In 2013, IRDA recorded a deficit of RM6.69 million (2012: surplus of RM4.28 million). This deficit arose from:
•
•
•

Carried forward committed projects from previous years which were expensed off in 2013 due to timing differences
and project implementation progress.
Government grant reduction to RM55.0 million (2012: RM62.0 million).
Reduction in operational commitments that are brought forward and expended in the following year.

IRDA’s Government Grant vs BSC Result
Government Grant

Government Grant
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BSC Result
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93.0%

2012

85.0%

2013

As a Federal Government Authority,
IRDA relies on operational grants from
the Federal Government to finance its
operational requirements. The grant
received for the financial year ended
31 December 2013 was RM55.00 million
(2012: RM62.00 million), a reduction of
11% compared to the previous year.
Nevertheless, high standards were
maintained in ensuring continuous
investments facilitation and the
strengthening of Iskandar Malaysia’s
brand presence globally.

Revenue
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Group registered a higher revenue of RM4.37 million (2012: RM1.55 million)
which was attributed by the rental income generated by its subsidiary, Prisma Harta Sdn Bhd (“PHSB”). The significant increment
in PHSB’s revenue was due to the progressive incremental of tenants’ intake from 659 in 2012 to 1,009 occupied units by
31 December 2013.

Other Income
Significant portion of the other income were generated by the profit sharing earned from Islamic Banking Deposits. Since the
Development Grants received by IRDA has reduced compared to prior years, profit sharing income has also been reduced
accordingly resulting in lower other income recognised in 2013 of RM4.82 million (2012: RM6.00 million).

Operating Expenditure
Operating expenditure for 2013 increased by 4% as it includes IRDA’s settlement of the 2012 operational commitments. Operating
expenditure for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 were represented by:
1. The employees’ cost of RM38.24 million, an increase of 4% as compared to the previous year due to incentive payments and
increments as approved by the Members of Authority. Iskandar Malaysia had moved into the ‘Strengthening and Generating
Growth Phase’ since 2011 where this phase is targeted to complete by 2015. During this phase, higher staff costs are incurred
to reflect its requirement for hiring and retention of professional, competent and experience employee to ensure effective 		
service deliverance in realising the vision of Iskandar Malaysia.
2. The promotional costs increased by 27% (2013: RM6.57 million, 2012: RM5.17 million) due to IRDA’s enhanced strategic marketing
approach which focuses on:
• Continual and committed approaches in promoting Iskandar Malaysia brand at both local and international markets; and
• Growth in promotional activities through IRDA’s participation in various trade missions, events, conferences, forums and
		 symposiums while enhancing the public awareness as well as promoting Iskandar Malaysia’s brand presence globally.
3. The professional consultation fees for 2013 have increased significantly by 42% to RM3.94 million (2012: RM2.78 million) to cater
for the strategic consultancy fees and blueprint implementation requirements aside from the yearly maintenance of IRDA’s 		
existing systems.
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Share of Equity Losses in Associate Company
As at 31 December 2013, IRDA recognised the 40% share of equity losses in its associate company, IMSEC Sdn Bhd (“ISB”) amounting
to RM0.10 million in the Group Financial Statements in accordance to the Malaysian Accounting Standard Boards (“MASB”).

Balance Sheet
Fixed assets increased slightly by 5% mainly due to the purchase
of computer software for the development of Geographical
Information System (“GIS”) in Iskandar Malaysia region. Apart
from that, IRDA continued with its existing prudent drive of
curbing by limiting capital expenditure to replacements and
improvements only.
The significant increase of the other receivables, deposits and
prepayments by 26% or to RM3.65 million (2012: RM2.89 million)
was primarily due to the receivables and deposit values for the
Special Development Fund.
Cash and bank balances were largely reserved for contractual
obligations under the Tenth Malaysian Plan projects such as
for the Sungai Segget river revitalisation, construction of Jalan
Skudai-Abu Bakar, construction of Jalan Yahya Awal-Abu Bakar,
public housing development and Bas Iskandar Malaysia.

Special Development Fund is to be reserved for contractual
obligations under the Tenth Malaysian Plan projects, Creative
Industry Talent Development Programmes and National Talent
Enhancement Programme (“NTEP”).
Social Project Fund is to be utilised in accordance to the social
projects approved by the Social Development Committee
(“SDC”) consistent with the strategies and initiatives as stated in
the Comprehensive Development Plan (“CDP”).
Facilitation Fund is managed on behalf of and funded by
the Federal Government through TERAJU@Iskandar Malaysia
to be used in initiatives undertaken by qualified Bumiputera
companies to embark on viable projects through the provision
of facilitation fund (Dana Mudahcara) and the implementation
of High Performing Bumiputera Companies (Teras) Programme.

Other payables and accrued expenses consisted of contractual
obligations under the operating fund that have been settled
after the year end and contractual obligations under the
development fund mainly due to the retention sum on progress
payment of the Ninth and Tenth Malaysian Plan projects such
as coastal highway, safety & security initiatives (CCTV), Pandan
Bridge construction and Sungai Segget river revitalisation.
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Balance Sheets

As At 31 December 2013
GROUP
Note

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

Property, plant and equipment

3

1,940,153

1,730,385

1,796,047

1,709,675

Investments in subsidiaries

4

-

-

2

4

Investments in associate

5

62,146

-

160,603

-

2,002,299

1,730,385

1,956,652

1,709,679

Current Assets
Receivables, deposits and prepayments

6

4,141,909

3,404,192

3,652,034

2,886,422

Cash and cash equivalents

7

494,140,308

550,906,768

488,824,961

548,990,997

Amount owing from subsidiary

8

-

-

3,497,125

1,159,037

Amount owing from associate

8

5,099

-

5,099

-

498,287,316

554,310,960

495,979,219

553,036,456

Current Liabilities
Payables and accruals

9

132,227,254

55,412,367

130,673,418

54,372,389

Amount owing to subsidiary

8

-

-

-

158,763

Amount owing to associate

8

59,682

-

59,682

-

Amount owing to related company

8

-

880,322

-

-

132,286,936

56,292,689

130,733,100

54,531,152

366,000,380

498,018,271

365,246,119

498,505,304

368,002,679

499,748,656

367,202,771

500,214,983

Net Current Assets

Represented by:
Operating Fund

33,196,383

38,617,901

32,396,475

39,084,228

Special Development Fund

10

275,258,712

402,774,067

275,258,712

402,774,067

Social Projects Fund

11

49,225,634

48,345,221

49,225,634

48,345,221

Facilitation Fund

12

10,321,950

10,011,467

10,321,950

10,011,467

368,002,679

499,748,656

367,202,771

500,214,983

Income Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2013
GROUP
Note

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM
62,000,000

Government Grants

13

55,000,000

62,000,000

55,000,000

Revenue

14

4,370,559

1,544,628

-

-

Other Income

15

4,870,258

5,928,554

4,822,029

6,001,858

64,240,817

69,473,182

59,822,029

68,001,858

(69,906,804)

(65,652,046)

(66,509,782)

(63,722,960)

(5,665,987)

3,821,136

(6,687,753)

4,278,898

Share of equity losses of an associate

(98,457)

-

-

-

(Deficit)/Surplus for the financial year

(5,764,444)

3,821,136

(6,687,753)

4,278,898

Operating Expenses

16

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Changes In Equity
For The Year Ended 31 December 2013

Operating
Fund

Social
Projects
Fund
RM

Facilitation
Fund

Total

RM

Special
Development
Fund
RM

RM

RM

GROUP
At 31 December 2011

34,796,765

206,078,046

48,203,774

-

289,078,585

Development grant received from
Government

-

288,961,600

-

-

288,961,600

NTEP grant received from Government

-

1,665,000

-

–

1,665,000

Creative fund received from Government

-

10,000,000

-

-

10,000,000

Facilitation fund received from Government

-

-

-

10,000,000

10,000,000

Utilisation of development grant

-

(113,725,223)

-

-

(113,725,223)

Utilisation of NTEP grant

-

(19,783)

-

-

(19,783)

Utilisation of Social Projects fund

-

-

(1,375,033)

-

(1,375,033)

Interest income

-

9,814,427

1,516,480

11,467

11,342,374

3,821,136

-

-

-

3,821,136

38,617,901

402,774,067

48,345,221

10,011,467

499,748,656

Development grant received from
Government

-

4,000,000

-

-

4,000,000

Utilisation of development grant

-

(142,054,806)

-

-

(142,054,806)

Utilisation of NTEP grant

-

(135,430)

-

-

(135,430)

Utilisation of Social Projects fund

-

-

(647,215)

-

(647,215)

Utilisation of Facilitation fund

-

-

-

(1,570)

(1,570)

Interest income

-

10,674,881

1,527,628

312,053

12,514,562

Surplus for the financial year
At 31 December 2012

342,926

-

-

-

342,926

Deficit for the financial year

(5,764,444)

-

-

-

(5,764,444)

At 31 December 2013

33,196,383

275,258,712

49,225,634

10,321,950

368,002,679

Divestment of subsidiary to associate

IRDA
At 31 December 2011

34,805,330

206,078,046

48,203,774

-

289,087,150

Development grant received from
Government

-

288,961,600

-

-

288,961,600

NTEP grant received from Government

-

1,665,000

-

-

1,665,000

Creative fund received from Government

-

10,000,000

-

-

10,000,000

Facilitation fund received from Government

-

-

-

10,000,000

10,000,000

Utilisation of development grant

-

(113,725,223)

-

-

(113,725,223)

Utilisation of NTEP grant

-

(19,783)

-

-

(19,783)

Utilisation of Social Projects fund

-

-

(1,375,033)

-

(1,375,033)

Interest income

-

9,814,427

1,516,480

11,467

11,342,374

4,278,898

-

-

-

4,278,898

39,084,228

402,774,067

48,345,221

10,011,467

500,214,983

Development grant received from
Government

-

4,000,000

-

-

4,000,000

Utilisation of development grant

-

(142,054,806)

-

-

(142,054,806)

Utilisation of NTEP grant

-

(135,430)

-

-

(135,430)

Utilisation of Social Projects fund

-

-

(647,215)

-

(647,215)

Utilisation of Facilitation fund

-

-

-

(1,570)

(1,570)

Surplus for the financial year
At 31 December 2012

Interest income

-

10,674,881

1,527,628

312,053

12,514,562

Deficit for the financial year

(6,687,753)

-

-

-

(6,687,753)

At 31 December 2013

32,396,475

275,258,712

49,225,634

10,321,950

367,202,771

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2013
GROUP
Note

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

(5,764,444)

3,821,136

(6,687,753)

4,278,898

967,750

1,548,827

939,271

1,543,650

6,084

(103,193)

6,084

(103,193)

Divestment of subsidiary to associate

363,634

-

-

-

Provision for doubtful debts

435,218

-

-

-

98,457

-

-

-

(3,893,301)

5,266,770

(5,742,398)

5,719,355

(127,515,355)

196,696,021

(127,515,355)

196,696,021

880,413

141,447

880,413

141,447

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus for the financial year
Adjustment for:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

3

Write-off/(Disposal) of property, plant and
equipment

Share of equity losses of an associate
Surplus before working capital changes
(Decrease)/Increase in:
Special development fund
Social projects fund
Facilitation fund

310,483

10,011,467

310,483

10,011,467

Receivables, deposits and prepayments

(1,172,935)

(1,585,365)

(765,612)

(1,067,595)

Payables and accruals

76,814,887

(19,893,758)

76,301,029

(20,931,736)

(825,739)

880,322

(2,442,268)

(993,709)

(55,401,547)

191,516,904

(58,973,708)

189,575,250

(1,204,312)

(659,975)

(1,031,727)

(634,088)

(160,601)

-

(160,601)

-

-

103,200

-

103,200

(1,364,913)

(556,775)

(1,192,328)

(530,888)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

(56,766,460)

190,960,129

(60,166,036)

189,044,362

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of financial year

550,906,768

359,946,639

548,990,997

359,946,635

494,140,308

550,906,768

488,824,961

548,990,997

Amount owing from inter-companies
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities
Cash Flow Used In Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

3

Acquisition of shares in associate
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year

7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2013

1. General Information
Iskandar Regional Development Authority (“IRDA”) was established on 12 February 2007. The main activity of IRDA is to act as the
authority empowered to plan, promote, process, stimulate, facilitate and undertake the development of Iskandar Malaysia.
•

The principal activity of the subsidiary company is disclosed in Note 4.

•

The total number of employees of IRDA at year end was 160 (2012: 153).

•

The principal place of operation of IRDA is located at #G-01, Block 8, Danga Bay, Jalan Skudai, 80200 Johor Bahru, Malaysia.

•

The financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2013 was approved by the Members of Authority through a Circular
Resolution dated 21 April 2014.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following accounting policies are adopted by IRDA and are consistent with applicable approved accounting standards for
private entities issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”).
a. Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of IRDA are prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements and in compliance with the provisions of the Iskandar Regional Development Authority Act, 2007 and applicable
approved accounting standards for private entities in Malaysia.
b. Basis of Consolidation
Subsidiary
The financial statement of subsidiary company is included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
effectively commences until the date that control effectively ceases. Subsidiary company is the enterprise controlled by IRDA.
Control exists when IRDA has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiary by IRDA. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition, irrespective of the extent
of any minority interest.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
IRDA and subsidiary are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator of the asset
transferred.
Minority interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a subsidiary attributable to interests which are
not owned directly or indirectly by IRDA.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring accounting policies into line with those
used by IRDA.
Loss of control
Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, IRDA derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests
and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised
in profit and loss. If IRDA retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date
that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset
depending on the level of influence retained.
Associate
Associate company is the entity in which IRDA has significant influence, but no control over the financial and operating policies.
Investment in associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method less any impairment
losses. The consolidated financial statements include IRDA’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
equity accounted associate, after adjustments if any, to align the accounting policies with those of IRDA, from the date that
significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2013

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
b. Basis of Consolidation
Associate
When IRDA’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an asociate, the carrying amount of the interest including any long-term
investments is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that IRDA has an
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of associate to bring accounting policies into line with those
used by IRDA.
c. Income Recognition
Government Grants
Operating grants are recognised in the income statement when the rights to receive the grants are approved and the grants will
be received during the financial year.
d. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment purchased at cost of RM500 and below are expensed as incurred. The straight line method is 		
used to write off the cost of the property, plant and equipment over the term of their estimated useful lives at the following 		
principal annual rates:
Motor vehicles						25%
Computers and mobile phones				
33.33%
Furniture and fittings, office equipment and renovation
20%
e. Receivables
Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable values. Bad debts are written off in the financial year in which they are 		
identified. An estimate is made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the financial year end.
f.

Taxation and Deferred Taxation
Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of dividend income pursuant to the tax exemption
obtained from the Ministry of Finance as mentioned in Note 18. It is measured using the tax rate that have been enacted by
the Inland Revenue Board at the balance sheet date.
No deferred taxation is recognised for the financial year due to the tax exemption.

g. Other Payables
Other payables are stated at the amounts which the Authority is contracted or obligated to settle plus any incidental legal
expenses.
h. Provision for Liabilities
Provision for liabilities is recognised when the Authority has a present legal and contractual obligation as a result of past event,
when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a
provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.
i.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances, and deposit which are readily convertible to known amount of
cash and which are subjected to insignificant risk of change in value.
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Impairment of Assets
At each balance sheet date, the Authority reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the impairment is measured by comparing the recoverable amount with
the carrying amount of an asset and when the latter amount is higher, the asset is written down to the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its net selling price and its value in use, which is measured by reference to
discounted future cash flows.
An impairment loss is charged to the income statement immediately, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any
impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent of previously recognised revaluation
surplus for the same asset. Should the impairment loss of an asset exceeds its revaluation surplus, the surplus impairment loss is
charged to the income statement.
Subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset if carried at cost, is treated as a reversal of the accumulated
impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement but the reversal is limited to the accumulated impairment loss
previously recognised, and if carried at revalued amount, is credited directly to revaluation surplus.

k. Special Development Fund
Special Development Fund is managed on behalf of and funded by the Federal Government under Ninth Malaysian Plan
(RMKe-9) and Tenth Malaysian Plan (RMKe-10) for infrastructure development project, Creative Fund used for Creative
Industry Talent Development Programmes and National Talent Enhancement Programme (NTEP) Fund used for Human Capital
Development Programmes.
All receipts are credited and all payments are debited to the account. Unutilised amounts at the balance sheet date are shown
as balance of the above fund.
l.

Social Projects Fund
Social Projects Fund managed by the Authority is funded by third parties and utilised for certain purposes in accordance with
the provisions of Section 37 of Iskandar Regional Development Authority Act, 2007.
All receipts are credited and all payments are debited to the account. Unutilised amounts at the balance sheet date are shown
as balance of the above fund.

m. Facilitation Fund
Facilitation Fund is managed on behalf of and funded by the Federal Government through TERAJU to be used in initiatives
undertaken by qualified Bumiputera companies in accordance to the specified criteria.
All receipts are credited and all payments are debited to the account. Unutilised amounts at the balance sheet date are shown
as balance of the above fund.
n. Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Malaysia Ringgit at rates of exchange ruling at the time of the transactions.
Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. Assets and liabilities not in foreign currencies are determined on fair value which translated into Ringgit
Malaysia at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from foreign
currency are recognised in the income statement.
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31 December 2013

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
n. Foreign Currency Transactions
The principal closing rates used in translation of foreign currency amounts at the balance sheet dates are as follow:

1 Singapore Dollar (SGD)
1 Euro (EUR)
1 United Kingdom Pound (GBP)
1 Japan Yen (JPY)
1 Qatar Riyal (QAR)
1 United Arab Emirates Dirham (AED)
1 United States Dollar (USD)
1 Australia Dollar (AUD)
100 Indonesian Rupiah (IDR)
100 South Korean Won (KRW)
1 Chinese Yuan Renminbi (CNY)
1 Danish Krone (DKK)
1 Swedish Krona (SEK)
1 Romanian New Lei (RON)
1 Hong Kong Dollar (HKD)
1 Indian Rupee (INR)
1 Russian Ruble (RUB)

2013
RM

2012
RM

2.59
4.53
5.41
0.03
0.90
0.89
3.28
2.93
0.027
0.3108
0.54
0.61
0.51
1.01
0.42
0.053
0.099

2.50
4.04
4.94
0.04
3.06
0.49
0.54
0.47
0.91
0.39
0.06
-

o. Employee Benefits
Short Term Benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which the associated
sevices are rendered by employees of IRDA. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are
recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short
term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.
Defined Contribution Plan
IRDA is required by law to make monthly contributions to Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”), a statutory defined contribution plan
for all its eligible employees based on certain prescribed rates of the employees’ salaries. IRDA contributions to EPF are disclosed
separately. The employee’s contribution to EPF are included in salaries and wages.
p. Cash Flow Statement
IRDA adopts the indirect method in the preparation of the cash flow statement. Cash equivalents comprise short-term, highly
liquid investments with maturities of less than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Computer

Furniture and
Fittings, Office
Equipment and
Renovation

Total

RM

RM

RM

RM

GROUP
Cost
At 1 January 2013

995,366

3,968,500

5,160,742

10,124,608

Additions

-

425,811

778,501

1,204,312

Write-off

-

-

(892,161)

(892,161)

Divestment of subsidiary to associate

-

(3,500)

(22,387)

(25,887)

995,366

4,390,811

5,024,695

10,410,872

At 1 January 2013

435,636

3,693,025

4,265,562

8,394,223

Additions

195,156

259,498

513,096

967,750

Write-off

-

-

(886,077)

(886,077)

Divestment of subsidiary to associate

-

(700)

(4,477)

(5,177)

630,792

3,951,823

3,888,104

8,470,719

At 31 December 2013

364,574

438,988

1,136,591

1,940,153

At 31 December 2012

559,730

275,475

895,180

1,730,385

Depreciation charge for 2012

139,669

465,928

943,230

1,548,827

At 31 December 2013
Accumulated Depreciation

At 31 December 2013
Net Book Value

IRDA
Cost
At 1 January 2013

995,366

3,965,000

5,138,355

10,098,721

Additions

-

317,611

714,116

1,031,727

Write-off

-

(1,253)

(892,161)

(893,414)

995,366

4,281,358

4,960,310

10,237,034

At 1 January 2013

435,636

3,692,325

4,261,085

8,389,046

Additions

195,156

237,789

506,326

939,271

-

(1,253)

(886,077)

(887,330)

630,792

3,928,861

3,881,334

8,440,987

At 31 December 2013

364,574

352,497

1,078,976

1,796,047

At 31 December 2012

559,730

272,675

877,270

1,709,675

Depreciation charge for 2012

139,669

465,228

938,753

1,543,650

At 31 December 2013
Accumulated Depreciation

Write-off
At 31 December 2013
Net Book Value
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4. Investments in Subsidiaries
IRDA
2013
RM

2012
RM

2

4

Unquoted shares at cost
Details of the subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in Malaysia are as follows:

Equity interest held
Name of Subsidiaries

Principle Activities

Prisma Harta Sdn. Bhd.

Manage the operation and

2013
%

2012
%

100

100

40*

100

maintenance of the Public Housing
for Iskandar Malaysia
IMSEC Sdn. Bhd.

Provide safety and security services to
Iskandar Malaysia region

*Being reclassified to Associate.

Financial Statements of the subsidiaries are not being audited by the Auditor General of Malaysia.

5. Investments in Associate
GROUP

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

Unquoted shares at cost

160,603

-

160,603

-

Share of post acquisition results

(98,457)

-

-

-

62,146

-

160,603

-

IRDA’s share of revenue, profit, assets and liabilities of an associate are as follows:
GROUP

Revenue
Net profit for the financial year
Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
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2013

2012

RM

RM

1,728,750

-

38,715

-

39,816

-

646,170

-

(623,840)

-

62,146

-
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Details of the associate, which is incorporated in Malaysia are as follows:
Equity interest held
Name of Associate

Principle Activities

IMSEC Sdn. Bhd.

Provide safety and security services to

2013
%

2012
%

40*

100

Iskandar Malaysia region
* Previously is a subsidiary.

Financial Statements of the subsidiaries are not being audited by the Auditor General of Malaysia.

6. Receivables, Deposits and Prepayments
GROUP

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

Operating Fund:
Trade receivables

907,022

517,770

-

-

(435,218)

-

-

-

471,804

517,770

-

-

Other receivables

327,213

430,774

327,213

430,774

Deposits

707,550

607,299

707,550

607,299

Prepayments

596,896

514,954

578,825

514,954

2,103,463

2,070,797

1,613,588

1,553,027

1,557,953

1,305,294

1,557,953

1,305,294

1,557,953

1,305,294

1,557,953

1,305,294

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

Special Development Fund:
Deposits

Social Project Fund:
Interest receivables
Other receivables

Total

28,046

28,101

28,046

28,101

452,447

-

452,447

-

480,493

28,101

480,493

28,101

4,141,909

3,404,192

3,652,034

2,886,422
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7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
GROUP

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

Operating Fund:
Cash in hand
Bank balances
Deposits with licensed bank

9,000

10,402

9,000

9,000

27,393,334

37,149,735

26,577,987

35,235,366

4,500,000

-

-

-

31,902,334

37,160,137

26,586,987

35,244,366

Special Development Fund:
Bank balances
Deposits with licensed bank

(5,779,742)

455,418,044

(5,779,742)

(29,186,559)

408,950,625

-

408,950,625

484,604,603

403,170,883

455,418,044

403,170,883

455,418,044

(697,489)

402,067

(697,489)

402,067

49,442,630

47,915,053

49,442,630

47,915,053

48,745,141

48,317,120

48,745,141

48,317,120

Social Project Fund:
Bank balances
Deposits with licensed bank

Facilitation Fund:
Bank balances
Deposits with licensed bank

Total

79,284

10,011,467

79,284

10,011,467

10,242,666

-

10,242,666

-

10,321,950

10,011,467

10,321,950

10,011,467

494,140,308

550,906,768

488,824,961

548,990,997

8. Amount Owing from/(to) Subsidiary, Associate and Related Company
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiary, associate and related company are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of
repayments.
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9. Payables and Accruals
GROUP

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

Operating Fund:
Trade payables

192,460

-

-

-

Other payables

879,570

499,977

813,454

405,485

Accruals
Deposits and Prepayments

251,239

199,434

229,239

17,633

1,273,260

763,685

-

-

2,596,529

1,463,096

1,042,693

423,118

129,630,725

53,949,271

129,630,725

53,949,271

129,630,725

53,949,271

129,630,725

53,949,271

132,227,254

55,412,367

130,673,418

54,372,389

Special Development Fund:
Other payables

Total

Other payables comprise amounts outstanding for ongoing costs. The amounts owing are interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

10. Special Development Fund
GROUP AND IRDA
2013
RM

2012
RM

402,774,067

206,078,046

4,000,000

288,961,600

NTEP grant received from Government

-

1,665,000

Creative fund received from Government

-

10,000,000

406,774,067

506,704,646

13,969,111

14,329,558

420,743,178

521,034,204

142,054,806

113,725,223

As at 1 January
Development grant received from Government

Interest income

Less: Utilisation of development grant
Less: Utilisation of NTEP grant
Less: Interest income transferred to Operating Fund
As at 31 December

135,430

19,783

3,294,230

4,515,131

275,258,712

402,774,067
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11. Social Projects Fund
GROUP AND IRDA
2013
RM

2012
RM

As at 1 January

48,345,221

48,203,774

Interest income

1,527,628

1,516,480

49,872,849

49,720,254

647,215

1,375,033

49,225,634

48,345,221

Less: Utilisation of Social Project Fund
As at 31 December

The Social Projects (“SPF”) Fund is established pursuant to Section 37 of IRDA Act 664 (Act 664) which shall
be used to finance social projects and schemes consistent with the strategies and initiatives as stated in
the Comprehensive Development Plan (“CDP”). The Fund is managed by the SPF Committee comprising of
independent members in accordance with the guidelines, policies and decisions made by IRDA, provided
always the said guidelines, policies and decisions are not in contravention of the Act and the CDP.

12. Facilitation Fund
GROUP AND IRDA

As at 1 January
Facilitation Fund received from Government

Interest income

Less: Utilisation of Facilitation Fund
As at 31 December

2013
RM

2012
RM

10,011,467

-

-

10,000,000

10,011,467

10,000,000

312,053

11,467

10,323,520

10,011,467

1,570

-

10,321,950

10,011,467

The establishment of Facilitation Fund is to be used for qualified Bumiputera companies under the TERAJU’s
Entry Point Project (EPP) initiatives. The Fund is managed by the Facilitation Fund Review Committee (FFRC)
comprising of independent members and will be chaired by IRDA’s Chief Executive. The FFRC Committee task
is to review the application received from all the companies applying for the fund and make recommendation
for the qualified companies to the Teraju Delivery Committee (TDC) for final approval.

13. Government Grants
GROUP AND IRDA
2013
RM

2012
RM

55,000,000

62,000,000

Operating Fund:
Government grants received
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14. Revenue
GROUP AND IRDA
2013
RM

2012
RM

4,370,559

1,260,262

-

284,366

4,370,559

1,544,628

Operating Fund:
Rental income
Auxilliary Polices services income

15. Other Income
GROUP

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

Operating Fund:
Tender fees
Interest income
Other income
Management fees
Facilities rental

101,500

60,700

101,500

60,700

4,436,506

5,643,405

4,330,296

5,643,405

274,032

105,127

270,233

104,560

-

-

120,000

90,000

4,428

1,932

-

-

Administration fees

49,661

9,150

-

-

Vehicle sticker fees

4,131

5,047

-

-

-

103,193

-

103,193

4,870,258

5,928,554

4,822,029

6,001,858

Gain on fixed assets disposal
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16. Operating Expenses
GROUP

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

3,997,725

2,780,657

3,937,770

2,780,357

26,409

25,868

18,671

18,577

Board members’ allowances

294,000

330,000

294,000

330,000

Allowances – AIC Members & Advisory Council

318,500

349,876

318,500

349,876

Operating Fund:
The details of operating expenses are as follows:
Professional fees
Auditors’ remuneration

6,000

6,000

6,000

6,000

Allowances – Tender Board A & B

11,900

3,850

11,900

3,850

Allowances – Incentives Committee

20,800

8,000

20,800

8,000

3,400

5,200

-

–

Allowances – IRDA Exco

Allowances – Selection & Approval Committee

15,184

-

-

–

3,730,825

3,665,033

3,724,025

3,665,949

967,750

1,548,827

939,271

1,543,650

6,000

8,000

6,000

8,000

24,000

106,500

24,000

106,500

3,503

4,143

45

810

26,256,385

24,682,193

25,495,198

23,714,652

5,336,823

5,038,050

5,198,986

4,987,690

98,782

90,059

95,417

88,702

251,714

252,827

251,714

252,827

6,450,285

6,229,879

6,332,695

6,229,879

– Ex Gratia

517,360

1,168,320

517,360

1,168,320

– Staff welfare

301,423

394,345

301,423

393,145

44,606

18,507

44,606

18,507

6,582,686

5,182,831

6,571,284

5,166,701

Assessment
Rental expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Donation
Sponsorship
Secretarial fees
Staff costs
– Salaries and allowances
– EPF
– SOCSO
– Overtime
– Bonus

– Staff recruitment
Marketing and promotions

227,386

197,592

227,386

195,921

Training and seminar

1,085,163

1,542,760

1,064,324

1,542,510

Utilities charges

1,678,603

1,646,292

1,454,553

1,426,242

107,250

68,150

107,250

68,150

2,112,420

1,570,508

1,322,296

1,140,269

Printing and stationeries

333,552

325,182

264,670

305,797

Meeting expenses

743,224

721,021

743,224

720,741

Medical charges

112,822

114,656

112,174

114,606

-

265

-

265

1,091,881

923,285

1,027,696

920,191

Entertainment

Website expenses
Upkeep of office equipment,
premises and motor vehicles

Loss on foreign exchange
Insurance

6,652

10,249

6,647

7,974

Advertisement

926,308

1,686,015

926,308

1,686,015

General expenses

194,852

240,190

193,729

233,124

Security charges

917,666

119,651

298,692

239,015

5,756

6,702

4,016

4,702

Bank charges

Taxation fees
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IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

170,191

359,897

170,191

357,197

15,224

19,786

15,224

19,786

The details of operating expenses are as follows:
Licence fees
Membership and professional subscriptions
Postage and courier
Accommodation and travelling
Management fees
Property, plant and equipment written off
Provision for doubtful debts

26,174

36,245

26,174

36,245

4,444,318

3,891,035

4,429,479

3,862,218

-

273,600

-

-

6,084

-

6,084

-

435,218

-

-

-

69,906,804

65,652,046

66,509,782

63,722,960

17. Staff Costs
GROUP

IRDA

2013

2012

2013

2012

RM

RM

RM

RM

39,257,378

37,874,180

38,237,399

36,853,722

Operating Fund:
Staff costs

Included in staff costs are Group’s contributions to Employee Provident Fund of RM5,336,823 (2012: RM5,038,050).

18. Income Tax
IRDA has obtained tax exemption under Section 127(3A) of the Income Tax Act, 1967. All income except for dividend income are
exempted from tax for 10 years beginning from year assessments 2007 until 2016.

19. Operational Commitments
GROUP AND IRDA
2013
RM

2012
RM

Marketing and promotions

423,474

1,102,051

Consultancy and blueprint studies

972,513

2,712,640

General expenses

510,648

154,474

1,906,635

3,969,165

Approved and contracted:
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